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Washington, D.C. 20549
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(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF EISECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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OR
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SYNNEX CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Delaware 94-2703333
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

44201 Nobel Drive
Fremont, California 94538

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
(510) 656-3333
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code
Securities registered to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share
New York Stock Exchange
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢iie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a vikelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40%edbéturities Act.  YesXl No O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Act.  Yes[] No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant &b filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l88ring the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegt was required to file such reports), anché) been subject to such filing requirements ferést 90 days. Ye&l

No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lnasnitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥tb site, if any, every Interactive Data File regd to be submitted
and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation §282.405 of this chapter) during the preceding datims (or for such shorter period that the regitweas required to submit
and post such files). Ye& No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiélers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i$ oontained herein, and will not be containedhltest of registrant’s
knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statents incorporated by reference in Part Il of fhrism 10-K or any amendment to this Form 13K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantleazge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, poaaccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&@se the definitions «
“large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” ataaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of thecBange Act. (Check one).

Large accelerated fileix! Accelerated filer] Non-accelerated fildr] Smaller reporting comparniy

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Brge Act). YesO No

The aggregate market value of Common Stock heltbipyaffiliates of the registrant (based upon tlusiclg sale price on the New York Stock Exchangef éise last
business day of the registrant's most recently deteg@ second fiscal quarter May 31, 2013) was 8., /065,056. Shares held by each executive offi¢gezcibr and by each person
who owns 10% or more of the outstanding CommonkShawe been excluded in that such persons maydmaeteto be affiliates. This determination of adfiéi status is not
necessarily a conclusive determination for otheppses.

As of January 15, 2014 , there were 37,731,54Cesha#frCommon Stock, $0.001 per share par valustamding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Items 10 (as to directors and Section 16(a) Beia¢f@wnership Reporting Compliance), 11, 12 (aBeaeficial Ownership), 13 and 14 of Part Ill incorate by reference
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PART I

When used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (tRegort”), the words “believes,” “plans,” “estimate’ “anticipates,” “expects,”
“intends,” “allows,” “can,” “may,” “designed,” “wil |,” and similar expressions are intended to idenfibrwardiooking statements. These
statements that relate to future periods and inelathtements about our business model and ourcesnvour market strategy, including
expansion of our product lines, our infrastructuogy investment in our information technology, ©r $ystems, anticipated benefits, cost and
timing of our acquisitions, including our acquisii of the customer care business of InternationaiBess Machines Corporation, or IBM, ¢
employee hiring, impact of MiTAC Holdings Corpoaatj or MiTAC Holdings, ownership interest in usr oevenue, sources of revenue and
operating results, our gross margins, competitiothv®ynnex Technology International Corp., our fatneeds for additional financing,
concentration of customers, adequacy of our faedjtour legal proceedings, our international opgwas, expansion of our operations, our
strategic acquisitions of businesses and assdestefof future expansion of our operations, adegua our cash resources to meet our capita
needs, cash held by our foreign subsidiaries, adeguof our disclosure controls and procedures, delpacy on personnel, pricing pressures,
competition, impact of rules and regulations affegtpublic companies, impact of our pricing polgi®ur anti-dilution share repurchase
program, impact of our accounting policies, andetaents regarding our securitization programs aedalving credit lines. Forwarlooking
statements are subject to risks and uncertaintias ¢ould cause actual results to differ materidttym those projected. These risks and
uncertainties include, but are not limited to, thasks discussed below, as well as the seasorlttye buying patterns of our customers,
concentration of sales to large customers, depecelepon and trends in capital spending budgethén T and consumer electronics, or CE,
industries, fluctuations in general economic coiodis and risks set forth below under Part |, Itefy 1Risk Factors.” These forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date hereof. Wesskp disclaim any obligation or undertaking téeese publicly any updates or revisions to
any forward-looking statements contained hereireftect any change in our expectations with regéueteto or any change in events,
conditions or circumstances on which any such statd is based.

” w ” o,

In the sections of this Report entitled “Busines®@iew” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysig-inancial Condition and
Results of Operatior” all references to “SYNNEX,” “we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company” mean SYNNEX Corporation and our sdiasies,
except where it is made clear that the term meahstbe parent company or one of its segments.

SYNNEX, the SYNNEX Logo, CONCENTRIX, the CONCENIdgjx EMJ, HYVE SOLUTIONS, NEW AGE ELECTRONIGSNE&EW
AGE ELECTRONICS Logo, JACK OF ALL GAMES, the JAGKADOL GAMES Logo, PRINTSOLV, VARNEX, PC WHOLESASP|RE
ENCOVER, GEM, VISIONMAX and all other SYNNEX compamduct and service names and slogans are tradesior registere(
trademarks of SYNNEX Corporation. SYNNEX, the SYNMi§o, CONCENTRIX, HYVE SOLUTIONS, PRINTSOLV V&RINEX Reg. U.S.
Pat. & Tm. Off. Other names and marks are the priypaf their respective owner

ltem 1. Business Overview

We are a Fortune 500 corporation and a leadingibasiprocess services company, servicing resakgeaders and original equipment
manufacturers, or OEMs, in multiple regions arothmlworld. Our primary business process servicesvlwolesale distribution and business
process outsourcing, or BPO. We operate in two seggndistribution services and global businesgices, or GBS. Our distribution services
segment distributes peripherals, IT systems inolydiata center server and storage solutions, systerponents, software, networking
equipment, CE, and complementary products. Withindistribution services segment, we also proviggigh and integration services. Our
GBS segment offers a range of BPO services to mestthat include direct sales, technical suppgodtomer care, lead management, rene
management, back office processing and informagohnology outsourcing, or ITO. Many of these segsiare delivered and supported on th
proprietary software platforms we have developeprtwvide additional value to our customers.

We combine our core strengths in distribution vaitit BPO services to help our customers and veratdnieve greater efficiencies in ti
to market, cost minimization, real-time linkageghe supply chain and after-market product supp@e.distribute more than 30,000
technology products (as measured by active SKWs) fmore than 300 IT, CE and OEM suppliers to mbam 20,000 resellers, system
integrators, and retailers throughout the Unitete®, Canada, Japan and Mexico. As of Novembe&2(®(® , we had over 14,500 full-time and
temporary employees worldwide. From a geographispgestive, approximately 88% of our total revenusfrom North America for the fisc
year2013 and 87% for both the fiscal years 2012 and. 201
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In our distribution services segment, we purchaseperals, IT systems, system components, soffvaatesorking equipment, including
CE and complementary products, from our primarypsaps and sell them to our reseller and retaitauers. We perform a similar function
for our distribution of licensed software produdair reseller customers include value-added reselbe VARS, corporate resellers,
government resellers, system integrators, direcketers, and national and regional retailers. Indistribution business, we provide
comprehensive IT solutions in key vertical markatsh as government and healthcare and we alsadgrepecialized service offerings that
increase efficiencies in areas like print managednrenewals, networking and other services. Addiity, within our distribution services
segment, we provide data center servers and stecdiggons built specific to our customer's dataeeenvironments.

Our distribution services segment operates in tbigiliution and design and integration service stdaes, which are characterized by low
gross profit as a percentage of revenue, or gresgim and low income from operations as a pergentd revenue, or operating margin. The
market for IT and CE products and services is gdlyecharacterized by declining unit prices andrspooduct life cycles. We set our sales
price based on the market supply and demand clesistitts for each particular product or bundle mfducts we distribute and services we
provide.

In our distribution services segment, we are higldpendent on the end-market demand for IT andré#ugts and services. This end-
market demand is influenced by many factors incigdhe introduction of new IT and CE products aoftigare by OEMSs, replacement cycles
for existing IT and CE products, overall economiovwgth and general business activity. A difficuldachallenging economic environment may
also lead to consolidation or decline in the IT &tlindustries and increased price-based competitio

In our GBS segment, we provide a comprehensiveerafgervices to enhance the customer lifecycletaraquire, support and renew
customer relationships. Our customers are primardyufacturers of IT hardware and CE devices, dpesb of software, cloud service
providers, and broadcast and social media.

Our GBS segment generates revenue from perforneingces that are generally tied to our customelycts and how they are recei
in the marketplace. Any shift in business or sikzéhe market for our customers' products, any feilof technology and failure of acceptance o
our customers' products in the market may impacbaginess. Generally, the employee turnover ratkis business and the risk of losing
experienced employees are high. Higher turnovesrean increase costs and decrease the operdtmegneies and productivity.

To expand our GBS segment, in September 2013, weeeshinto an agreement with International Busidashines Corporation, or
IBM, to acquire IBM’s customer care business. Titidl closing of the acquisition is expected t@wocin the first calendar quarter of 2014.

We have been in business since 1980 and are hesslgaain Fremont, California. We have operationblorth America, Central
America, Asia and Europe. We were originally inawgted in the State of California as COMPAC Micemtonics, Inc. in November 1980,
and we changed our name to SYNNEX Information Tetdgies, Inc. in February 1994. We later reincogped in the State of Delaware un
the name of SYNNEX Corporation in October 2003.

Our Products and Suppliers

We distribute a broad line of IT products, inclugliT systems, peripherals, system components, aodtand networking equipment for
more than 300 OEM suppliers, enabling us to oftengrehensive solutions to our reseller and retetamers.

For the fiscal year 2013, our product mix by catggeas in the following ranges:

Product Cateqory:

Peripherals 36% -40%
IT Systems 29% -33%
System Components 15% -19%
Software 6% -10%
Networking Equipment 4% -8%

Our suppliers include leading IT systems, netwagléquipment, software, peripherals and CE manufaxguOur primary OEM
suppliers are Hewlett-Packard Company, or HP, Awner, Asus Tek Computer Inc., Beats Electronics | Li@el Corporation, Lenovo,
Lexmark International Inc., Microsoft CorporatidPanasonic Corporation and Seagate Technologies LLC.

2
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Our largest OEM supplier is HP. Revenue from tHe sAHP products and services represented appeiglyn31% , 36% and 35% of
our revenue for fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 26dspectively. As is typical with our OEM suppliggraements, our United States Business
Development Partner Agreement with HP is short-tenth may be terminated without cause upon shoitendn the event of any breach of the
agreement by us, HP may terminate the agreemenvamday be required to refund HP any discountsagnmam payments paid during the
period we were in breach of the agreement and naisebHP for reasonable attornefegs. In the event the agreement is terminateddose ¢
if we fail to perform our obligations under the egment, our agreement with HP for the resale alymts, support and services will
automatically terminate upon such default or teation. If either party becomes insolvent or bankrthe other party may terminate the
agreement without notice and cancel any unfulfibbtigations, except for payment obligations. Saheur subsidiaries also have territorial
supplier agreements with subsidiaries of HP locatdtle respective countries.

In addition to HP, we have distribution agreemevits most of our suppliers. These agreements uspativide for nonexclusive
distribution rights and pertain to specific geodmaperritories. The agreements are also genesaltyt-term, subject to periodic renewal, and
often contain provisions permitting terminationdither our supplier or us without cause upon reddyi short notice. An OEM supplier that
elects to terminate a distribution agreement vathgrally repurchase its products carried in ouetrery.

Our distribution and design and integration bussrsbjects us to the risk that the value of oueimery will be affected adversely by
suppliers’price reductions or by technological changes afigahe usefulness or desirability of the prodwdsprising our inventory. Many
our OEM suppliers offer us limited protection frdhe loss in value of our inventory due to techn@abchange or a supplierprice reductior
Under many of these agreements, we have a limgedgbof time to return or exchange products ointlgrice protection credits. We monitor
our inventory levels and attempt to time our pusgisato maximize our protection under supplier @EDT.

Our Customers

We distribute IT products to more than 20,000 flesgl system integrators and retailers. Reselierglassified primarily by their end-
user customers. End-users include large corposatioenterprises, federal, state and local goventsnemall/medium sized businesses, or
SMBs, and individual consumers. In addition, resslivary greatly in size and geographic reach.r@eller customers buy from us and other
distributors. Our larger reseller customers alsp drrtain products directly from OEM suppliers. &ys integrators offer services in additior
product resale, primarily in systems customizatintegration, and deployment. Retailers serve mastlividual end-users and to a small
degree, small office/home office customers. We plewide data center servers and storage solutioifisspecific to our customers' datacenter
environments.

In our GBS segment, our customers are primarilyufeaturers of IT hardware and CE devices, devekpgsoftware, cloud service
providers, and broadcast and social media. We samel50 customers in this segment.

In fiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2011, no custormenwnted for 10% or more of our revenue. Some ofargest customers include Best
Buy Inc., CDW Corporation, Insight Enterprises,.Ji¢ewegg Inc. and SHI International Corporation.

Our Services

We offer a variety of business process servicemitaustomers. These services can be purchaseddinglly or they can be purchased in
combination with others in the form of supply chaglutions and aftemarket product support. The two major categorieseo¥ices include tf
following:

Distribution ServicesWe have sophisticated pick, pack and ship opemitiwhich allows us to efficiently receive shipmefntsn our
OEM suppliers and quickly fill orders for our rdseland retail customers. We generally stock oewtiise have access to the inventory of our
OEM suppliers to satisfy the demands of our resalhel retail customers.

BPO ServicesNVe offer a range of BPO services to customersitithide technical support, renewals managemerd, feg@nagement,
direct sales, customer service, back office prangsand information technology outsourcing. Manytlafse services are delivered and
supported on the proprietary software platforms Werhave developed to provide additional valueuncustomers.

The above major categories of services are compitrddy the following:

Design and Integration ServiceBhrough our Hyve Solutions division, we design amghufacture energy efficient and cost effective
datacenter servers and storage solutions whichultespecific to the datacenter environments actdal workloads of our large scale data
center customers. We provide our customers wittesys design and full rack integration servicesldstdg-order, or BTO, and configure-to-
order, or CTO, assembly capabilities. BTO asserbhgsists of building a group of systems with thmeagre-defined specifications, generally
for our customers’ inventory. CTO assembly congi$ts
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building a customized system for a customer’s iiatligl order specifications. In both cases, we affsign, integration, test and other
production value-added services such as kittingprrguration, asset tagging and hard drive imaging

Logistics ServicedVe provide logistics support to our reseller custmsrsuch as outsourced fulfillment, virtual disttibn and direct sh
to end-users. Other logistics support activitiegan@vide include generation of customized shipmloguments, multi-level serial number
tracking for customized, configured products antinenorder and shipment tracking. We also offel iuin-key logistics solutions designed to
address the needs of large volume or specialtgtiogiservices. Our full turn-key service offerisgnodular in nature and is designed to covel
all aspects of the logistics lifecycle includinggrisportation management, inventory optimizati@mglementary product matching, reverse
logistics, asset refurbishment and disposal aradegfic procurement.

Online ServicesWe maintain electronic data interchange, or EDiersible markup language or XML, and web-based conication
links with many of our reseller and retail customérhese links improve the speed and efficienayusftransactions with our customers by
enabling them to search for products, check invgrdawailability and prices, configure systems, pland track orders, receive invoices, reviev
account status and process returns. We also hawbased application software that allows our custsnor their end-user customers to order
software and take delivery online.

Financing ServicesNe offer our reseller customers a wide range @ftfoing options, including net terms, third partgdieg, floor plan
financing, letters of credit backed financing ancagements where we collect payments directly filoeend-user. The availability and terms
of our financing services are subject to our crpdlicies or those of third party financing provisiéo our customers.

Marketing Servicede offer our OEM suppliers a full range of markgtarctivities targeting resellers, system integisatond retailers
including direct mail, external media advertisingseller product training, targeted telemarketiagpaigns, national and regional trade shows
trade groups, database analysis, print on demanitas and web-based marketing.

Technical Solutions Servicedle provide our reseller customers technical supgemtices, including pre-sales and post-sales stippo
Sales and Marketing

For distribution, we serve our large commerciahggoment reseller and retail customers throughodeeld sales professionals. We me
to smaller resellers and OEMs through dedicatembnedjsales teams. In addition, we have dedicatedyzt management and business
development specialists that focus on the salgoammiotion of the products and services of selestggbliers or for specific end-market
verticals. These specialists are also directly vew in establishing new relationships with lead®gMs to create demand for their products
and services and with resellers for their custohmezeds. Our sales and marketing professionals anplemented by members of our exect
management team who are integral in identifyingepti&l new customer opportunities, promoting sghesvth and ensuring customer
satisfaction. We have sales and marketing profeatsan close geographic proximity to our reseltetail and OEM customers.

As part of our GBS segment, we have sales teanisaded to cultivating new BPO opportunities in ausér acquisition and
management, technical support and renewals manageme global platform.

Our Operations

In our distribution segment, we operate approxigat® distribution and administrative facilitiestine United States, Canada, Japan anc
Mexico. Our distribution processes are highly awdted to reduce errors, ensure timely order fulgiirhand enhance the efficiency of our
warehouse operations and back office administrafun distribution facilities are geographicallspérsed to be near reseller customers and
their end-users. This decentralized, regional efiaenables us to benefit from lower shipping caat$ shorter delivery lead times to our
customers. Furthermore, we track several performameasurements to continuously improve the effagieand accuracy of our distribution
operations. Our regional locations also enabl@umdke local deliveries and provide will-call flllfient to more customers than if our
distribution operations were more centralized, ltesyin better service to our customers. Our worké is comprised of permanent and
temporary employees, enabling us to respond td-¢&on changes in order activity.

Our proprietary IT systems and processes enalie aistomate many of our distribution operations. We radio frequency and bar code
scanning technologies in all of our warehouse djmraito maintain real-time inventory records, ligatie frequent cycle counts and improve
the accuracy of order fulfillment. We use hand-taddices to capture real-time labor cost datafioieftly manage our daily labor costs.
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To enhance the accuracy of our distribution ord#illfnent and protect our inventory from shrinkageir distribution systems also
incorporate numerous controls. These controls delrder weight checks, bar code scanning, andl senmber profile verification. We also
use digital video imaging to record our small pagkahipping activities by order. These images ahdravarehouse and shipping data are
available online to our customer service represimets enabling us to quickly respond to order iriga by our customers.

We operate our principal design and integratioiifes in the United States and we operate intggnafacilities in the United Kingdom.
We generally design and integrate IT systems, detéer servers, storage solutions and IT appliatgeimcorporating system components
from our distribution inventory and other sourdé&thin our Hyve Solutions division, we design andmuafacture customized, energy efficient
and cost effective data center servers and sta@lgéons. We provide systems and full rack intgraservices to our large scale data center
customers. Additionally, we perform production veladded services, including kitting, asset tagdiagd drive imaging and reconfiguration.
Our design and integration facilities are ISO 92008 and ISO 14001:2004 certified.

In our GBS segment, we provide a comprehensiveerafigervices to enhance the customer lifecycleaaagire, support and renew
customer relationships. These services primarihsist of direct sales, technical support, custoraee, lead management, renewals
management, back office processing and informagohnology outsourcing, or ITO, back office supdortsales, marketing and
administrative functions. We operate approxima8&ydelivery centers and administrative facilitivseveral countries. Services are provided
from these global locations to customers worldwidmultiple languages. The services are supponyaartiprietary technology to enable
efficient and secure customer contact through varimethods including voice, chat, web, email, douiedia and digital print.

International Operations

Approximately 26% of our total revenue for both flseal years 2013 and 2012 and 27% for fiscal Y€drl , originated outside of the
United States. Approximately 14% of our total raweffor fiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2011 were geeeéiin Canada. Approximately 10% ,
11% , and 12% of our total revenue for fiscal yed$3 , 2012 , and 2011, respectively, were geeéiiatJapan. A key element in our busines
strategy has been to locate our services in matkatsare cost beneficial, but low risk. For a di&gion of our net revenue by geographic re:
please see Note 14—Segment Information in Notéset@onsolidated Financial Statements.

Sales concentrations in foreign jurisdictions sabies to various risks, including the impact ofmpes in the value of these foreign
currencies relative to the US Dollar, which in tean impact reported sales.

Purchasing

Product costs represent our single largest expamddT and CE product inventory is one of our latgeorking capital investments.
Furthermore, product procurement from our OEM sigpplis a highly complex process that involves intise® programs, rebate programs, p
protection, volume and early payment discountsahdr arrangements. Consequently, efficient arecéffe purchasing operations are critical
to our success.

Our purchasing group works closely with many aasur organization, especially our product manageno work closely with our
OEM suppliers and our sales force, to understaeadofume and mix of IT products that should be pased. In addition, the purchasing gr
utilizes an internally developed, proprietary imf@tion systems application tool that further aidéorecasting future product demand based o
several factors, including historical sales levelgjected product life cycle and current and ptegteconomic conditions. Our information
system tool also tracks warehouse and channeliomelevels and open purchase orders on a realtises enabling us to stock inventory at &
regional level closer to the customer as well asctively manage our working capital resourcess Téwel of automation promotes greater
efficiencies of inventory management by replenighand turning inventory, as well as placing purehaiglers on a more frequent basis.
Furthermore, our system tool also allows for autieti@hecks and controls to prevent the generafiamocurate orders.

Managing our OEM supplier incentive programs isthaocritical function of our purchasing and prodonanagement teams. We attemp
to maximize the benefits of incentives, rebatesaidme and early payment discounts that our OEppkers offer us from time to time. We
carefully evaluate these supplier incentive beseétative to our product handling and carryingte@® that we do not overly invest in our
inventory. We also closely monitor inventory levetsa product-by-product basis and plan purchastake advantage of OEM supplier
provided price protection. By managing inventonyells and customer purchase patterns at each eégiamal distribution facilities, we can
minimize our shipping costs by stocking productarraur resellers and retailers, and their end-cisstomers.
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Financial Services

We offer various financing options to our customessvell as prepayment, credit card and cash avedglterms. We also collect
outstanding accounts receivable on behalf of csgller customers in certain situations. In issuiregit terms to our reseller and retail
customers, we closely and regularly monitor theediworthiness through our information systemegddrratings information and periodic
detailed credit file reviews by our financial sees staff. We have also purchased credit insuriane@me geographies to further control credit
risks. Finally, we establish reserves for estimatedlit losses in the normal course of businessan the overall quality and aging of the
accounts receivable portfolio, the existence afmétéd amount of credit insurance and specificalgntified customer risks.

We also sell to certain reseller customers pursigatftird party floor plan financing. The expensbarged by these financing companies
are subsidized either by our OEM suppliers or jpgidis. We generally receive payment from thesenfiimy companies within 15 to 30 days
from the date of sale, depending on the specifargement.

Information Technology

Within our distribution segment, our IT systems iaig@ the entire order cycle, including processirgjauer orders, customer billing and
payment tracking. These internally developed ITteys make our operations more efficient and providiility into our operations. We
believe our IT infrastructure is scalable to supparther growth. We continue to enhance and iniresur IT systems to improve product and
inventory management, streamline order and fulBiinprocesses, and increase operational flexibilitighin our GBS segment, we invest in
systems and infrastructure to enhance workforceagrment and improve productivity.

To allow our customers and suppliers to communiaatktransact business with us in an efficient@rsistent manner, we have
implemented a mix of proprietary and off-thkelf software programs that integrate our IT systavith those of our customers and supplier
particular, we maintain EDI, XML and web-based cammigation links with many of our reseller and retaistomers to enable them to search
for products, check real-time pricing, inventonaaability and specifications, place and track asjeeceive invoices and process returns.

Competition

We operate in a highly competitive environmenthhatthe United States and internationally. Theidduct industry is characterized by
intense competition, based primarily on producilaibdity, credit terms, price, speed and accuratgelivery, effectiveness of sales and
marketing programs, ability to tailor specific siddns to customer needs, quality and depth of prblilnes, pre-sale and post-sale technical
support, flexibility and timely response to desaranges, technological capabilities and produclityuaervice and support. We compete with
a variety of regional, national and internationabroduct distributors and manufacturers.

Our major competitors in IT product distributiorcinde Arrow Electronics, Inc., Avnet, Inc., Ingravicro, Inc., ScanSource, Inc., Tech
Data Corporation and Westcon Group and, to a lesdent, regional distributors. We also face coritipetfrom our OEM suppliers that sell
directly to resellers, retailers and end-users. dikgibution industry has historically undergoaad continues to undergo, consolidation. Over
the years, a number of providers within the ITribisttion industry exited or merged with other prbstis. We have participated in this
consolidation through our recent acquisitions gh&aom Canada Limited, Marubeni Infotec Corporatitatk of All Games, and New Age
Electronics, and we continue to evaluate other opportunities.

In our GBS segment, our competitors are both rediplayers as well as global companies. Our majargetitors include Accenture,
Convergys Corporation, ServiceSource Internatidnal, Stream Global Services, Sykes Enterprises Treleperformance and TeleTech
Holdings, Inc.

We constantly seek to expand our business intsgnémarily related to our core distribution busise@s well as other support, logistics,
BPO and related value-added services. In SepteRiis, we entered into an agreement with IBM to aeqiBM's customer care business to
expand our GBS segment. The initial closing ofahbeuisition is expected to occur in the first cdEnquarter of 2014 and is subject to
customary closing conditions, including regulatapprovals. Completion of the acquisition is expédteadd over 35,000 employees in six
continents, providing delivery capabilities in o¥r languages and servicing approximately 170 custs from more than 40 delivery centers.

As we enter new business areas, we may encoucteased competition from our current competitod@nnew competitors. Some of
our competitors are substantially larger and maselgeater financial, operating, manufacturing arastketing resources than us. Some of our
competitors may have broader geographic breadthaargk of services than us. Some may have mordagederelationships with their
existing customers. We attempt to offset our comipaz scale
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differences by focusing on a limited number of iegdOEMs in the distribution services segment apdumning a more efficient and low cost
operation, and by offering a high level of valueted and customer service in both the distributEmises and GBS segments.

Employees

As of November 30, 2013 , we had approximately Q3 full-time employees. Given the variability in our busim@nd the quick respor
time required by customers, it is critical that are able to rapidly ramp-up and ramp-down our djmral capabilities to maximize efficiency.
As a result, we frequently use a significant nundf@emporary or contract workers, which totalegragimately 1,000, on a full-time
equivalent basis, as of November 30, 20EXcept for our employees in China, our employa@esnot represented by a labor union, nor are
covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Wesicer our employee relations to be good.

Available Information

Our website is http://www.synnex.com. We make a@é free of charge, on or through our website fourtual Report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report$orm 8K and amendments to those reports, if any, or dilegs filed or furnished pursua
to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act assas reasonably practicable after electronicdllygfor furnishing these reports with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC. Infooma&ontained on our website is not a part of Béport. We have adopted a code of
ethics applicable to our employees including oimgipal executive, financial and accounting offigesind it is available free of charge, on our
website’s investor relations page.

The SEC maintains an Internet site at http://wwaigev that contains the Annual Report on Form 1@ukarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to thegserts, if any, or other filings filed or furnisth pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act, proxy and information statementsuss0All reports that we file with the SEC may lead and copied at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washingt@),d2D549. Information about the operation of thblRlReference Room can be obtained
by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

The following are certain risk factors that couftkat our business, financial results and resultsperations. These risk factors should be
considered in connection with evaluating the foviroking statements contained in this Annual ReparForm 10-K because these factors
could cause the actual results and conditionsfferdnaterially from those projected in the forwdodking statements. Before you invest in
Company, you should know that making such an imrest involves some risks, including the risks diésct below. The risks that have been
highlighted here are not the only ones that we.fH@ny of the risks actually occur, our busindssancial condition and results of operations
could be negatively affected. In that case, théitigaprice of our common stock could decline, and ynay lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to the Acquisition of IBM’s CustomerCare Business

Failure to complete the acquisition of IBM’s custoner care business could negatively impact our stogkice and the future of our
business and financial results.

We expect the initial closing for the acquisitidnBM’s customer care business to occur in the iedendar quarter of 2014, subject to
customary closing conditions and regulatory appiovehere is no assurance that we will receiventmessary regulatory approvals or satisfy
the other conditions for the completion of the asigon. If the acquisition is not completed foryareason, we will be subject to risks, includ
the following:

» the current market price of our common stock medlect a market assumption that the acquisitidhogcur, and a failure to complete
the acquisition could result in a negative peraapby the market of us generally and a resultirgice in the market price of our
common stock;

e we have incurred substantial transaction cad&ting to the acquisition (including significaeghl, accounting and consulting fees),
and these substantial costs are payable by us ahatimot the acquisition is completed;

» there may be a substantial disruption to ouirtass and a distraction of our management and gmgdofrom day-to-day operations
because matters related to the acquisition (inotpditegration planning) may require substantimhoutments of time and resources,
which could otherwise have been devoted to othpodpnities that could have been beneficial,

« the diversion of management time required by thgpisition could also adversely affect our resufteperations and lead to the los:
important customers; and

» the loss of existing key and other employees cadigersely affect our operations and business &
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In addition, we would not realize any of the expedbenefits of having completed the acquisitiothdf acquisition is not completed, these r
may materialize and materially adversely affectlousiness, financial results, financial conditionl &tock price.

We may not be able to realize all of the anticipattbenefits of the acquisition of IBM’s customer cage business if we fail to integrate this
business successfully, which could reduce our predbility and adversely affect our stock price.

If our proposed acquisition of IBM’s customer chresiness closes, our ability to realize the argigg benefits of the transaction will depend,
in part, on our ability to integrate this custornare business successfully and efficiently with lousiness. The integration of this business in
several geographic locations is a complex, costtytane-consuming process. The integration prooessdisrupt our business and, if
implemented ineffectively, preclude realizatiortlod full benefits expected by us. If we are notcgssful in this integration, our financial
results could be adversely impacted. Our managewidirite required to dedicate significant time agftbrt to this integration process, which
could divert their attention from other businesaaarns. In addition, the overall integration magutein unanticipated problems, expenses,
liabilities, competitive responses, loss of custoara other relationships, a loss of key employswsother employees, and diversion of
management’s attention, and may cause our stock fwidecline. The difficulties of combining theeogtions of the two businesses include,
among others:

» challenges associated with minimizing the diver@bmanagement attention from ongoing businesserms

» coordinating geographically separate organinatiohich may be subject to additional complicaticemilting from being
geographically distant from other parts of our agpiens;

» coordinating and combining international operatjortationships, and facilities, and eliminatingpticative operation
» retaining key employees and maintaining employegatapparticularly in areas where we do not culyemave personne

* unanticipated changes in general business dkghaonditions that might interfere with our alyiltb carry out all of our integration
plans;

e unanticipated issues in integrating informatiomoaunications and other systel
e issues not discovered in our due diligence procs
e preserving important strategic and customer ralatigs
In addition, even if the integration is successfi#, may not realize the full potential benefitdted acquisition. Such benefits may not be

achieved within the anticipated time frame, orlatAs a result, we cannot assure you that thisuesiion will result in the realization of the fu
benefits anticipated from the acquisition.
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Risks Related to Our Business

We anticipate that our revenue and operating resuft will fluctuate, which could adversely affect theenterprise value of our Company
and our securities.

Our operating results have fluctuated and will hate in the future as a result of many factorsluiging:

» the impact of the business acquisitions and disiposi we make

» general economic conditions and level of IT andspEndinc

» the loss or consolidation of one or more of ounsigant OEM suppliers or custome

» market acceptance, product mix, quality, pricingikbility and useful life of our produc

» market acceptance, quality, pricing and availabdit our service:

e competitive conditions in our indust

e pricing, margin and other terms with our OEM sugrd

« decline in inventory value as a result of produrdaescence and market accepte

» variations in our levels of excess inventory, vanegserves and doubtful accou

» changes in the terms of OEM supplieventory protections, such as price protection l@tdrn rights; ar

» the expansion of our design and integration saidsoperations, globall

Although we attempt to control our expense levibisse levels are based, in part, on anticipategihngy. Therefore, we may not be abl

control spending in a timely manner to compensatafy unexpected revenue shortfall.

Our operating results also are affected by theosedisy of the IT and CE products and services stidu We have historically experienc
higher sales in our fourth fiscal quarter due ttigyas in the capital budgeting, federal governnsgeinding and purchasing cycles of esé+s
These patterns may not be repeated in subsequémigeY ou should not rely on period-to-period carigons of our operating results as an
indication of future performance. The results of gnarterly period are not indicative of resultdtoexpected for a full fiscal year. In future
quarters, our operating results may be below opeetations or those of our public market analysiswestors, which would likely cause our
share price to decline.

We depend on a small number of OEMs to supply thelland CE products and services that we sell and thess of, or a material change
in our business relationship with a major OEM suppier, could adversely affect our business, financiglosition and operating results.

Our future success is highly dependent on ouriogighips with a small number of OEM suppliers. Example, sales of HP products and
services represented approximately 31%, 36%, afied &our total revenue for fiscal years 2013, 20&a8d 2011 , respectively. Our OEM
supplier agreements typically are shiettm and may be terminated without cause upon stotide. The loss or deterioration of our relattaps
with HP or any other major OEM supplier, the autkation by OEM suppliers of additional distributptise sale of products by OEM suppliers
directly to our reseller and retail customers amd-esers, or our failure to establish relationshiftt new OEM suppliers or to expand the
distribution and supply chain services that we teyYDEM suppliers could adversely affect our bussnéinancial position and operating
results. In addition, OEM suppliers may face liqtyiebr solvency issues that in turn could negativadfect our business and operating results.

Our business is also highly dependent on the tpnmdded by our OEM suppliers. Generally, each O&tMplier has the ability to
change the terms and conditions of its distribuigreements, such as reducing the amount of prateqtion and return rights or reducing the
level of purchase discounts, incentive rebatesnaaidketing programs available to us.

From time to time we may conduct business withgpher without a formal agreement because the ageeéhas expired or otherwise
terminated. In such case, we are subject to additiask with respect to products, warranties atdms, and other terms and conditions. If we



are unable to pass the impact of these changasgihito our reseller and retail customers, our mssinfinancial position and operating
results could be adversely affected.
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Our gross margins are low, which magnifies the impet of variations in revenue, operating costs and lthdebt on our operating results.

As a result of significant price competition in tfieand CE products and services industry, ourgmargins are low, and we expect tr
to continue to be low in the future. Increased cetitipn arising from industry consolidation and lo@mand for certain IT and CE products
and services may hinder our ability to maintaifmngprove our gross margins. These low gross mamiagnify the impact of variations in
revenue, operating costs and bad debt on our apgrasults. A portion of our operating expenseelatively fixed, and planned expenditures
are based in part on anticipated orders that aee#sted with limited visibility of future demantls a result, we may not be able to reduce our
operating expense as a percentage of revenueigataitiny further reductions in gross margins @fthiure. If we cannot proportionately
decrease our cost structure in response to cotiveatitice pressures, our business and operatindtsesould suffer.

Our design and integration services business regjairsignificant investment in plant and persofmogh time to time. We have recently
expanded our capacity to accommodate current denhamcever should future demand for the design atefjration services fail to meet
expectations, we may be unable to reduce our esstexpenses, which would adversely impact ouilteestioperations.

We also receive purchase discounts and rebates®oin suppliers based on various factors, includialgs or purchase volume and
breadth of customers. A decrease in net sales cagdtively affect the level of volume rebates gz from our OEM suppliers and thus, our
gross margins. Because some rebates from OEM supplie based on percentage increases in salesdoicgs, it may become more difficult
for us to achieve the percentage growth in salgsimed for larger discounts due to the current sizeur revenue base. A decrease or
elimination of purchase discounts and rebates fsanOEM suppliers would adversely affect our businend operating results.

Because we sell on a purchase order basis, we avbject to uncertainties and variability in demand by our reseller, retail and design
and integration services customers, which could dezase revenue and adversely affect our operating salts.

We sell to our reseller, retail and design andgraton services customers on a purchase ordes,vagier than pursuant to long-term
contracts or contracts with minimum purchase regoents. Consequently, our sales are subject tortterraiability by our reseller, retail and
design and integration services customers. The édktiming of orders placed by our customers ¥ana variety of reasons, including
seasonal buying by end-users, the introductioreef hardware and software technologies and genesaloenic conditions. Customers
submitting a purchase order may cancel, reducelaydheir orders. If we are unable to anticipate eespond to the demands of our reseller,
retail and design and integration services custepveg may lose customers because we have an irateéexupply of products, or we may have
excess inventory, either of which could harm owibess, financial position and operating results.

With regard to our design and integration servimgsiness, unique parts are purchased based bgilrcmase order or forecasted dem
We have limited protection against excess invensbiguld anticipated demand from our design angjiatéeon customers not materialize.

The success of our contact center and renewals mag@anent business is subject to the terms and conditis of our customer contracts.

We provide contact center support services andyailsemanagement services to our customers undéactsmwith provisions that could
impact our profitability. Many of our contracts lashort termination provisions that could causetélations in our revenue and operating
results from period to period. For example, sonm@reats have performance-related bonus or penedjigions, whereby we could receive a
bonus if we satisfy certain performance levelsarehto pay a penalty for failing to do so. The pamgs that we put in place for our customer
products may not be accepted by the market. Irtiaddivith respect to our contact center business customers may not guarantee a
minimum call volume; however, we hire employeeseasn anticipated average call volumes. The redinctf call volume, loss of any
customers, payment of any penalties for failurméet performance levels or inability to terminatg anprofitable contracts could have an
adverse impact on our operations and financialtesu

Our renewals management business is subject to dyméc changes in the business model and competitiowhich in turn could cause our
GBS operations to suffer.

The software and hardware renewals managemenharmistomer management operations of our GBS sdgamesent emerging
markets that are vulnerable to numerous changésaiéd cause a shift in the business and sizheofrtarket. For example, if software and
hardware customers move to a utility or fee-fonmer based business model, this business modebgehaould significantly impact operations
or cause a significant shift in the way businesauigently
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conducted. If OEMs place more focus in this arehiaternalize these operations, then this could edaise a significant reduction in the siz
the available market for third party service pr@r&l Similarly, if competitors offer their servicasbelow market margin rates to “buy”
business, or use other lines of business to sueside renewals management business, then thid cause a significant reduction in the siz
the available market. In addition, if a cloud-basetlition or some other technology were introdudied, new technology could cause an
adverse shift in the way our renewals managemeariatipns are conducted or decrease the size afvtiiable market.

We are subject to the risk that our inventory valuemay decline, and protective terms under our OEM spplier agreements may not
adequately cover the decline in value, which in tur may harm our business, financial position and opating results.

The IT and CE products industry is subject to rapahnological change, new and enhanced producifia¢ion requirements, and
evolving industry standards. These changes mayedausntory on hand to decline substantially inueabr to rapidly become obsolete. Mos
our OEM suppliers offer limited protection from tlss in value of inventory. For example, we cateree a credit from many OEM suppliers
for products held in inventory in the event of @glier price reduction. In addition, we have a tewli right to return a certain percentage of
purchases to most OEM suppliers. These policiesfaea subject to time restrictions and do not@cbus in all cases from declines in
inventory value. In addition, our OEM suppliers nimcome unable or unwilling to fulfill their proté&m obligations to us. The decrease or
elimination of price protection, or the inabilitf aur OEM suppliers to fulfill their protection abhtions, could lower our gross margins and
cause us to record inventory write-downs. If wewarable to manage our inventory with our OEM sugagliwith a high degree of precision, we
may have insufficient product supplies or we mayehexcess inventory, resulting in inventory writahs, either of which could harm our
business, financial position and operating results.

We depend on OEM suppliers to maintain an adequatsupply of products to fulfill customer orders on atimely basis, and any supply
shortages or delays could cause us to be unabletitmely fulfill orders, which in turn could harm our business, financial position and
operating results.

Our ability to obtain particular products in thejuired quantities and to fulfill reseller and rétaistomer orders on a timely basis is
critical to our success. In most cases, we havguaoanteed price or delivery agreements with ouGHppliers. We occasionally experience
a supply shortage of certain products as a reéstrang demand or problems experienced by our GEppliers. For example, in fiscal years
2011 and 2012, we experienced shortage in haréslifrom OEM suppliers in Thailand due to floodssHbrtages or delays persist, the price ¢
those products may increase, or the products malgenavailable at all. In addition, our OEM supgienay decide to distribute, or to
substantially increase their existing distributlmrsiness, through other distributors, their owneteaetworks, or directly to resellers, retailers
or end-users. Accordingly, if we are not able touse and maintain an adequate supply of produdtdfith our reseller and retail customer
orders on a timely basis, our business, finan@altipn and operating results could be adversdictdd.

The market for CE products that we distribute is ctaracterized by short product life cycles. Increasedompetition for limited retailer
shelf space, decreased promotional support from reBers or retailers or increased popularity of dowhoadable or online content and
services could adversely impact our revenue.

The market for CE products, such as personal coenpand tablets, mobile devices, wearable deviigsp game titles and hardware,
and audio or visual equipment, is characterizedhayt product life cycles and frequent introducsiaf new products. For example, the life
cycle of a video game is short and typically pregd relatively high level of sales only for thestfifew months after introduction of the game.
The markets in which we compete frequently intredoew products to meet changing consumer prefeseara trends. As a result,
competition is intense for resellers' and retdilérsted shelf space and promotions. If our verstiaew products are not introduced in a timely
manner or do not achieve significant market acce@awe may not generate sufficient sales or @ioifity. Further, if we are unable to
successfully compete for resellers' or retailgrate and promotional resources, this could nedgtiact market acceptance of our products
and negatively impact our business and operatisigitse In addition, increased consumer use of doaddble content and online services and
the further integration of technological tasks eutly requiring several different CE products magatively affect our CE product distribution
business and operating results, as they may rethreeimer demand for having several different edeats devices and other physical
products. For example, the popularity of downlodgl@nd online games has increased and continueebises in downloadable and online
gaming may result in a reduced level of over-thenter retail video games sales.
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Because we conduct substantial operations in Chindsks associated with economic, political and saaievents in China could negativel
affect our business and operating results.

A substantial portion of our IT systems operatiansluding our IT systems support and software tigument operations, is located in
China. In addition, we also conduct general andiaidtnative activities from our facilities in ChinAs of November 30, 2013 , we had
approximately 950 support personnel located in &h@ur operations in China are subject to a nurabesks relating to China’s economic
and political systems, including:

« agovernment controlled foreign exchange rate anitidtions on the convertibility of the Chinese Reénbi;
» extensive government regulati
» changing governmental policies relating to tardfits available to foreigawned businesse
» the telecommunications infrastructt
» arelatively uncertain legal system; .
* uncertainties related to continued economic anthkoeform
Our IT systems are an important part of our glalpdrations. Any significant interruption in servieenether resulting from any of the

above uncertainties, natural disasters or othenrws@d result in delays in our inventory purchagsiarrors in order fulfillment, reduced levels
of customer service and other disruptions in ojenat any of which could cause our business andatipg results to suffer.

We may have higher than anticipated tax liabilities

We conduct business globally and file income tadurres in various tax jurisdictions. Our effectiextrate could be adversely affected by
several factors, many of which are outside of auntiol, including:

» changes in income before taxes in various jurigahistin which we operate that have differing statytax rate:

» changing tax laws, regulations, and/or interpretegiof such tax laws in multiple jurisdictio

» effect of tax rate on accounting for acquisitionsl aisposition:

e issues arising from tax audit or examinations amdralated interest or penalties; .

* uncertainty in obtaining tax holiday extensionggpiration or loss of tax holidays in various jdlitstions

We report our results of operations based on ot@rhénation of the amount of taxes owed in varitaxsjurisdictions in which we

operate. The determination of our worldwide prawisior income taxes and other tax liabilities regsiestimation, judgment and calculations
where the ultimate tax determination may not béager Our determination of tax liability is alwagabject to review or examination by tax
authorities in various tax jurisdictions. Any adsemutcome of such review or examination could fzamegative impact on our operating

results and financial condition. The results froanious tax examinations and audit may differ fréw liabilities recorded in our financial
statements and could adversely affect our finamewults and cash flows.

We have pursued and intend to continue to pursue gitegic acquisitions or investments in new marketand may encounter risks
associated with these activities, which could harrmaur business and operating results.

We have in the past pursued and in the future eéxpgmursue acquisitions of, or investments injfesses and assets in new markets,
either within or outside the IT and CE products aadrices industry, that complement or expand gistiag business. Our acquisition strategy
involves a number of risks, including:

« difficulty in successfully integrating acquired eggons, IT systems, customers, and OEM suppliatiomships, products and servic
and businesses with our operations;

» loss of key employees of acquired operations driiitato hire key employees necessary for our egien

« diversion of our capital and management attentiwayafrom other business issL



increase in our expenses and working capital reqments
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» inthe case of acquisitions that we may maksidatof the United States, difficulty in operatingoreign countries and over
significant geographical distances; and

« other financial risks, such as potential liabibtief the businesses we acqt

We may incur additional costs and consolidate gseredundant expenses in connection with our adépris and investments, which
have an adverse impact on our operating marginaré&acquisitions, including the acquisition of tB& customer care business, may resu
dilutive issuances of equity securities, the inence of additional debt, large write-offs, a desecia future profitability, or future losses. The
incurrence of debt in connection with any futurgusitions could restrict our ability to obtain vkorg capital or other financing necessary to
operate our business. Our recent and future atiguisior investments may not be successful, ane ifail to realize the anticipated benefits of
these acquisitions or investments, our busines®parating results could be harmed.

Because of the capital-intensive nature of our busess, we need continued access to capital, whicimdt available to us or if not
available on favorable terms, could harm our abiliy to operate or expand our business.

Our business requires significant levels of capadinance accounts receivable and product invgritwat is not financed by trade
creditors. If cash from available sources is insight, proceeds from our accounts receivable $iation and revolving credit programs are
limited or cash is used for unanticipated needsmag require additional capital sooner than angitgg.

In the event we are required, or elect, to raigbtiachal funds, we may be unable to do so on faveréerms, or at all, and may incur
expenses in raising the additional funds. Our euraad future indebtedness could adversely affecbperating results and severely limit our
ability to plan for, or react to, changes in ousiness or industry. We could also be limited byficial and other restrictive covenants in
securitization or credit arrangements, includimgitiations on our borrowing of additional funds assling dividends. Furthermore, the cost of
securitization or debt financing could significgnithcrease in the future, making it cost prohildtie securitize our accounts receivable or
borrow, which could force us to issue new equityusities. If we issue new equity securities, erigtstockholders may experience dilution, or
the new equity securities may have rights, prefegeror privileges senior to those of existing hidad# common stock. If we cannot raise fu
on acceptable terms, we may not be able to takeradge of future opportunities or respond to coitipetpressures or unanticipated
requirements. Any inability to raise additional itapwhen required could have an adverse effeciwrbusiness and operating results.

The terms of our debt arrangements impose signific# restrictions on our ability to operate which inturn could negatively affect our
ability to respond to business and market conditioa and therefore could have an adverse effect on obusiness and operating results.

As of November 30, 2013, we had $317.9 milliomiristanding short and long-term borrowings undenteans, lines of credit,
accounts receivable securitization programs andatdpases, excluding trade payables. The ternmefor more of the agreements under
which this indebtedness was incurred may limitestrict, among other things, our ability to:

e incur additional indebtedne

e pay dividends or make certain other restricted pays

e consummate certain asset sales or acquisi

* enter into certain transactions with affiliatesg

* merge, consolidate or sell, assign, transfer, leamesey or otherwise dispose of all or substalgtel of our asset

We are also required to maintain specified finaneitios and satisfy certain financial conditiostss including a leverage and a fixed
charge coverage ratio as outlined in our seniourgekccredit arrangement. Our inability to meet ¢heegtios and tests could result in the
acceleration of the repayment of the related dbbttermination of the facility, the increase irr effective cost of funds or the cross-default of
other credit and securitization arrangements. Aesalt, our ability to operate may be restricted aar ability to respond to business and
market conditions may be limited, which could haneadverse effect on our business and operatingises
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We may not be able to generate sufficient cash tervice all of our indebtedness and may be forced take other actions to satisfy our
obligations.

Our ability to make scheduled debt payments oetimance our debt obligations depends on our fiigand operating performance,
which is subject to prevailing economic and contpeticonditions and to certain financial, businasd other factors beyond our control. We
cannot be certain that we will maintain a leveta$h flows from operating activities sufficientgermit us to pay the principal, premium, if
any, and interest on our indebtedness.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insigffit to fund our debt service obligations, we rhayforced to reduce or delay capital
expenditures, sell assets or operations, seeki@utlitapital or restructure or refinance our indelbess. We cannot be certain that we would
be able to take any of these actions, that thesenaavould be successful and permit us to meesolieduled debt service obligations or that
these actions would be permitted under the ternosipéxisting or future debt agreements. In theabs of such operating results and
resources, we could face substantial liquidity peois and might be required to dispose of matesséts or operations to meet our debt servic
and other obligations. Some of our credit faciitiestrict our ability to dispose assets and usg@tbceeds from the disposition. As such, we
may not be able to consummate those dispositions@gany resulting proceeds and, in addition, pucbeeds may not be adequate to mee
debt service obligations then due.

If we cannot make scheduled payments on our debtyilbe in default and, as a result:

« our lenders could declare all outstanding princiga interest to be due and paye

» the lenders under our credit agreements couahdin@te their commitments to loan us money anthéncase of our secured credit
agreements, foreclose against the assets sechdimdorrowings;

« we could be forced to raise additional capital tigto the issuance of additional, potentially dilatigecurities; ar

» we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidatievhich is likely to result in delays in the paymef our indebtedness and in the
exercise of enforcement remedies related to owghitatiness.

A portion of our revenue is financed by floor planfinancing companies and any termination or reductio in these financing
arrangements could increase our financing costs arftarm our business and operating results.

A portion of our product distribution revenue isdnced by floor plan financing companies. Floonglaancing companies are engaged
by our customers to finance, or floor, the purchafgeroducts from us. In exchange for a fee, wadfar the risk of loss on the sale of our
products to the floor plan companies. We currergbeive payment from these financing companiesimapproximately 15 to 30 days from
the date of the sale, which allows our businessperate at much lower relative working capital Iswtban if such programs were not available
If these floor plan arrangements are terminatesbibstantially reduced, the need for more workingjtahand the increased financing cost
could harm our business and operating results.

We have significant credit exposure to our customeat and negative trends in their businesses coulduse us significant credit loss and
negatively impact our cash flow and liquidity positon.

We extend credit to our customers for a signifiqaortion of our sales to them and they have a gesfdime, generally 30 days after the
date of invoice, to make payment. As a result, reesabject to the risk that our customers will pay on time or at all. The majority of our
customers are small and medium sized businesseréliit exposure risk may increase due to findrtifficulties or liquidity or solvency
issues experienced by our customers, resultiniggin inability to repay us. The liquidity or solv@nissues may increase as a result of an
economic downturn or a decrease in IT or CE spendynend-users. If we are unable to collect paysigna timely manner from our
customers due to changes in financial or econouwriditions, or for other reasons, and we are unabtellect under our credit insurance
policies, we may write-off the amount due from thustomers. These write-offs may result in creditirance being more expensive and on
terms that are less favorable to us and may neggiimpact our ability to utilize accounts receilebased financing. These circumstances
could negatively impact our cash flow and liquiditysition. Further, we are exposed to higher ctilaaisk as we continue to expand
internationally, where the payment cycles are gahelonger and the credit rating process may moa$ robust as in the United States.

In addition, the revenue from our Mexico operatiordudes various long-term projects funded by gomeent and other local agencies,
which often involve extended payment terms andregtital penalties and could expose us to additionlédction risks.
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We may suffer adverse consequences from changingénest rates.

Our borrowings and securitization arrangementsarible-rate obligations that could expose usiterest rate risks. If interest rates
increase, our interest expense would increase hwhatild negatively affect our net income. An ingeén interest rates may increase our
future borrowing costs and restrict our accesafutal.

Additionally, current market conditions, recoverigighal economy, and overall credit conditions ddirhit our availability of capital,
which could cause increases in interest marginagirever underlying indices, effectively increading cost of our borrowing. While some of
our credit facilities have contractually negotiaggueads, terms such as these are subject to gngegotiations.

We are dependent on a variety of IT and telecommunations systems and the Internet, and any failurefdghese systems could adversely
impact our business and operating results.

We depend on IT and telecommunications systemstenbhternet for our operations. These systemsatippvariety of functions
including inventory management, order processihigpsng, shipment tracking, billing, and our BPGslmess.

Failures or significant downtime of our IT or teb@emunications systems could prevent us from takirgjomer orders, printing product
pick-lists, shipping products, billing customersldrandling call volume. Sales also may be affeiftedr reseller and retail customers are
unable to access our pricing and product avaitghitformation. We also rely on the Internet, angarticular electronic data interchange, or
EDI, and XML, for a large portion of our orders anébrmation exchanges with our OEM suppliers aggketler and retail customers. The
Internet and individual websites have experiencadraber of disruptions and slowdowns, some of whiehe caused by organized attacks. In
addition, some websites have experienced secuggkidowns. If we were to experience a securitykutean, disruption or breach that
compromised sensitive information, it could harm lationship with our OEM suppliers and rese#ied retail customers. Disruption of our
website or the Internet in general could impair orger processing or more generally prevent our Giappliers and reseller and retail
customers from accessing information. Our BPO lassinis dependent upon telephone and data servimaded by third party
telecommunications service vendors and our IT al@tdbmmunications system. Any significant increaseur IT and telecommunications
costs or temporary or permanent loss of our ITelmcdommunications systems could harm our relatipsshith our customers. The occurrence
of any of these events could have an adverse effeotir operations and financial results.

We rely on independent shipping companies for delery of products, and price increases or service ietruptions from these carriers
could adversely affect our business and operatingsults.

We rely almost entirely on arrangements with ineshefeat shipping companies, such as FedEx and UP8dalelivery of our products
from OEM suppliers and delivery of products to teseand retail customers. Freight and shippinggea can have a significant impact on our
gross margin. As a result, an increase in freighttsarges due to rising fuel cost or general griceeases will have an immediate adverse
effect on our margins, unless we are able to gasgitreased charges to our reseller and retdibcigs's or renegotiate terms with our OEM
suppliers. In addition, in the past, carriers hexperienced work stoppages due to labor negotmtioth management. An increase in freigt
shipping charges, the termination of our arrangeseith one or more of these independent shipporgpanies, the failure or inability of one
or more of these independent shipping companidslteer products, or the unavailability of theiighing services, even temporarily, could
have an adverse effect on our business and opgrasuilts.

Changes in foreign exchange rates and limitationsnathe convertibility of foreign currencies could adrersely affect our business and
operating results.

In both fiscal years 2013 and 2012 , approxima2é6 of our total revenue was generated outsidéthied States. Most of our
international revenue, cost of revenue and operaipenses are denominated in foreign currenciespidsently have currency exposure
arising from both sales and purchases denominat&deign currencies. Changes in exchange rategeleet foreign currencies and the U.S.
dollar may adversely affect our operating margis. example, if these foreign currencies appre@gtenst the U.S. dollar, it will make it
more expensive in terms of U.S. dollars to purchiagentory or pay expenses with foreign currencidsgs could have a negative impact to
revenue related to these purchases is transacté@irdollars. In addition, currency devaluation casult in a loss to us if we hold deposits of
that currency and make our products, which arellysparchased by us with U.S. dollars, relativelgna expensive than products manufact
locally. We currently conduct only limited hedgiagtivities, which involve the use of currency fordi@ontracts. Hedging foreign currencies
can be risky. There is also additional risk if therency is not freely or actively traded. Someencies, such as the Chinese Renminbi, Indiar
Rupee and Philippines Peso, are subject to liitaton conversion into other currencies, whichlait our ability to hedge or to otherwise
react to rapid foreign currency devaluations. Wenoa predict the impact of future exchange ratetflations on our business and operating
results.
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Because of the experience of our key personnel inet IT and CE industries and their technological andndustry expertise, if we were to
lose any of our key personnel, it could inhibit ourability to operate and grow our business successiu

We are dependent in large part on our ability tairethe services of our key senior executivesathdr technological and industry
experts and personnel. Except for Kevin Murai, Bresident and Chief Executive Officer, our emplayaed executives generally do not have
employment agreements. Furthermore, we do not ¢eesyperson’insurance coverage for any of our key executives.cémpete for qualifie
senior management and technical personnel. Thefpss inability to hire, key executives or quaid employees could inhibit our ability to
operate and grow our business successfully.

We may experience theft of product from our warehoses, water damage to our properties and other casliysaevents which could harm
our operating results.

From time to time, we have experienced incidentheft at various facilities, water damages to naperties and other casualty events.
These types of incidents may make it more difficulexpensive for us to obtain insurance coveragdee future. Also, the same or similar
incidents may occur in the future for which we nmay have sufficient insurance coverage or polinyit to be fully compensated for the loss,
which may have an adverse effect on our busineddimancial results.

We may become involved in intellectual property oother disputes that could cause us to incur substéal costs, divert the efforts of out
management, and require us to pay substantial damag or require us to obtain a license, which may ndte available on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all.

From time to time, we receive notifications alleginfringements of intellectual property rightsegjedly held by others relating to our
business or the products we sell or assemble foO&M suppliers and others. Litigation with respicpatents or other intellectual property
matters could result in substantial costs and digarof management and other resources and coutddraadverse effect on our business.
Although we generally have various levels of inddroation protection from our OEM suppliers and idgsand integration services custom:
in many cases any indemnification to which we mayehtitled is subject to maximum limits or othestrietions.

In addition, we have developed proprietary IT systemobile applications, and cloud-based technotogyacquired GBS related
renewals technology that play an important roleun business. If any infringement claim is sucadssfiainst us and if indemnification is not
available or sufficient, we may be required to papstantial damages or we may need to seek anith @biaense of the other party’s
intellectual property rights. We may be unablelitat such a license on commercially reasonabiegeif at all.

We are from time to time involved in other litigatiin the ordinary course of business. We may edatuzcessful in defending these or
other claims. Regardless of the outcome, litigatiould result in substantial expense and couldrdihe efforts of our management.

We have significant operations concentrated in Nohit America, Central America, Asia and Europe and anydisruption in the operations
of our facilities could harm our business and operting results.

Our worldwide operations could be subject to ndtdisasters, adverse weather conditions and otlginéss disruptions, which could
seriously harm our revenue and financial condidiod increase our costs and expenses. We haveicagribperations in our facilities located
in North America, Central America, Asia and Eurofis.a result, any prolonged disruption in the opers of our facilities, whether due to
technical difficulties, power failures, break-imgstruction or damage to the facilities as a resfudt natural disaster, fire or any other reason,
could harm our operating results. If there areteelalisruptions in local or international supphaits, we may experience supply shortages or
delays in receiving products from our OEM suppliergxperience other delays in shipping to ourausts. If we are unable to fulfill
customer orders in a timely manner, this could haamoperating results. For example, in March 20&pan experienced a 9.0 magnitude
earthquake followed by tsunami waves and aftershothese events affected the infrastructure ircthmtry, caused power outages and
temporarily disrupted the local and internatiosalpply chains for some vendors. Our facilitiesapah suffered nominal inventory and facility
damages. We expect our operations in Japan witiraomto be affected by the continuing consequen€esich natural disasters. In addition,
our Philippines operation is at greater risk duadeerse weather conditions, such as typhoons, lidadsnd floods. We currently do not have
a formal disaster recovery plan and may not haffecent business interruption insurance to compgég$or losses that could occur.
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Global health and economic, political and social ¢alitions may harm our ability to do business, incrase our costs and negatively affect
our stock price.

Worldwide economic conditions have experiencedifiggmt volatility due to the credit conditions imgted by the subprime mortgage
crisis and other factors, including slower econoadtivity which may impact our results of operatiokxternal factors, such as potential
terrorist attacks, acts of war, geopolitical andialcturmoil or epidemics and other similar outtk&& many parts of the world, could prevent
or hinder our ability to do business, increaseamsts and negatively affect our stock price, whiicturn, may require us to record an
impairment in the carrying value of our goodwillok& generally, these geopolitical social and ecao@onditions could result in increased
volatility in the United States and worldwide fircdal markets and economy. For example, increasstdhility may adversely impact the desire
of employees and customers to travel, the religtalind cost of transportation and our ability téao adequate insurance at reasonable rates
and may require us to incur increased costs farrgganeasures for our domestic and internatioparations. We are predominantly uninsu
for losses and interruptions caused by terrorisits @f war and similar events. These uncertaimiiake it difficult for us and our customers to
accurately plan future business activities. Wh#eeral economic conditions have recently begumfwrave, there is no assurance that this
trend will continue or at what rate.

Part of our business is conducted outside of the lited States, exposing us to additional risks that &y not exist in the United States,
which in turn could cause our business and operatmnresults to suffer.

We have international operations which are sultfedsks, including:

e political or economic instabilit

e extensive governmental regulati

« changes in import/export duti

» trade restriction:

» compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices AtK. bribery laws and similar lawn

» difficulties and costs of staffing and managingrapiens in certain foreign countri

» work stoppages or other changes in labor condi

» difficulties in collecting of accounts receivable a timely basis or at &

. taxes; an

e seasonal reductions in business activity in sonnes pd the worlc

We may continue to expand internationally to resptancompetitive pressure and customer and magkglirements. Establishing
operations in any other foreign country or regioesents risks such as those described above aaswitks specific to the particular countn
region. In addition, until a payment history isaddished over time with customers in a new geogragptregion, the likelihood of collecting
accounts receivable generated by such operatiand be less than our expectations. As a resultetisea greater risk that reserves set with
respect to the collection of such accounts recédvatay be inadequate. In addition, the revenueveldrirom our Mexico operation includes
various long-term projects with government and othgblic agencies that involve extended paymemseznd could expose us to additional
collection risks. Furthermore, if our internatioeaipansion efforts in any foreign country are uesssful, we may decide to cease operations
which would likely cause us to incur additional erpe and loss.

In addition, changes in policies or laws of the tddiStates or foreign governments resulting in,regrather things, higher taxation,
currency conversion limitations, restrictions onduransfers or the expropriation of private entegs, could reduce the anticipated benefits o
our international expansion. Any actions by cowstin which we conduct business to reverse poltbigsencourage foreign trade or
investment could adversely affect our businesselfail to realize the anticipated growth of outuite international operations, our business
operating results could suffer.

Our investments in our BPO business could adversebffect our operating results as a result of oper&n execution risks related to
managing and communicating with remote resourcesgthnologies, customer satisfaction and employee hover.



Our BPO business in Costa Rica, India and the gthiles may be adversely impacted if we are unabheanage and communicate with
these remote resources. Service quality may beglatrisk and our ability to optimize our resosrogay
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be more complicated if we are unable to manageesgurces remotely. BPO businesses use a widdyafigechnologies to allow them to
manage a large volume of work. These technologisare that employees are kept productive. Any ffaiin technology may impact the
business adversely. The success of our BPO buginiesarily depends on performance of our employa®kresulting customer satisfaction.
Any increase in average waiting time or handlimgetior lack of promptness or technical expertiseusfemployees will directly impact
customer satisfaction. Any adverse customer satisfamay impact the overall business. Generatlg,employee turnover rate in the BPO
business and the risk of losing experienced emp®y® competitors are high. Higher turnover ratessiase recruiting and training costs and
decrease operating efficiencies and productivityd are unable to successfully manage our sepgogers, our results of operations could be
adversely affected and we may not fully realizeahgcipated benefits of our recent acquisitions.

Risks Related to Our Relationship with MiTAC Holdings Corporation

As of November 30, 2013, our executive officersirdctors and principal stockholders owned approximaely 28% of our common stock
and this concentration of ownership could allow thm to influence all matters requiring stockholder approval and could delay or
prevent a change in control of SYNNEX.

As of November 30, 2013, our executive officeisgctors and principal stockholders owned approxitya?8% of our outstanding
common stock. In particular, MiTAC Holdings andé$iliates owned approximately 26% of our commuock. Until September 2013,
MITAC International Corporation, or MiTAC Internatial, a publicly-traded company in Taiwan, was mumary investor through its
affiliates. In September 2013, MiTAC Holdings Coraiion, or MiTAC Holdings, was established throwgktock swap from MITAC
International and became a publicly traded compmanthe Taiwan Stock Exchange. MiTAC Internatiosahow a wholly owned subsidiary of
MITAC Holdings.

MITAC Holdings' interests and ours may increasingiyflict. For example, until July 2010, we relied MiTAC Holdings for certain
manufacturing and supply services and for relatigpswith certain key customers. In July 2010, weaunced that we had signed a definitive
sales agreement to sell certain assets relateat toootract assembly business to MiTAC Holdingse THansaction included the sale of
inventory and customer contracts, primarily relatedustomers then being jointly serviced by MiTAGIdings and us. Also, as part of the
transaction, we provided MiTAC Holdings with certdfansition services for the business on a feeslma®r the next several quarters. Since
completion of the transition services, we no lorjgerttly service any current customers with MiTA®Idings. In addition, we may not solicit
the same contract assembly customers in the future.

There could be potential conflicts of interest bet@en us and MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates, whichcould impact our business and
operating results.

MITAC Holdings' and its affiliates’ continuing beiigal ownership of our common stock could createfticts of interest with respect to
a variety of matters, such as potential acquissti@@mpetition, issuance or disposition of seasijtelection of directors, payment of dividends
and other business matters. Similar risks couldted a result of Matthew Miau’s positions as obai@nan Emeritus, a member of our Board
of Directors, the Chairman of MiTAC Holdings andaadirector or officer of MiTAC Holdings' affiliage For fiscal year 2013, Mr. Miau
received the same compensation as our indepentleotads. For fiscal year 2014, Mr. Miau will regeithe same compensation as our
independent directors. Mr. Miau’s compensationras af our directors is based upon the approvat@Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee, which is solely composeddépendent members of the Board. We also have edlagbolicy requiring material
transactions in which any of our directors has tiptial conflict of interest to be approved by édudit Committee, which is also composed of
independent members of the Board.

Synnex Technology International Corp., or Synneghfmlogy International, a publicly-traded compamagdd in Taiwan and affiliated
with MITAC Holdings, currently provides distributicand fulfillment services to various markets inaAand Australia, and is also a potential
competitor of ours. As of November 30, 2013 , MiTAorporated, a privately-held company based iwd@a and a separate entity from
MITAC Holdings, directly and indirectly owned appimately 13.6% of Synnex Technology Internatiorad approximately 8.1% of MiTAC
Holdings. As of November 30, 2013 , MiTAC Holdindisectly and indirectly owned 0.1% of Synnex Tedogg International and Synnex
Technology International directly and indirectly m@d approximately 0.9% of MiTAC Holdings. In additi MiTAC Holdings directly and
indirectly owned approximately 8.7% of MiTAC Incanm@ated and Synnex Technology International direatlgl indirectly owned
approximately 18.4% of MiTAC Incorporated as of iawer 30, 2013 . Synnex Technology Internatiorditéctly through its ownership of
Peer Developments Limited owned approximately 1104%ur outstanding common stock as of Novembe28@;3 . Neither MiTAC
Holdings, nor Synnex Technology International strieted from competing with us. In the future, may increasingly compete with Synnex
Technology International, particularly if our busgs in Asia expands or Synnex Technology Internatiexpands its business into geograp
or customers we serve. Although Synnex Technolatgrhational is a
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separate entity from us, it is possible that theitiebe confusion as a result of the similarityafr names. Moreover, we cannot limit or control
the use of the Synnex name by Synnex Technologyrational in certain geographies and our usesfimnnex name may be restricted as a
result of registration of the name by Synnex Tedbgy International or the prior use in jurisdictiowhere it currently operates.

Risks Related to Our Industry
Volatility in the IT and CE industries could have amaterial adverse effect on our business and opeiag results.

We have in the past experienced decreases in deamainte anticipate that the industries we operatell be subject to a high degree of
cyclicality in the future. Softening demand for quoducts and services caused by an ongoing ecoradominturn and over-capacity may
impact our revenue, as well the salability of inieey and collection of reseller and retail customecounts receivable.

While in the past, we may have benefited from ctidation in our industry resulting from delays eductions in IT or CE spending in
particular, and economic weakness in general, aaly golatility in the IT and CE industries couldveaan adverse effect on our business and
operating results.

Our business may be adversely affected by some OEddppliers’ strategies to increase their direct sak which in turn could cause our
business and operating results to suffer.

Consolidation of OEM suppliers has resulted in fesaurces for some of the products and servicesmbalistribute. This consolidation
has also resulted in larger OEM suppliers that Isageificant operating and financial resources. 8@&M suppliers, including some of the
leading OEM suppliers that we service, have bebimgeroducts and services directly to reselled agtail customers and end-users, thereby
limiting our business opportunities. If large OENpgliers increasingly sell directly to end-user®or resellers and retailers, rather than use
as the distributor of their products and servioes,business and operating results will suffer.

OEMs could limit the number of supply chain serviceproviders with which they do business, which in ttn could negatively impact our
business and operating results.

A determination by any of our primary OEMSs to cdidste their business with other distributors degration service providers could
negatively affect our business and operating reslritparticular, the termination of our contragtHtP would have a significant negative effect
on our revenue and operating results.

The IT and CE industries are subject to rapidly chaaging technologies and process developments, and may not be able to adequately
adjust our business to these changes, which in tummould harm our business and operating results.

Dynamic changes in the IT and CE industries, indgdhe consolidation of OEM suppliers and reduddion the number of authorized
distributors used by OEM suppliers, have resultedew and increased responsibilities for managemensonnel and have placed, and
continue to place, a significant strain upon ounagement, operating and financial systems and o&éseurces. We may be unable to
successfully respond to and manage our busindgghtrof industry developments and trends. Alsac@lito our success in managing our
operations is our ability to achieve additionalmmmies of scale. Our failure to achieve these amdit economies of scale or to respond to
changes in the IT and CE industries could advers#ct our business and operating results.

We are subject to intense competition in the disthution and BPO businesses, both in the United Stateand internationally, and if we
fail to compete successfully, we will be unable fain or retain market share.

We operate in a highly competitive environmenthtatthe United States and internationally. Thehl CE product and service
distribution, BPO and design and integration sewimdustries are characterized by intense conpethhased primarily on product and sen
availability, credit availability, price, speed délivery, ability to tailor specific solutions taistomer needs, quality and depth of product and
service lines, pre-sales and post-sales technipglost, flexibility and timely response to desigranges, and technological capabilities, servic
and support. We compete with a variety of regionational and international IT and CE product aadise distributors and contract
manufacturers and assemblers. In some instancessaveompete with our own customers, our own OEppsiers and MIiTAC International
and its affiliates.

Our primary competitors are substantially larget have greater financial, operating, manufactuand marketing resources than us.
Some of our competitors may have broader geogradpbidth and range of services than us and mayrhaxe developed relationships with
their existing customers. We may lose market shratiee United States or in international marketanay be forced in the future to reduce our
prices in response to the actions of our compstiod thereby experience a reduction in our gr@sgims.
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In addition, in our contact center business, we &se competition from our customers. For exangieje of our customers may have
internal capabilities and resources to providertbein call centers. Furthermore, pricing pressarasquality of services could impact our
business adversely. Our ability to provide a highliy of service is dependent on our ability ttane and properly train our employees and to
continue investing in our infrastructure, includifigand telecommunications systems.

We may initiate other business activities, inclgdihe broadening of our supply chain capabiliteeg] may face competition from
companies with more experience in those new aheasldition, as we enter new areas of businessnayealso encounter increased
competition from current competitors or from newngetitors, including some that may once have bee©&M suppliers or reseller and re
customers. Increased competition and negativeiosaitom our OEM suppliers or reseller and retatomers resulting from our expansion
into new business areas could harm our business@erating results.

Compliance with changing regulation of corporate geernance and public disclosure may result in additinal expense and affect our
operations.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relatiraptporate governance and public disclosure, dhietuthe Dodd-Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act, SEC regulataomtsNew York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, rules, aeating uncertainty for companies
such as ours. These new or changed laws, regudadiooh standards are subject to varying interpogtsitn many cases due to their lack of
specificity, and as a result, their applicatiompractice may evolve over time as new guidanceasiged by regulatory and governing bodies,
which could result in continuing uncertainty regagdcompliance matters and higher costs necessitat®ngoing revisions to disclosure and
corporate governance practices. As a result, dartefto comply with evolving laws, regulations astdndards have resulted in, and are likely
to continue to result in, increased general andiridtrative expense and a diversion of managenimet and attention from revengenerating
activities to compliance activities. For example are incurring additional expenses related to 8a@pliance with XBRL-tagged interactive
data-files. If our efforts to comply with new orastged laws, regulations and standards differ fiogreictivities intended by regulatory or
governing bodies due to ambiguities related totaracour reputation may be harmed.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumerdetimn Act directed the SEC to implement disclogeuirements concerning
public companies' use and sourcing of “conflict emals” mined in the Democratic Republic of Congd adjoining countries. The SEC rules
issued in August 2012 necessitate a complex congaiprocess and related administrative expensee dompany once it determines a conflict
mineral is necessary to the functionality or prdehrcof a product that the company manufacturesootracts to manufacture. Such companie:
must then conduct a reasonable country of origjuiiy to determine if the conflict minerals origted in the covered countries and undertake
due diligence on the source and chain of custodyder to file a conflict minerals report with tB&C. In addition to the increased
administrative expense and management involvenoemur company as we navigate the aspects of twaeguirements that apply to us, we
may face a limited pool of suppliers who can previs “conflict-free’"components, parts and manufactured products, amdayenot be able
obtain conflict-free products or supplies in suéfit quantities or at competitive prices for ouegiions or to the extent requested by any
reseller customers and their stakeholders, evitre iISEC disclosure requirements do not apply tor is those customers regarding those
products. Also, since our supply chain is comples,may face reputational challenges with our custsistockholders and other stakeholder:
if we are unable to sufficiently verify the origifar any conflict minerals used in the productd ta sell.

If we are unable to maintain effective internal cotrol over financial reporting, our ability to repor t our financial results on a timely and
accurate basis may be adversely affected, which farn could cause the market price of our common sttk to decline.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 megubur management to report on, and our indepémegistered public accounting
firm to attest to, the effectiveness of our intéweantrol structure and procedures for financiglaming. We completed an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over finaheeporting for fiscal year 2013, and we have againg program to perform the system and
process evaluation and testing necessary to centmaomply with these requirements. In the pasidver, our internal controls have not
eliminated all error. We expect to continue to initicreased expense and to devote additional mamageresources to Section 404
compliance. In the event that one of our Chief Eti@e Officer, Chief Financial Officer or indepemdeegistered public accounting firm
determines that our internal control over finanocgdorting is not effective as defined under Secti64, investor perceptions and our repute
may be adversely affected and the market priceioktock could decline.
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Changes to financial accounting standards may afféour results of operations and cause us to changeir business practices.

We prepare our financial statements to conformetoegally accepted accounting principles in the éthitates. These accounting
principles are subject to interpretation by theaRicial Accounting Standards Board, American Intgitf Certified Public Accountants, the
SEC and various bodies formed to interpret andteraapropriate accounting policies. A change irs¢hpolicies can have a significant effect
on our reported results and may affect our repgmiitransactions completed before a change istarosal. Changes to those rules or the
guestioning of current practices may adverselycaiberr reported financial results or the way wedrant our business.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal executive offices are located in Foa) California, and are owned by us. We operat#idution, integration services,
contact center and administrative facilities irfetiént countries.

Our distribution services segment occupies apprateiy 40 facilities covering approximately 4 miligquare feet and includes
warehouse, logistics and administrative facilitd& own approximately 2 million square feet of prdp and lease the remainder.

Our GBS segment occupies approximately 35 fadglitiemprising of service and delivery centers andiaistrative facilities covering
approximately 900 thousand square feet. We owncaqapately 230 thousand square feet and lease thaineler.

We have sublet unused portions of some of ourifi@sil We believe our facilities are well maintadnend adequate for current operating
needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are from time to time involved in legal proceed in the ordinary course of business. We do aliewe that these proceedings will
have a material adverse effect on our results efaifpns, financial position or cash flows of ousiness.

In addition, we have been involved in various bapkey preference actions where we were a supgitdre companies now in
bankruptcy. These preference actions are filechbybankruptcy trustee on behalf of the bankruptestnd generally seek to have payments
made by the debtor within 90 days prior to the lbaptcy returned to the bankruptcy estate for atioceamong all of the bankruptcy estate’s
creditors. We are not currently involved in any enetl preference proceedings.
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth information regamgliour executive officers as of November 30, 2013 :

Name Age Position

Kevin Murai 50 President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director

Peter Larocque 52 President, U.S. Distribution

Dennis Polk 47 Chief Operating Officer and a Director

Marshall Witt 48 Chief Financial Officer

Simon Leung 48 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corp@atretary

Kevin Muraiis our President and Chief Executive Officer aridir@ctor and joined us in March 2008. He serve@asChief Executive
Officer until Robert Huang’s retirement in DecemB008. Prior to SYNNEX, Mr. Murai was employed f® years at Ingram Micro, Inc.
where he served in several executive managemeititgpss including President and Chief Operatingi€ff and also on the Ingram Micro, Inc.
Board of Directors. He holds a Bachelor of Applidence degree in Electrical Engineering from tinéversity of Waterloo in Ontario,
Canada.

Peter Larocqués our President, U.S. Distribution since July 2@d@ previously served as Executive Vice Presidébistribution since
June 2001 and Senior Vice President of Sales anldWiag from September 1997 until June 2001. Mrokgue is responsible for our U.S.
distribution business. Mr. Larocque received a Bémhof Science degree in Economics from the Usitygof Western Ontario, Canada.

Dennis Polkis our Chief Operating Officer and has served is tiapacity since July 2006. Mr. Polk is also aeior and has served in
this capacity since February 2012. He previoustyestas Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vicediitent of Corporate Finance since joining
us in February 2002. Mr. Polk received a Bachel@aence degree in Accounting from Santa Clarasehsity.

Marshall Wittis our Chief Financial Officer and has served is ttapacity since April 2013. Prior to SYNNEX, M¥itt was Senior Vic
President of Finance and Controller with FedExdheiDuring his fifteen-year tenure with FedEx Gangtion, Mr. Witt held progressive
financial and operational roles. Prior to FedExhkkl accounting and finance leadership positionkiding five years with KPMG LLP as an
audit manager for banking and transportation chielr. Witt holds a Bachelor of Business Adminitita in Finance from Pacific Lutheran
University, a Masters in Accounting from Seattleiwémsity and is a Certified Public Accountant.

Simon Leungs our Senior Vice President, General Counsel ammpp@ate Secretary and has served in this capsicitg May 2001.
Mr. Leung joined us in November 2000 as CorporatarGel. Prior to SYNNEX, Mr. Leung was an attoraéyhe law firm of Paul, Hastings,
Janofsky & Walker LLP. Mr. Leung received a BachealbArts degree from the University of Californi@avis in International Relations and
his Juris Doctor degree from the University of Miésota Law School.
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PART Il

ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and RelatedoSkholder Matters

Our common stock, par value $0.001, is traded erNiaw York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, under the syffBNX.” The following
table sets forth the range of high and low saleeprfor our common stock for each of the peridggted, as reported by the NYSE.

Price Range of
Common Stock

Low High

Fiscal Year 2013

First Quarter $ 32.5¢ $ 38.4¢
Second Quarter $ 32.0¢ $ 41.2:
Third Quarter $ 40.1¢ $ 52.5:
Fourth Quarter $ 46.8i $ 66.8(
Fiscal Year 2012

First Quarter $ 28.3i $ 41.8:
Second Quarter $ 33.1¢ $ 44.2¢
Third Quarter $ 31.2¢ $ 35.6:
Fourth Quarter $ 30.7( $ 35.8¢

As of January 15, 2014 , our common stock was bglé71 stockholders of record. Because many o$liaees of our common stock are
held by brokers and other institutions on behaltotkholders, we are unable to estimate the tatiadber of beneficial owners represented by
these stockholders of record. We have not declargaid any cash dividends since our initial pubfiering. We currently intend to retain
future earnings, if any, for use in our operatiand the expansion of our business. If we elecaiogash dividends in the future, payment will
depend on our financial condition, results of ofiers and capital requirements, as well as othenfa deemed relevant by our Board of
Directors. In addition, our credit facilities plastrictions on our ability to pay dividends.

Stock Price Performance Graph

The stock price performance graph below, which mgesua $100 investment on November 30, 2008 , caamar cumulative total
stockholder return, the NYSE Composite Index amd3Standard Industrial Classification, or SIC, Cbuliex (SIC Code 5045—Wholesale
Computer and Computer Peripheral Equipment andhvaod)) for the period beginning November 30, 2008ugh November 30, 2013 . The
closing price per share of our common stock wasi¥66n November 29, 2013 . No cash dividends haea ldeclared on our common stock
since the initial public offering. The comparisanghe table are required by the SEC and are ehded to forecast or be indicative of pos:
future performance of our common stock.
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COMPARISON OF 5- YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG SYNNEX CORPORATION,
NYSE MARKET INDEX AND COMPUTERS & PERIPHERAL EQUIPMENT
700
3600
3500
& 5400
=
—
g$300
5200
3100
50 . - - t - -
2008 2009 2010 20N 2012 2013
—— Y MNMEX Corporation = &= MNYSE Composite Index =-=fl == Computers & Peripheral Equipment
ASSUMES 5100 INVESTED ON NOVEMBER. 30, 2008
ASSUMES DIVIDEND REINVESTED
FISCALYEAR ENDED NOVEMBER. 30, 2013
Fiscal Years Ended
11/30/2008 11/30/2009 11/30/2010 11/30/2011 11/30/2012 11/30/2013
SYNNEX Corporation $ 100.0¢ $ 27068 $ 274.0( $ 280.5¢ $ 3156¢ $ 632.5(
NYSE Market Index $ 1000 $ 1306: $ 1402t $ 1449: $ 164.4¢ $ 208.1:
Computers & Peripheral Equipment $ 100.0¢ $ 1589t $ 1785% $ 166.9¢ $ 157.8¢ $ 232.1¢

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

Information regarding the Securities Authorized lEsuance under Equity Compensation Plans canurelfonder Item 12 of this Repc
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial data qualified by reference to, and should be regdther with, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &websults of Operations” included in Item 7 of thispRrt and the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related Notes included in ItemtBisfReport. The selected Consolidated Statemér@perations and cash flow data prese
below for fiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2011 ancttmsolidated balance sheet data as of Novemb&033, and 2012 have been derived from
our audited Consolidated Financial Statements deduwelsewhere in this Report. The ConsolidateceB8tants of Operations and other data for
fiscal years 2010 and 2009 and the ConsolidatedrBal Sheet data as of November 30, 2011, 2010G09iHAve been derived from our
Consolidated Financial Statements that are notidted in this Report. The Consolidated Statemen@pefrations data include the operating
results from our acquisitions from the closing dafteach acquisition. Historical operating resalts not necessarily indicative of the results
that may be expected for any future period. Plsasé'Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firsu@ondition and Results of
Operations” and Note 2 and Note 3 to our Consaid&tinancial Statements included elsewhere inRbjgort for a discussion of factors, such
as business combinations, that affect the comgayadii the following selected consolidated finaalcilata.

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Statements of Operations Data: (in thousands, exceper share amounts)
Revenue $ 1084516 $ 10,28550 $ 1040984 $ 861414 $ 7,719,19
Cost of revenue (10,190,19) (9,628,77i) (9,779,34) (8,122,52) (7,296,16)
Gross profit 654,97( 656,73 630,49t 491,61¢ 423,03
Selling, general and administrative expenses (414,14) (401,72 (374,270 (292,46¢) (273,38)
Income from continuing operations before non-opegatems, income taxes,
noncontrolling interest 240,82¢ 255,01 256,22¢ 199,15( 149,64¢
Interest expense and finance charges, net (17,119 (22,930 (25,50¢) (17,119 (18,03;)
Other income (expense), net 14,33¢ 4,471 (1,009 1,55( 3,03¢
Income from continuing operations before incomegsand noncontrolling
interest 238,05:. 236,55: 229,71¢ 183,58t 134,65:
Provision for income taxes (85,730 (84,050 (79,16Y (66,910 (49,029
Income from continuing operations before noncofitmlinterest, net of tax 152,32, 152,50: 150,55; 116,67t 85,62
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — — — 75 5,19¢
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax — _ — 11,35: _
Net income 152,32. 152,50¢ 150,55! 128,10: 90,82
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest (85) (1,127 (222) (154) (1,157
Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation $ 152,23 $ 151,37¢ $ 150,33: $ 127,94¢ $ 89,66
Amounts attributable to SYNNEX Corporation:

Income from continuing operations, net of tax 152,23 151.37¢ 150,33 116,53 85,75¢
Discontinued operations:

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — _ — 59 3,90¢

Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax — — — 11,35; —
Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation $ 152,23 $ 151,37t $ 150,33: $ 127,94¢ $ 89,66
Earnings per share attributable to SYNNEX Corporati
Basic:

Income from continuing operations $ 41 $ 412 $ 420 % 33 $ 262

Discontinued operations — — — 0.37 0.12

Net income per common share - basic $ 41 $ 414 % 42 % 368 $ 2.7¢
Diluted:

Income from continuing operations $ 306 $ 39¢ $ 406  $ 32 $ 252

Discontinued operations — — — 0.32 0.11

Net income per common share - diluted $ 3.06 $ 39¢ % 406 $ 35¢ % 2.6¢

For the fiscal year ended November 30, 2013 theenator for the computation of Net income per comrsloare-diluted was adjusted
for dilutive changes in the estimated value ofdbeversion premium of our convertible debt from iRp013 through the final settlement dat
The adjustment to the numerator had the effectadicing our Net income per common share-diluteih97 for the fiscal year ended
November 30, 2013. The calculation of earningsceenmon share attributable to SYNNEX Corporatioprissented in Note 13 to tl
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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As of November 30,

Balance Sheet Data: (in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $

Working capital
Total assets
Current borrowings under term loans, lines of dredd convertible debt

Long-term borrowings

Total equity $

Other Data: (in thousands)

Depreciation and amortization from continuing opierss

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
151,62: $ 163,69¢ $ 67,57 % 88,03¢ 37,81¢
1,142,35! 1,085,75. 1,066,16. 895,18! 762,30!
3,325,88! 2,963,26. 2,833,29 2,499,86 2,099,911
252,52: 194,13: 159,20( 245,97. 150,74(
65,40¢ 81,15: 223,82. 140,33: 136,19!
1,411.64  $ 1,319,350 $ 1,168,445 $ 992,82 838,73!

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$ 24,46: $ 2463( $ 24,67 $ 16,28 $ 17,80:
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ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations shoulddsedrin conjunction with Selected
Consolidated Financial Data and the Consolidatedriiial Statements and related Notes included &ks@win this Report.

When used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K oRkeort, the words “believes,” “plans,” “estimatésianticipates,” “expects,”
“intends,” “allows,” “can,” “may,” “designed,” “wil |,” and similar expressions are intended to idenfibrward{ooking statements. These
statements that relate to future periods and inelsthtements about our business model and ourcesnour market strategy, including
expansion of our product lines, our infrastructuagticipated benefits, costs and timing of our asijons, including our acquisition of the
customer care business of International Businesshif@s Corporation, or IBM, our employee hiringpact of MiTAC Holdings Corporation,
or MITAC Holdings, ownership interest in us, ouveaue and operating results, our gross margins,pEiition with Synnex Technology
International Corp., our future needs for additidfimancing, concentration of customers, our int#ional operations, including ot
operations in Japan, expansion of our operations,sirategic acquisitions of businesses and assffes;ts of future expansion of our
operations, adequacy of our cash resources to m@etapital needs, cash held by our foreign sulasids, our convertible notes, including t
settlement of our convertible notes, adequacy oflmclosure controls and procedures, pricing press, competition, impact of our
accounting policies, our anti-dilution share rephese program, and statements regarding our seeatitn programs and revolving credit
lines. Forward-looking statements are subject sksiand uncertainties that could cause actual tegaldiffer materially from those projected.
These risks and uncertainties include, but arelingited to, those risks discussed, as well as gasanality of the buying patterns of our
customers, concentration of sales to large custspaapendence upon and trends in capital spendidgéddts in the information technology, or
IT, and consumer electronics, or CE, industriasstillations in general economic conditions and riséssforth under Part I, Item 1,Risk
Factors” These forward-looking statements speak only abefdate hereof. We expressly disclaim any ohtigair undertaking to release
publicly any updates or revisions to any forw-looking statements contained herein to reflect emgnge in our expectations with regard
thereto or any change in events, conditions orwinstances on which any such statement is based.

Overview

We are a Fortune 500 corporation and a leadingibasiprocess services company, servicing resakgeders and original equipment
manufacturers, or OEMs, in multiple regions arothelworld. Our primary business process servicesvlwolesale distribution and business
process outsourcing, or BPO. We operate in two seggndistribution services and global businesgices, or GBS. Our distribution services
segment distributes IT systems, peripherals, systamponents, software, networking equipment, CH,@mplementary products and also
offers data center server and storage solutionthiMour distribution services segment, we alsosjal® design and integration services. Our
GBS segment offers a range of BPO services to mestthat include direct sales, technical suppgodtomer care, lead management, rene
management, back office processing and informadohnology outsourcing, or ITO. Many of these segiare delivered and supported on th
proprietary software platforms we have developeprtwide additional value to our customers.

We combine our core strengths in distribution vaitlt BPO services to help our customers achievegreéficiencies in time to market,
cost minimization, real-time linkages in the supghain and after-market product support. We distebmore than 30,000 technology products
(as measured by active SKUs) from more than 30€CH and OEM suppliers to more than 20,000 resekgistem integrators, and retailers
throughout the United States, Canada, Japan anicMexs of November 30, 2013 , we had over 14,30Btime and temporary employees
worldwide. From a geographic perspective, approtetya88% , of our total revenue was from North Armoarfor the fiscal year 201,3and 879
for both the fiscal years 2012 and 2011 .

In our distribution services segment, we purchaseherals, IT systems, system components, softmatesorking equipment, including
CE and complementary products from our primary Sappsuch as Hewlett-Packard Company, or HP, AgksComputer Inc., Beats
Electronics LLC, Lenovo, Panasonic Corporation 8edgate Technologies LLC, and sell them to outlezsnd retail customers. We perfo
a similar function for our distribution of licensedftware products. Our reseller customers inchadee-added resellers, or VARS, corporate
resellers, government resellers, system integradinect marketers, and national and regional lex&iln our distribution business, we provide
comprehensive IT solutions in key vertical marlgish as government and healthcare and we alsodgrepiecialized service offerings that
increase efficiencies in areas like print manageanrenewals, networking and other services. Addilty, within our distribution services
segment, we provide our customers with data ceseterers and storage solutions built specific toaustomers' datacenter environments. Ir
GBS segment, our customers are primarily manufacdwf IT hardware and CE devices, developersfvfvace, cloud service providers, and
broadcast and social media.
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Revenue and Cost of Revenue

We derive our revenue primarily through the disttibn of peripherals, IT systems, system componeaftware, networking equipment
and CE products. We also provide design and intiegrand BPO services. For products, we recograzernue generally as products are
shipped, if a purchase order exists, the sales Bifixed or determinable, collection of the réisigl accounts receivable is reasonably assured
risk of loss and title have transferred and prodetirns are reasonably estimable. Shipping terms$ypically F.O.B. shipping point.
Provisions for sales returns and allowances amnat#d based on historical data and are recordecliceently with the recognition of revenue.
We review and adjust these provisions periodic@&igvenue is reduced for early payment discountssahoie incentive rebates offered to
customers. We provide our BPO services in our G&firent to customers under contracts that typicalhsist of a master services agreemen
or statement of work, which contains the terms @mtlitions of each program and service we offer. &yeements are usually short-term in
nature, subject to early termination by our custeanoe us for any reason, typically with 30 to 9@ slactice. Revenue is recognized as service
are performed and if collection is reasonably abuWe recognize revenue on a net basis on cetaimnacts, including service contracts, post
contract software support services and extendethwigrcontracts, where we are not the primary abligy recognizing the margin earned in
revenue without any associated cost of revenue.

In fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, no customeswatted for 10% or more of our total revenue. Apprately 31% , 36% , and 356
our total revenue in fiscal years 2013, 2012, abiil2respectively, were derived from the sale ofgi®lucts and services.

The market for IT products and services is gengrdibracterized by declining unit prices and spootluct life cycles. Our overall
business is also highly competitive on the basisrize. We set our sales price based on the madggily and demand characteristics for each
particular product or bundle of products we disttéhand services we provide. From time to timeaige participate in the incentive and rebate
programs of our OEM suppliers. These programsmap®itant determinants of the final sales price tharge to our reseller customers. To
mitigate the risk of declining prices and obsoleseeof our distribution inventory, our OEM suppdigrenerally offer us limited price protect
and return rights for products that are marked domdiscontinued by them. We carefully manage ouentory to maximize the benefit to us
of these supplier provided protections.

A significant portion of our cost of revenue is fha&chase price we pay our OEM suppliers for thoelpcts we sell, net of any incentives,
rebates and purchase discounts received from ot @ppliers. Cost of product distribution revenisoaonsists of provisions for inventory
losses and write-downs, freight expenses assoaoidtbdhe receipt in and shipment out of our inwegt and royalties due to OEM vendors. In
addition, cost of revenue includes the cost of nigte labor and overhead for our design and iratégn and BPO services.

Margins

The distribution and design and integration sewviogustries in which we operate are characteltigeldw gross profit as a percentage of
revenue, or gross margin, and low income from djgera as a percentage of revenue, or operatingimadgr gross margin has fluctuated
annually due to changes in the mix of productssardices we offer, customers we sell to, incentared rebates received from our OEM
suppliers, competition, seasonality and replaceroklass profitable business with investments ghkr margin, more profitable lines, lower
costs associated with increased efficiencies anmghitory obsolescence. Increased competition arfsorg industry consolidation and low
demand for IT products may hinder our ability toimi@in or improve our gross margin. Generally, wien revenue becomes more
concentrated on limited products or customersgoogs margin tends to decrease due to increasadgpressure from OEM suppliers or
reseller customers. Our operating margin has &istulated annually, based primarily on our abil@yachieve economies of scale, the
management of our operating expenses, changes nelttive mix of our distribution, design and gr&ation and BPO revenue, and the timing
of our acquisitions and investments.

Economic and Industry Trends

Our revenue is highly dependent on the end-markeiachd for IT and CE products. This end-market dehimimfluenced by many
factors including the introduction of new IT and @®ducts and software by OEMs, replacement cyolesxisting IT and CE products and
overall economic growth and general business aygtidi difficult and challenging economic environntenay also lead to consolidation or
decline in the IT and CE distribution industry d@ndreased price-based competition. The GBS industayso extremely competitive. The
customers’ performance measures are based on dbwgopticing terms and quality of services. Acciogly, we could be subject to pricing
pressure and may experience a decline in our aemliing prices for our services. While we arecepsible to economic trends in the global
economy, our distribution business is largely comicded in the United States, Canada and Japame sdll be most directly impacted by
economic strength or weakness in these geografhigsg the fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, twnemic environment was stable and
grew modestly.
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Seasonality

Our operating results are affected by the seaggradlihe IT and CE products industries. We hawdrically experienced higher sales in
our fourth fiscal quarter due to patterns in theitsh budgeting, federal government spending arrdhmasing cycles of our customers and end-
users. These patterns may not be repeated in sidgqueriods.

Deferred Compensation Plan

We have a deferred compensation plan for a limit@dber of our directors and retired employees. Vdatain a liability on our balance
sheet for salary and bonus amounts deferred bicipanits and we accrue interest expense on unieg@shounts. Interest expense on the
deferred amounts is classified in selling, genanal administrative expenses on our Consolidate8tnts of Operations. The participant 1
designate one or more investments as the measimeestment return on the participant’s account €huity securities are either classified as
trading securities or cost-method securities. Gaheithe gains (losses) on the deferred compeamsagcurities are recorded in other income
(expense), net and an equal amount is chargedddited if losses) to selling, general and admiaiste expenses relating to compensation
amounts which are payable to the plan participd&isthe deferred compensation investments, wededaa gain of $1.9 million , a gain of $
2.6 million and a loss of $1.1 million , in fisgaars 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussions and analyses of our consolidatasdial condition and results of operations aretas our Consolidated Financial
Statements, which have been prepared in confommittygenerally accepted accounting principles i thnited States. The preparation of tr
financial statements requires us to make estinatdsassumptions that affect the reported amourdssats and liabilities, disclosure of any
contingent assets and liabilities at the finansiatement date, and reported amounts of revenuexqahses during the reporting period. On a
ongoing basis, we review and evaluate our estinatdsassumptions, including those that relate ¢owatts receivable, vendor programs,
inventories, goodwill and intangible assets, amime taxes. Our estimates are based on our hitesiperience and a variety of other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable uhdaircumstances, the results of which form th&sbfor making our judgment about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities thatreoereadily available from other sources. Actualtes could differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting poéisiare affected by our judgment, estimates andfumaptions used in the preparatiol
our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognitiowe generally recognize revenue on the sale of hameland software products when they are shippeaand
services when they are performed, if a purchasera@sxists, the sales price is fixed or determinatidection of resulting accounts receivable
is reasonably assured, risk of loss and title hiearesferred and product returns are reasonablyabte. Provisions for sales returns and
allowances are estimated based on historical dataie recorded concurrently with the recognitibresenue. These provisions are reviewed
and adjusted periodically by us. Revenue is redfimedarly payment discounts and volume incentelsates offered to customers. We
recognize revenue on a net basis on certain castiacluding service contracts, post-contractvgafe support services and extended warrant
contracts, where we are not the primary obligortdnpgnizing the margin earned in revenue withoytassociated cost of revenue.

We provide services such as call center, renewag)tenance and contract management services tstomers under contracts that
typically consist of a master services agreemestaiement of work, which contains the terms andlitions of each program and service
offerings. Typically the contracts are time-basett@nsactions or volume based. Revenue is gepesalbgnized over the term of the contract
or when service has been rendered, the salesipfized or determinable and collection of the tBsg accounts receivable is reasonably
assured.

Revenue derived from our Mexico operation inclupiegects with the Mexican government and other joudngencies that are long-term
in nature. Under the agreements, we sell compatetsequipment to contractors that provide serwicélse Mexican government. We also sell
computers, equipment and services directly to tlegiban government. The payments are due on a nydodisis and contingent upon the
satisfactory performance of certain services, lfaifnt of certain obligations and meeting certanditions. We recognize revenue and cost of
revenue on a straight-line basis over the ternh@fcbntract as the contingencies are satisfie¢gpapohents become due.

Allowance for Doubtful Accountg/e provide allowances for doubtful accounts onagounts receivable for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of our customers to make paymnsdot outstanding balances. In estimating the reguallowance, we take into consideration
the overall quality and aging of the accounts nelglie, credit evaluations of customers’ financiahdition and existence of credit insurance.
We also evaluate the collectability of accounteiesble based on
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specific customer circumstances, current econoraras, historical experience with collections aatlie and adequacy of collateral received
from customers.

OEM Supplier Programdl/e receive funds from OEM suppliers for inventorice protection, product rebates, marketing and
infrastructure reimbursement, and various othemmtion programs. Product incentives and rebatesea@ded as a reduction of cost of
revenue. Marketing, infrastructure and promotioogpams are recorded, net of direct costs, in gglfyeneral and administrative expenses.
excess funds associated with these programs ayadeztas a reduction to cost of revenue. We adonngmtives and rebates based on the termr
of the program and sales of qualifying productsn8ef these programs may extend over one or maeaqly reporting periods. Certain OE
supplier agreements provide a right for the supplie audit program claims on a periodic basis. Anis received or receivable from OEM
suppliers that are not yet earned are deferrecuobalance sheet. Actual incentives and rebatesvaybased on volume or other sales
achievement levels, which could result in an inseear reduction in the estimated amounts previoastyued. In addition, OEM suppliers may
seek to change the terms of some or all of thesgrams or cease them altogether. Any such changdd lmwer our gross margins on products
we sell or revenue earned. We also provide resdéovesceivables on OEM supplier programs for eated losses resulting from OEM
suppliers’ inability to pay or rejections of sudhims by OEM suppliers.

Inventories Our inventory levels are based on our projectidrfsitore demand and market conditions. Any suddetiide in demand
and/or rapid product improvements and technologibahges can cause us to have excess and/or @dsekentories. On an ongoing basis, we
review for estimated obsolete or unmarketable itarées and write-down our inventories to their estied net realizable value based upon ou
forecasts of future demand and market conditiohes& write-downs are reflected in our cost of reeeff actual market conditions are less
favorable than our forecasts, additional inventeiserves may be required. Our estimates are irdeehy the following considerations:
sudden decline in demand due to economic downtuapg] product improvements and technological ckangur ability to return to OEM
suppliers a certain percentage of our purchasesprntection from loss in value of inventory under OEM supplier agreements.

Goodwill and Intangible Asset&oodwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of the identifiable net asset
acquired in an acquisition. We assess potentiahimpent of our goodwill and intangible assets whi@re is evidence that recent events or
changes in circumstances have made recovery csat’'s carrying value unlikely. We also assessntiaieimpairment of our goodwill on an
annual basis during our fourth quarter, regardfegb®re is evidence or suspicion of impairmente ®mount of an impairment loss would be
recognized as the excess of the asset’s carryiing waer its fair value.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually in tloifth quarter. For the purpose of the goodwill gsial we have 2 reporting units, the
distribution services reporting unit and the GBfomting unit. Goodwill is tested for impairmentthé reporting unit level by first performing a
gualitative assessment to determine whether itoiertikely than not that the fair value of the re(p@ unit is less than its carrying value. The
factors that were considered in the qualitativdyasisincluded the macroeconomic conditions, induahd market considerations, cost factors
such as increases in product cost, labor, or athets that would have a negative effect on earramgscash flows, and other relevant entity-
specific events and information.

If the reporting unit does not pass the qualitatissessment, then the reporting unit's carryingevisl compared to its fair value. The fair
values of the reporting units are estimated usiagkat and discounted cash flow approaches. ThergBns used in the market approach are
based on the value of a business through an asalf/siultiples of guideline companies, recent satesfferings of a comparable entity. The
assumptions used in the discounted cash flow apprae based on historical and forecasted revepesating costs, future economic
conditions, and other relevant factors. Goodwittasisidered impaired if the carrying value of thparting unit exceeds its fair value. The
annual goodwill impairment analysis did not resulan impairment charge for fiscal years 2013 ,28dd 2011 .

Long-lived assetdle review the recoverability of our long-lived assesuch as intangible assets, property and equipamel certain
other assets, when events or changes in circunestarcur that indicate the carrying value of trseagroup may not be recoverable. The
assessment of possible impairment is based onhility 40 recover the carrying value of the asseasset group from the expected future pre-
tax cash flows, undiscounted and without interbsairges, of the related operations. If these castsfre less than the carrying value of such
assets, an impairment loss is recognized for tfierdhnce between estimated fair value and carryaige.

Determining the fair value of a reporting unit,angible asset or a long-lived asset is judgmemtdliavolves the use of significant
estimates and assumptions. We base our fair valireaes on assumptions that we believe are rebknriaut are uncertain and subject to
changes in market conditions.

Income TaxedNe estimate our income taxes in each of the tagdiations in which we operate. Our current taxenge is estimated
after adjusting for temporary differences resultiram the different treatment of certain items &mekign tax
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credits. These differences may result in deferagdassets and liabilities, which are included in@ansolidated Balance Sheets. We assess tt
likelihood that our deferred tax assets, whichudel net operating loss carry forwards and tempatifgrences that are expected to be
deductible in future years, will be recoverablenirfuture taxable income or other tax planning sgags. If recovery is not likely, we provide a
valuation allowance based on our estimates of éutaxable income in the various tax jurisdicticarsd the amount of deferred taxes in excess
of amounts that are ultimately considered mordyikiean not realizable. The provision for currentialeferred taxes involves evaluations and
judgments of uncertainties in the interpretatiomafplex tax regulations by various tax authoritiéstual results could differ from ol
estimates.

Earnings per common shar&arnings per common share-basic is computed byidiyithe net income attributable to us for the by
the basic weighted-average number of outstandinghoan shares. Earnings per common slalitded is computed by adding the dilutive ef
of in-the-money employee stock options, restricatk awards, restricted stock units and similaitgdgnstruments granted by us to the basic
weighted-average number of outstanding common sh#e use the treasury stock method, under whiehamount the employee must pay
for exercising stock options, the amount of compéns cost for future services that we have notgebgnized and the amount of tax benefits
that would be recorded in Additional paid-in capithen the award becomes deductible are assumeeg used to repurchase shares.

It was our intent to settle the principal amounbof 4.0% Convertible Senior Notes due 2018, on@dible Senior Notes, in cash;
accordingly, the principal amount was excluded fitbmdetermination of diluted earnings per sharépril 2013, we decided to settle the
payment of the conversion premium in cash as distlizy Note 12 — Convertible Debt. Through Aprill30we accounted for the conversion
premium using the treasury stock method by adjgdtie diluted weighted-average common shares iétteet was dilutive. From April 2013,
the numerator for the computation of earnings penrmon share-diluted was adjusted for the changtsiestimated value of the conversion
premium until the final settlement date.

Recent Acquisitions

We seek to augment our services offering expangitnstrategic acquisitions of businesses and ashat complement and expand our
global BPO capabilities. We also divest businefisaswe deem no longer strategic to our ongoingaifmns. Our historical acquisitions have
brought us new reseller and retail customers, OEppKers and product lines, have extended the ggdde reach of our operations,
particularly in targeted markets, and have diverdiind expanded the services we provide to our Gipliers and customers. We accoun
acquisitions using the purchase method of accogir@nd include acquired entities within our Consatidi Financial Statements from the
closing date of the acquisition.

IBM Customer Care Business acquisitic

In September 2013, we announced that we enterediMaster Asset Purchase Agreement with IBM, mmsto which we will acquire
IBM’s customer care business, or the Assets, faggregate purchase price of $505.0 million, suliepostelosing adjustments. A portion
the purchase price will be paid in shares of ounmmmn stock up to the lesser of $75.0 million or &88the outstanding shares of our common
stock and the remainder will be paid in cash.pbation of the Assets are not transferred at tit@irclosing, IBM will operate the Assets for
our benefit, pending one or more subsequent clesingich are to occur no later June 30, 2015. hmeotion with the acquisition, we intend
offer employment to approximately 35,000 employiedscations around the world, including the Unitttes, India, Philippines, China,
Japan and the United Kingdom.

We anticipate the initial closing to occur in thest calendar quarter of 2014. Completion of thguasition is subject to customary closing
conditions, including, but not limited to, expir@ti or termination of the applicable waiting periatier Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust
Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, and othelatgy approvals.

Acquisitions during fiscal year 201

In April 2013, we acquired substantially all of thesets of Supercom Canada Limited, or Supercoradaam distributor of IT and
consumer electronics products and services in Garfdte purchase price was approximately CAD37.6anjlor US$36.7 million, in cash,
including approximately CAD4.5 million, or US$4.3lhon, in deferred payments, subject to certaistpadosing conditions, payable within 18
months. Subsequent to the acquisition, we repaitlaled working capital lines in the amount of US$5iillion. Based on the preliminary
purchase price allocation, we recorded net tangibets of US$26.9 million, goodwill of US$5.4 moifl and intangible assets of US$4.4
million in relation to this acquisition. The acqjtin is integrated into the distribution servigagment and has expanded our existing produc
and service offerings in Canada.

Acquisitions and divestitures during fiscal year 2P

In fiscal year 2012, we purchased shares of ousidigry SYNNEX Infotec Corporation, or Infotec Japavhich were held by the
noncontrolling interest SB Pacific Corporation Lied, or SB Pacific, for $17.5 million, of which $#million was paid during the fiscal year
2013. The transaction increased our ownershipéastén Infotec Japan from 70.0% to 99.8%.
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In fiscal year 2012, we also sold our 33.3% nonaslinig interest in SB Pacific, our equity-methadéstee at that time, back to SB Pacific.
During the fiscal year 2013, we received the fip@ment of $4.2 million of the sale price.

In fiscal year 2012, we acquired a business if3B& segment for a purchase price of $6.2 milliothwil.2 million payable upon the
completion of certain postiosing procedures and $1.3 million contingent aerstion payable upon the achievement of certaiget earning
We recorded goodwill of $6.2 million in relation ttis acquisition.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the indicatestipds, data as percentages of revenue:

Statements of Operations Data: Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2013 2012 2011

Revenue 100.0(% 100.0(% 100.0( %
Cost of revenue (93.9¢) (93.61 (93.99
Gross profit 6.04 6.3¢ 6.0€
Selling, general and administrative expenses (3.8 (3.91 (3.60
Income before non-operating items, income taxesnamdontrolling interest 2.22 2.4¢ 2.4¢
Interest expense and finance charges, net (0.1¢) (0.22 (0.25)
Other income (expense), net 0.1z 0.04 (0.01)
Income before income taxes and noncontrolling eger 2.1¢ 2.3C 2.2C
Provision for income taxes (0.79 (0.82 (0.76)
Net income 1.4C 1.4¢ 1.44
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest (0.00 (0.01 (0.00
Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation 1.4(% 1.47% 1.44%

Fiscal Years Ended November 30, 2013, 2012 and 201

Revenue
Fiscal Years Ended November 30, Percent Change
2013 2012 2011 2013 to 2012 2012 to 2011
(in thousands)
Revenue $ 10,845,116 $ 10,28550 $ 10,409,84 5.4% (1.2%
Distribution Revenue 10,655,45 10,121,27 10,275,29 5.2% (1.5%
GBS Revenue 223,60( 197,39: 163,37¢ 13.2% 20.€%
Inter-Segment Elimination (33,889 (33,15Y (28,83) 2.2% 15.C%

In our distribution business, we sell in exces8@DOO0 technology products (as measured by acigspfrom more than 300 IT, CE
and OEM suppliers to more than 20,000 resellers.grites of our products are highly dependent envtiumes purchased within a product
category. The products we sell from one periodhéortext are often not comparable because of rdgaidges in product models and features.
The revenue generated in our GBS segment rela@B@services such as direct sales, technical stjpustomer care, lead management,
renewals management, back office processing andation technology outsourcing, or ITO. The irdegment elimination relates to the
inter-segment, back office support services pravio our GBS segment to our distribution serviagmsent. Third-party GBS revenue can be
derived by netting the inter-segment eliminatiants iGBS revenue. The GBS programs and customeicearquirements change frequently
from one period to the next and are often not coatga.

Revenue in our distribution services segment irsdan fiscal year 2013 from fiscal year 2012 dustiong sales growth in U.S. and
Japan and the April 2013 acquisition of Supercoma@a. Our revenue in all geographies benefitteth fvar expanded product and vendor
lines. In comparison to the prior year period, mwenue in fiscal year 2013 was negatively impabte@.6% for the translation impact of
foreign exchange rates, primarily from the weakgrihthe Japanese yen.

By product category, our sales of peripherals, natimg, system components and IT systems were high&5%, 9%, 2% and 2%,
respectively, in comparison to the prior fiscal iy&he increase in the sale of peripheral and nedwg categories was due to higher sales of
audio products and networking hardware deviced, dirng the expansion of our line card. Revenue ghomas partially offset by 15% lower
software sales which was due to the strategic wects consolidate less profitable
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products and lower gaming software sales. All pobdategories were negatively impacted by the tatios impact of foreign exchange rates,
primarily due to the weakening Japanese yen.

Our revenue from the distribution services segnmefiscal year 2012 decreased from fiscal year 2@irbarily due to the effects of
transitioning a certain customer contract fromaaitional full service distribution relationship adfee-for-service basis starting in the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2011. The impact of thisrdaresulted in approximately 4% lower revenue nae during fiscal year 2012. In
comparison to fiscal year 2011, our sales of systeomponents increased by 7%, our sales of IT systemained relatively consistent and
sales of software, networking equipment and pergdealecreased by 14%, 4% and 3%, respectivelyd€heease in our software sales
compared to the prior year is primarily due to lowales from gaming software.

Overall, the demand for IT products continued tetadble in the U.S. and Japanese markets and imgrovCanada.

Our revenue in our GBS segment in fiscal year 20tfased 13.3% from fiscal year 2012, benefitnognf new customer contracts and
expanded business volumes from certain continuirsgoeners. Approximately 70% of the increase in nereein our GBS segment in fiscal y
2012 as compared to fiscal year 2011, was dueventee generated from acquisitions that occurredearfourth quarter of fiscal year 2011. In
addition, we generated revenue from new custommyuats and increased revenue from our existingboust base.

Gross Profit

Fiscal Years Ended November 30, Percent Change
2013 2012 2011 2013 to 2012 2012 to 2011
(in thousands)
Gross Profit $ 654,97( $ 656,73° $ 630,49¢ (0.9% 4.2%
Percentage of Revenue 6.04 6.39% 6.06%

Our gross profit is affected by a variety of fastdncluding competition, average selling pricég, Yariety and mix of products and
services we sell, our customers, our sources @fmey by segments, rebate and discount programsduosuppliers, freight costs, reserves fot
inventory losses, acquisitions and divestituresusfiness units and fluctuations in revenue.

Our gross margin in the fiscal year 2013 was 3fshaaints lower than fiscal year 2012. The decréaslkee gross margin percentage in
fiscal year 2013 from the prior year was due tonges in our product and business mix, partly otigethe reduction in certain reserve
requirements related to vendor programs. The figoal year also benefitted by approximately 15$asints from the shortage of hard disk
drives, primarily in the first quarter of fiscale2012.

Our gross margin for fiscal year 2012 increase@d¥pasis points over fiscal year 2011. Our fisea&n2012 gross margin was favorably
impacted by 25 basis points by the effects of itenméng certain customer revenue to a fee-for-eerbasis. Margin also benefited from lower
reserve requirements and more favorable vendoniiveerebates as compared to the prior year pe@od.margin was also favorably impac
by supply-demand constraints of hard disk drivethenfirst quarter of fiscal year 2012.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Fiscal Years Ended November 30, Percent Change
2013 2012 2011 2013t02012 2012 to 2011
(in thousands)
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses $ 414,14. $ 401,72 $ 374,271 3.1% 7.3%
Percentage of Revenue 3.82% 3.91% 3.6(%

Approximately two-thirds of our selling, generaldaadministrative expenses consist of personnes®gth as salaries, commissions,
bonuses, share-based compensation, deferred coatipensxpense or income, and temporary personisés.c8elling, general and
administrative expenses also include costs of acifities, utility expense, professional fees, dgmtion expense on our capital equipment, ba
debt expense, amortization expense on our intamgisets, and marketing expenses, offset in paditmpursements from our OEM suppliers.

The increase in our selling, general and admirtisg@xpenses in the fiscal year 2013 comparetstalfyear 2012, was primarily due
$18.2 million in higher personnel costs and genevathead expenses as the result of our April 2@Hiisition of Supercom Canada in our
distribution segment and to support the growthun®BS segment. In addition, we incurred $7.5 mmillacquisition and integration expense
fiscal year 2013. These acquisition expenses wameaply related to our anticipated acquisitiontibé IBM customer care business, which is
expected to close in the first calendar quarter
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of 2014. These higher expenses were offset inlpyaat $12.2 million decrease as a result of fluétuatin foreign exchange rates, primarily «
to the weakening of the Japanese yen.

Our selling, general and administrative expensdisa@al year 2012 increased compared to the pear fiscal year 2011 due to increased
investment in our business and our fiscal year 2@lisitions. The costs related to our acquisitiorthe fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011 in
our GBS segment accounted for $10.5 million ofitteeease in fiscal year 2012. Our personnel an@éiggioverhead expenses were higher by
$14.2 million due to investment in our businessrapens. Our deferred compensation expenses wghehby $2.8 million based on the
performance of those investments. In addition figmal year 2011 results benefited by $5.4 millionchanges in the fair value of certain
contingent consideration pertaining to our acgiis in our GBS segment in comparison to a bené&f0.7 million recognized in fiscal year
2012. These increases were offset in part by $4l@mlower bad debt expense and $0.5 million Herieom fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates.

Income before Non-Operating Items, Income Taxes aldncontrolling Interests

Fiscal Years Ended November 30, Percent Change
2013 2012 2011 2013 to 2012 2012 to 2011

(in thousands)

Income before non-operating items, incor |
taxes and noncontrolling interest $ 240,82 $ 255,01 % 256,22¢ (5.6)% (0.5%

Percentage of Total Revenue 2.22% 2.48% 2.4€%

Distribution income before non-operating
items, income taxes and noncontrolling

interest 233,04 241,81 237,32. (3.6% 1.2%
Percentage of Distribution Revenue 2.1% 2.3% 2.31%

GBS income before non-operating items,

income taxes and noncontrolling interest 7,96( 13,48: 18,90¢ (41.0% (28.7)%
Percentage of GBS Revenue 3.56% 6.8% 11.5%

Inter-Segment Elimination (a7%) (28¢) — 39.2% —

Our income before noaperating items, income taxes and noncontrollingrast as a percentage of revenue was 2.22% al fisar 201
compared to 2.48% in fiscal year 2012. The decrgrsar operating margins was due to lower grossggina compared to the prior year. In «
distribution services segment, our operating margirfiscal year 2012 were favorably impacted by shpply-demand constraints of hard disk
drives, primarily in the first quarter of fiscala®e2012. Our operating margins in our GBS segmefiscal year 2013 was 3.56% compared to
6.83% in the prior fiscal year 2012. The currerdryaperating margins were affected by $8.4 milkaquisition and integration expenses. The
acquisition and integration expenses relate prignsiour anticipated acquisition of the IBM custentare business, which is expected to ¢
in the first calendar quarter of 2014. The opeatirargins in the GBS segment were also affectetthdynvestment of personnel in preparatior
for our recent business contract wins.

Our income before noaperating items, income taxes and noncontrollingrast as a percentage of revenue was 2.48% al fisar 201
compared to 2.46% in fiscal year 2011. In our thstion services segment, our operating margingvarorably impacted by the effects of
transitioning of certain distribution customer raue to a fee-for-service basis beginning from theth quarter of fiscal year 2011 and by the
supply-demand constraints of hard disk drives prilgnan the first quarter of fiscal year 2012. Tledsenefits from our higher gross margins
were partially offset by higher selling, generati@uministrative expenses. Our operating margimaimGBS segment in fiscal year 2012 were
lower than the prior fiscal year 2011 primarily doghe prior year results benefiting from a $5itiom change in the fair value of certain
contingent consideration liabilities pertainingtie acquisitions in this segment.
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Interest Expense and Finance Charges, Net

Fiscal Years Ended November 30, Percent Change
2013 2012 2011 2013 to 2012 2012 to 2011
(in thousands’
Interest expense and finance charges, net $ 17,118  $ 2293( $ 25,50¢ (25.9% (10.1%
Percentage of revenue 0.16% 0.22% 0.25%

Amounts recorded in interest expense and finanaggels, net, consist primarily of interest experaid pn our lines of credit and other
debt, fees associated with third party accountsivable flooring arrangements, non-cash interegerge on our Convertible Senior Notes anc
the sale or pledge of accounts receivable througlsecuritization facilities, offset by income eadron our cash investments and financing
income from our multi-year contracts in our Mexamueration.

The decrease in our interest expense and finararges, net in fiscal year 2013 as compared tolfigax 2012 was primarily due to
lower interest expense on our Convertible Seniaeblavhich were called in May 2013. The cash andaash interest expenses on the
Convertible Senior Notes in fiscal year 2013 weredr by $3.5 million and $3.0 million, respectivetpmpared to the fiscal year 2012.
Interest expense in fiscal year 2013 also bendfftiam changes in the foreign currency translatetes and lower interest rates during the y
partially offset by higher flooring fees and loweterest income from our Mexico contracts.

Interest expense and finance charges, net were laviscal year 2012 as compared to the fiscat 841 because of lower levels of
borrowings and lower interest rates. In addititwe, interest income from our Mexico contracts waghér in fiscal year 2012 compared to the
prior year.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Fiscal Years Ended November 30, Percent Change
2013 2012 2011 2013 to 2012 2012 to 2011
(in thousands)
Other income (expense), net $ 14,33¢ $ 4471 % (1,005 220.7% 544.%%
Percentage of revenue 0.13% 0.04% (0.00%

Amounts recorded as other income (expense), nkeidadoreign currency transaction gains and lossgsstment gains and losses
(including those in our deferred compensation p&ng other non-operating gains and losses.

The increase in other income in fiscal year 2018caspared to fiscal year 2012 was primarily dug18.3 million received from a class
action legal settlement, partially offset by lovearnings on our deferred compensation investmbangidition the prior fiscal year benefitted
by $1.3 million gain from the sale of our investrhanSB Pacific.

Other income increased in fiscal year 2012 as coedp@ fiscal year 2011 primarily due to $3.4 rotflihigher gains from our deferred
compensation investments and the $1.3 million faim the sale of our investment in SB Pacific.

Provision for Income Taxes
Income taxes consist of our current and deferrneéxaense resulting from our income earned in déimasad foreign jurisdictions.

Our effective tax rate in fiscal year 2013 was 3685 compared to 35.5% and 34.5% in fiscal yeat® 20d 2011 , respectively. The
increase in our effective tax rate in fiscal ye@t 2, as compared to the prior year, was due tintlrease in profits earned in higher tax
jurisdictions.

Our effective tax rate in fiscal year 2012 was bigtihan the prior fiscal year 2011. In fiscal y2@i1l we recognized a $5.4 million
benefit for changes in the fair value of certaintaagent consideration liabilities pertaining te@thcquisitions in our GBS segment, which was
not subject to income tax. The fiscal year 201¢af¥e tax rate was also lower due to the benéfiedain state tax credits and the release of
tax reserves due to the expiration of the statfiienitations.

Our future effective tax rates could be adverséigcted by earnings being lower than anticipatedanntries where we have lower
statutory rates and earnings being higher thawipated in countries where we have higher statutatgs, by changes in the valuations of our
deferred tax assets or liabilities, or by changesterpretations in tax laws, regulations or agadmg principles. In addition, we are subject to
the continuous examination of our income tax retloythe IRS and other tax authorities. We regylaskess the likelihood of adverse
outcomes resulting from these examinations to deter the adequacy of our provision for income taxes
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Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interagigresents the share of net income attributabb¢hters, which is recognized for the
portion of subsidiaries’ equity not owned by useToncontrolling interest in fiscal years 2012 @0d1 primarily represents SB Pacific’s
30.0% ownership of Infotec Japan. This noncontiglinterest has been reflected in the results pfimiribution services segment. As of
November 30, 2012, we had purchased all the slodile$otec Japan held by SB Pacific. The changiénet income attributable
noncontrolling interests in the fiscal year 2013 aspared to the fiscal year 2012 is due to ouclmse of SB Pacific’'s 30.0% ownership of
Infotec Japan during fiscal year 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows

Our business is working capital intensive. Our virngkcapital needs are primarily to finance accouatgivable and inventory. We rely
heavily on debt, accounts receivable arrangementssecuritization programs and our revolver proggdor our working capital needs.

We have financed our growth and cash needs topdimbarily through working capital financing faciés, Convertible Senior Notes, be
credit lines and cash generated from operations.

To increase our market share and better serveustormers, we may further expand our operationsugfiranvestments or acquisitions.
We expect that such expansion would require aralnitvestment in personnel, facilities and openasi. These investments or acquisitions
would likely be funded primarily by additional bowings or issuing common stock.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $38illfon in fiscal year 2013, primarily generatedrmh our net income of $152.3
million, adjustments for non-cash items of $37.8io1 and $186.2 million higher accounts payabl&bees, partially offset by $187.5 million
higher accounts receivable balances and $155.®bmhHigher inventory balances. The increases innarking capital balances were primarily
the result of our higher business volumes. Thesidjants for non-cash items primarily consist of. $24illion of depreciation and
amortization expense, $9.2 million in sh&@sed compensation expense, $2.3 million accrefidiscount on our Convertible Senior Notes
$3.0 million provision for doubtful accounts.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $24gillion in fiscal year 2012, primarily generatiedm our net income of $152.5
million, adjustments for non-cash items of $34.8iom. Our cash provided by operating activitiesibited from higher accounts payable
balances of $108.3 million and lower inventory bbakes of $49.5 million. These benefits were offagtart by higher accounts receivable
balances of $113.0 million. The adjustments for-nash items primarily consist of $24.6 million ofpdeciation and amortization expense, !
million in share-based compensation expense, $8l@maccretion of discount on our Convertible & riNotes, offset by $1.7 million benefit
from doubtful accounts.

Net cash provided by operating activities in fispadr 2011 was $219.2 million, primarily consistwfgour net income of $150.6 million,
adjustments for non-cash items of $46.1 millionr @et cash provided by operating activities indisgear 2011 benefited from improvements
in our cash conversion cycle resulting in $29.5iarllower accounts receivable and $28.2 milliowdw inventory balances. These benefits
were offset by $49.4 million lower accounts payable to timing of payments to our vendors. The stdjents for non-cash items primarily
consist of $24.7 million of depreciation and ammation expense, $8.0 million in share-based congiemsexpense, $4.9 million accretion of
discount on our Convertible Senior Notes, offse$By5 million provision for doubtful accounts.

Net cash used in investing activities in fiscalry2@13 was $43.8 million, primarily due to our istment in capital expenditures of $29.0
million and cash paid for acquisitions of $27.1limil. Our capital expenditures included the purehafsa building in Fremont, California for
$7.8 million and other investments to support awwgh and enhance productivity. Cash paid for agitjahs primarily consisted of $25.7
million paid toward the acquisition of Supercom @da, net of cash received. These outflows werebifig $4.2 million received from the si
of our equity-method investee SB Pacific Limitedistal year 2012, proceeds of $3.1 million frore #ale of our deferred compensation
investments, net of purchases and a reduction.afid8lion in our restricted cash balances duéntodompletion of our obligations to third
party contractors under our long-term projects iexho.

Net cash used in investing activities in fiscalry2@12 was $9.6 million, primarily due to investrteeim capital expenditure of $14.5
million. Our capital expenditure consisted of awastment in the purchase of equipment and leadémplrovements during the year to
support our growth. In addition. cash paid for asijions was $1.6 million and loans given
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to third parties, net of collections were $1.1 ioill These outflows were offset by $3.5 millionlized from divesting our 33.3% ownership in
SB Pacific, net proceeds of $2.2 million from traglactivities in our deferred compensation investimand $2.2 million reduction in our
restricted cash balances, due to the timing ofazkbox collections under our borrowing arrangeraent

Net cash used in investing activities in fiscalry2@11 was $126.4 million primarily due to cashdue acquisitions, capital
expenditures, increase in restricted cash balaam@éshe investment in term deposits. The cash faseatquisition included $57.3 million, net
of cash acquired, used for our acquisitions of Erconc., e4e, gem and VisionMAX in our GBS segtraamd $4.5 million, net of cash
acquired, used for the acquisition of Infotec Jajpaour distribution services segment, offset byshillion collected from the sellers of our
2010 acquisition of Jack of All Games upon thelfsettlement of the purchase price. We also calbétl.0 million on our sale of certain
contract manufacturing business related asseleifidcal year 2010 to MiTAC International. Our itapexpenditures during the period were
$40.2 million, of which $15.4 million was used fine purchase of a distribution and logistics facil lllinois and the remainder in equipment
and infrastructure investments. In addition, weested $4.8 million in SB Pacific, our equity-methndestee at the time. Our restricted cash
increased by $14.0 million primarily due to theitign of lockbox collections under our borrowing aigements. Our investment in term
deposits with a maturity period of over three menttet of the proceeds from maturity deposits véa8 illion.

Net cash used in financing activities in fiscal y2@13 was $8.4 million, consisting primarily of 829 million paid for the settlement of
the Convertible Senior Notes. In addition, we g&lid.4 million for the fiscal year 2012 purchaseslofires of our subsidiary Infotec Japan fron
the noncontrolling interest. Cash used for the refmase of treasury stock was $1.9 million. Theser@ats were partially offset by $153.2
million net receipts from our revolving lines okdit and term loans, a $60.5 million higher bookmvaft, $5.4 million excess tax benefit fre
share based compensation and $4.6 million prodeeatsthe issue of common stock upon the exercisngiloyee stock awards, net of taxes
paid.

Net cash used in financing activities in fiscaliy2@12 was $137.5 million, consisting of $106.5limil net payments on our
securitization arrangements, revolving lines ofldrand our term loans as we reduced our extemabtving levels during the year. Our higl
cash balances during the year also resulted irb$28lion lower book overdraft. During the year,. 8 illion was used for the repurchase of
our treasury stock, $6.1 million was used to repase shares of Infotec Japan from the noncontgaititerest and $1.1 million was paid for
acquisition related contingent considerations. €lgsyments were offset in part by $7.2 million geds from the exercise of employee stock
options and $3.1 million was the excess tax benéfitm share-based compensation.

Net cash used in financing activities in fiscaliy2@11 was $114.4 million, consisting primarily%#39.8 million net payments on our
securitization arrangements and our revolving lioesredit, offset by debt refinancing of Infoteapan with a new credit facility. The book
overdraft was higher by $13.6 million. In additidhe capital contribution related to SB Pacific W&s4 million and financing from the exerc
of employee stock awards was $6.3 million duringtkar, offset by taxes paid for net share setthemieequity awards of $4.7 million. Cash
used for the repurchase of treasury stock wasrillion.

We believe our current cash balances and crediliahility are sufficient to support our operatingtigities and our anticipated acquisiti
of the IBM customer care business.

Capital Resources

Our cash and cash equivalents totaled $151.6 midlimd $163.7 million as of November 30, 2013 ant20@espectively. Of our total
cash and cash equivalents the cash held by ougfosebsidiaries was $142.5 million and $92.8 wiillas of November 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Repatriation of the cash held byfotgign subsidiaries would be subject to Unitedextdederal income taxes. Also, repatriation
of some foreign balances is restricted by locakladowever, we have historically fully utilized areinvested all foreign cash to fund our
foreign operations and expansion. If in the futong, intentions change and we repatriate the cask to the United States, we will report the
expected impact of the applicable taxes dependbog the planned timing and manner of such repanaPresently, we believe we have
sufficient resources, cash flow and liquidity withhe United States to fund current and expecteaduvorking capital requirements.

As of November 30, 2013, there were approximat@§2$9 million of cumulative undistributed earnirafSoreign subsidiaries.
Repatriation of the undistributed earnings wouldsbbject to United States federal income taxes,dpplicable foreign taxes. Also, repatria
of some foreign balances is restricted by locaklawe have not provided for U.S. federal incomeaaforeign withholding taxes on foreign
subsidiaries' undistributed earnings as currendyhave no plan to repatriate those earnings battiettnited States. Further, it is not currently
practical to estimate the amount of income tax thight be payable if any earnings were to be digted by individual foreign subsidiaries.
However, if in the future we repatriate the undigtted earnings of foreign subsidiaries to the &bhibtates in the form of dividend or
otherwise, we will
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include the impact of U.S. taxes as well as logaés and withholding taxes in the provision foroime taxes and also in the deferred taxes or
tax payable liabilities depending upon the planteihg and manner of such repatriation.

Based on our financial strength and performandestiag sources of liquidity, available cash resesrand funds available under our
various borrowing arrangements, we believe we ldlle sufficient resources to meet our present atodle working capital requirements,
including the financing that will be required féretacquisition of the IBM customer care businessttfe next twelve months.

Our accounts receivable securitization programandJ.S credit facility agreement are renewablehair expiration dates. We have no
reason to believe that these arrangements wilbasenewed as we continue to be in good creditistgrwith the participating financial
institutions. We have had similar borrowing arramgets with various financial institutions throughour years as a public company.

On-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We primarily finance our United States operatioiith\en accounts receivable securitization progranthe U.S. Arrangement. Until
September 2013, our subsidiary, which is the boeraimder the U.S. Arrangement, could borrow up trmaaimum of $400.0 million in U.S.
trade accounts receivable, or the U.S. Receivabie€september 2013, we amended the U.S Arrangetoémtrease the commitment of the
lenders to $500.0 million. In addition, the amendtredso included an accordion feature to allow estgifor an increase in the lenders'
commitment by an additional $100.0 million to a fmaxm commitment of $600.0 million. The maturity datf the U.S. Arrangement is
October 2015. The effective borrowing cost undertthS. Arrangement is a blended rate that inclpdegailing dealer commercial paper rates
and the daily London Interbank Offered Rate, or@Qm rate, plus a program fee of 0.425% per annwsadan the used portion of the
commitment, and a facility fee of 0.425% per anmayable on the aggregate commitment of the lendarsf November 30, 2013 , there was
$144.0 million of borrowing outstanding under th&SUArrangement. As of November 30, 2012 , there m@abalance outstanding under the
U.S. Arrangement.

Under the terms of the U.S. Arrangement, we salka oevolving basis, U.S. Receivables to a whollyred, bankruptcy-remote
subsidiary. The borrowings are funded by pledgihgfahe rights, title and interest in and to tHeS. Receivables acquired by our subsidial
security. Any borrowings under the U.S. Arrangen@strecorded as debt on our Consolidated BalaheetS& As is customary in trade
accounts receivable securitization arrangemertasedit rating agency's downgrade of the third pasyer of commercial paper or of a bagk-
liquidity provider (which provides a source of fund if the commercial paper market cannot be agBssould result in an increase in our cos
of borrowing or loss of our financing capacity untleese programs if the commercial paper issuéiqoidity back-up provider is not replaced,
or if the lender whose commercial paper issueigoiidity back-up provider is not replaced doeselett to offer us an alternate rate. Loss of
such financing capacity could have a material agtveffect on our financial condition and result®pérations.

In November 2013, we entered into a senior secenedit agreement, or the U.S. Credit Agreementcivis comprised of $275.0 million
in a revolving credit facility and a term loan in aggregate principal amount not to exceed $221lm We may request incremental
commitments to increase the principal amount obhkarg loans or term loans available under the @&dit Agreement up to $125.0 million .
The U.S. Credit Agreement matures in November 201t8rest on borrowings under the U.S. Credit Agreet can be based on the LIBOR, ot
a base rate, at our option. Loans borrowed undeCtiedit Agreement bear interest, in the case BOR rate loans, at a per annum rate equal
to the applicable LIBOR rate, plus a margin whicaymange from 1.75% to 2.25%, based on our coretelitleverage ratio, as determined in
accordance with the U.S. Credit Agreement. Loamsolaged under the Credit Agreement that are not LRB@te loans, and are instead base
rate loans, bear interest at a per annum rate ég@idlthe greatest of (A) the Federal Funds Rdiie a margin of 1/2 of 1.0%, (B) the LIBOR
rate plus 1.0% per annum, and (C) the rate ofésteannounced, from time to time, by the agentkBdAmerica, N.A., as its “prime rate,”
plus (ii) a margin which may range from 0.75% t@5P4, based on our consolidated leverage ratioetesrdined in accordance with the U.S.
Credit Agreement. When drawn, the outstanding jwalamount of the term loan will be repayable iragerly installments, in an amount
equal to (a) for each of the first eight calendaaurters ending after the term loan is made, 1.268beoinitial principal amount of the term loan,
(b) for each calendar quarter ending thereaft&0%.of the initial principal amount of the termhoand (c) on the November 2018 maturity
date of the term loan, the outstanding principabamt of the term loan. Our obligations under th8.WCredit Agreement are secured by
substantially all of the parent company and itstethiStates domestic subsidiaries’ assets and aramfeed by certain of our United States
domestic subsidiaries. There were no borrowingstantling under this credit arrangement as of Noezrd, 2013.

We had a senior secured revolving line of credarmgement, or the Revolver, with a financial ingi@n which provided a maximum
commitment of $100.0 million, which was terminatedNovember 2013. Interest on borrowings under Resolver was based on a base ra
LIBOR rate, at our option. The margin on LIBOR rht@rowing was determined in accordance with axedicharge coverage ratio and was
1.50% per annum. The margin on base rate borrowiagsbased on
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the financial institution's prime rate. The Revalaéso contained an unused line fee of 0.30% peurmn The Revolver was secured by our
inventory and other assets. There were no borrasvingstanding under the Revolver as of Novembe2G0D2.

SYNNEX Canada has a revolving line of credit aremgnt, or the Canadian Revolving Arrangement, witimancial institution for a
maximum commitment of CAD100.0 million and includesaccordion feature to increase the maximum comenit by an additional
CAD25.0 million to CAD125.0 million, at SYNNEX Cada's request. The Canadian Revolving Arrangemsntbvides a sublimit of $5.0
million for the issuance of standby letters of dretls of November 30, 2013 , there were no lettdrsredit outstanding. As of November 30,
2012, outstanding standby letters of credit tot&igddl million. SYNNEX Canada has granted a secumigrest in substantially all of its assets
in favor of the lender under the Canadian RevoMingingement. In addition, we pledged our stocB¥YNNEX Canada as collateral for the
Canadian Revolving Arrangement. The Canadian Réwpl&rrangement expires in May 2017. The interagt mpplicable under the Canadian
Revolving Arrangement is equal to (i) the Canadiase rate plus a margin of 0.75% for a Base Ra# iroCanadian Dollars, (ii) the US base
rate plus a margin of 0.75% for a Base Rate Lodw.8 Dollars, and (iii) the Bankers' Acceptande rar BA, plus a margin of 2.00% for a |
Rate Loan. The Canadian base rate means the goé&drthe prime rate determined by a major Caarafinancial institution and (b) the one
month Canadian Dealer Offered Rate, or CDOR, (tleeame rate applicable to Canadian dollar banker®ptances for the applicable period)
plus 1.50%). The US base rate means the greafa) afreference rate determined by a major Candiiancial institution for US dollar loans
made to Canadian borrowers and (b) the US fedenalsfrate plus 0.50%. A fee of 0.25% per annunayaple with respect to the unused
portion of the commitment. There were no borrowingsstanding under the Canadian Revolving Arrangerag of both November 30, 2013
and 2012.

SYNNEX Canada has a term loan associated withuhehpse of its logistics facility in Guelph, Canaiihe interest rate for the unpaid
principal amount is a fixed rate of 5.374% per annWihe final maturity date for repayment of the aingprincipal is April 1, 2017. The balar
outstanding on the term loan as of November 303201 2012 was $7.4 million and $8.6 million , estjvely.

Infotec Japan has a credit agreement with a grbfipancial institutions for a maximum commitmeritl®Y14.0 billion . The credit
agreement is comprised of a JPY6.0 billion longrtéman and a JPY8.0 billion short-term revolvingdit facility. The credit agreement was
refinanced in December 2012, to increase the ghort-revolving credit facility to JPY8.0 billiondm JPY4.0 billion. The interest rate for the
long-term and short-term loans is based on the d dkterbank Offered Rate, or TIBOR, plus a margit tvas 1.90% per annum, however, in
December 2013, we amended this credit agreeméoivey this margin to 1.40% per annum. The unuseg fiee on the revolving credit facili
was 0.5% per annum, however, in December 2013 mended this credit agreement to lower this fee 1&0per annum. As of November 30,
2013 and 2012, the balance outstanding under #utdacility was $136.7 million and $111.5 milliorespectively. The long-term loan can be
repaid at any time prior to expiration date withpahalty. We have issued a guarantee to cover LjhG® of the outstanding principal amount
obligations of Infotec Japan to the lenders. Thiglit facility expires in December 2016.

In September 2013, Infotec Japan established &-tdvar revolving credit facility of JPY2.0 billiowith a financial institution. The
interest rate for the credit facility is based dBOR plus a margin of 0.50% per annum. In additibiere is a facility fee of 0.425% per annum
The credit facility can be renewed annually. AfNofvember 30, 2013, the balance outstanding undectédit facility was $19.5 million.

Infotec Japan has a short-term revolving creditifpof JPY1.0 billion with a financial institutio. The credit facility was renewed for
one year in March 2013 and bears an interesthatag based on TIBOR plus a margin of 1.60% peuen As of November 30, 2013 and
2012 , the balances outstanding under these liees $8.8 million and $12.1 million, respectively.

In addition, as of November 30, 2012, Infotec Japah a term loan with a financial institution watbalance of $0.4 million, which was
repaid in December 2012 and bore a fixed intesgstof 1.50% .

As of November 30, 2013 and 2012 , we also had ®@l®n and $1.1 million, respectively, in outstiing capital lease obligations and
obligations for the sale and financing of approaedounts receivable and notes receivable with reequrovisions to Infotec Japan.

Covenants Compliance

In relation to the U.S. Arrangement, the U.S. Crédireement, the Canadian Revolving Arrangementtaadnfotec Japan credit facilit
we have a number of covenants and restrictions énang other things, require us to comply withtaarfinancial and other covenants. These
covenants require us to maintain specified findneigos and satisfy certain financial conditiostte including leverage and fixed charge
coverage ratios. They also limit our ability toum@dditional debt, make intercompany loans, paiddnds and make other types of
distributions, make certain acquisitions, repurehas
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our stock, create liens, enter into agreements afftiates, modify the nature of our businessgeeimtto sale-leaseback transactions, make
certain investments, enter into certain types eflbasome contracts, transfer and sell assets argkéroeconsolidate. As of November 30,
2013, we were in compliance with all material cowets for the above arrangements.

Convertible Debt

In August 2013, we settled our Convertible Seniotds$ with an aggregate principal amount of $143IBom which were issued in May
2008 in a private placement. The Convertible SeNimes bore a cash coupon interest rate of 4.0%npaim and the conversion rate was
33.9945 shares of common stock per $1,000 prineipedunt, equivalent to an initial conversion pi¢&29.42 per share of common stock.
The Convertible Senior Notes were called in the@sdaquarter of fiscal year 2013. No interest wasaed subsequent to May 2013 in
accordance with the Indenture. The final settlenraembunt of $218.9 million was paid in cash and casepl of $143.8 million in principal
payments and $75.1 million in payment of convergicemium. The conversion premium, which represtgreglifference between the total
settlement amount less the principal, was recoadeal reduction of additional paid-in capital. Timalf settlement amount was calculated in
accordance with the Indenture based on the volugighted-average trading price of our common staek the 60 consecutive trading-day
period beginning on and including the third tradday after the related conversion.

Based on a cash coupon interest rate of 4.0%, ezeded contractual interest expense of $3.0 millioring the fiscal year ended
November 30, 201, and $6.5 million for both the fiscal year endeavmber 30, 2012 and 2011. Based on an effectteenfe8.0%, we
recorded non-cash interest expenses of $2.3 millgH3 million , and $4.9 million during the fidgeear ended November 30, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively. As of November 30, 2012, threyaag value of the Convertible Senior Notes, nietimamortized debt discount of $2.3
million, was $141.4 million.

Contractual Obligations

Future principal payments due after November 3@32ihder the above loans, capital leases and apgiabse arrangements are as
follows:

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1-3 3-5 >5
Total 1 Year Years Years Years

(in thousands)

Contractual Obligations:

Principal debt payments $ 317,50¢ $ 252,23: $ 155 $ 60,307 $ 3,41t
Interest on debt 7,371 3,29¢ 2,99¢ 754 327
Non-cancellable capital leases 41¢ 292 127 — —
Non-cancellable operating leases 91,21( 23,82¢ 36,36¢ 18,82¢ 12,19

Total $ 416,50¢ $ 279,64: $ 41,047 $ 79887 $ 1593«

We have issued guarantees to certain vendors addrieof our subsidiaries for trade credit lined lans, and to a certain customer's
lessor. In addition, we as the ultimate parentygui@ed the obligations of SYNNEX Investment HogirCorporation up to $35.0 million in
connection with the sale of China Civilink (Caymanhich operated in China as HiChina Web Solutiem#libaba.com Limited. The total
guarantees issued by us as of November 30, 2013Gkiwas $364.7 million and $264.2 million , redtpely. We are obligated under these
guarantees to pay amounts due should its subsidiaricustomer not pay valid amounts owed to trexidors or lenders or not comply with
subsidiary sales agreements.

As of November 30, 2013 , we have establishederveof $24.4 million for unrecognized tax benefiis we are unable to reasonably
predict the timing of settlement of these guaramte® the reserve for unrecognized tax benefiestable above excludes such liabilities.

Related Party Transactions

We had a business relationship with MiTAC Interoatil Corporation, or MiTAC International, a pubjigkaded company in Taiwan,
which began in 1992 when MITAC International becameprimary investor through its affiliates. Ingsember 2013, MiTAC Holdings
Corporation, or MiTAC Holdings, was establishedtigh a stock swap from MIiTAC International and lmeea publicly traded company on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange. MiTAC International @sve wholly owned subsidiary of MiTAC Holdings. &§ November 30, 2013 and 2012 ,
MITAC Holdings and its affiliates beneficially owdepproximately 26% and 27%, respectively, of @mmmon stock. Matthew Miau, our
Chairman Emeritus of the Board of Directors anedtir, is the Chairman of MiTAC Holdings' and aegtor or officer of MiTAC Holdings'
affiliates.
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The shares owned by MiTAC Holdings are held byfttlewing entities:

As of November 30, 2013
(shares in thousands)

MIiTAC Holdings® 5,552
Synnex Technology International Cof. 4.98°
Total 9,83¢

(1) Shares are held via Silver Star Developmetds & wholly-owned subsidiary of MiTAC Holdingsx&udes 594 thousand shares (of which 534 thoushacks are
directly held and 60 thousand shares are subjeptdrisable options) held by Matthew Miau.

(2) Synnex Technology International Corp., or Syniiechnology International, is a separate enttignfus and is a publicly-traded corporation in TaiwShares are held
via Peer Development Ltd., a wholly-owned subsid@rSynnex Technology International. MiTAC Holdggwns a noncontrolling interest of 8.7% in MiTAC
Incorporated, a privately-held Taiwanese comparjckvin turn holds a noncontrolling interest of@%.in Synnex Technology International. Neither MiTA®IHings
nor Mr. Miau is affiliated with any person(s), ewtior entities that hold a majority interest inTWC Incorporated.

MITAC Holdings generally has significant influenoeer us and over the outcome of all matters subthitb stockholders for
consideration, including any of our mergers or asitjans. Among other things, this could have tffea of delaying, deterring or preventing a
change of control over us.

We purchased inventories from MiTAC Holdings, MiTA&ernational and their affiliates totaling $3tllion, $15.3 million and $12.3
million during fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 201éspectively. Our sales to MiTAC Holdings, MiTACténnational and their affiliates during
fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 totaled $4.4anili$2.7 million and $4.2 million, respectively &ddition, we received reimbursements of
rent and overhead costs for facilities used by MCTHAoldings and MiTAC International amounting to B&illion, $3.7 million and $6.7
million during the fiscal year ended November 3012, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Our business relationship with MiTAC Holdings atslaffiliates has been informal and is not govermgtbng-term commitments or
arrangements with respect to pricing terms, revemwapacity commitments. We negotiated manufaegypricing and other material terms
a case-bycase basis with MiTAC International and our desigd integration customers for a given project. WMITAC Holdings is a relate
party and a controlling stockholder, we believe tha significant terms under our arrangements MifRAC Holdings, including pricing, will
not materially differ from the terms we could haxegotiated with unaffiliated third parties, and sve adopted a policy requiring that mate
transactions with MiTAC Holdings or its related i@ be approved by its Audit Committee, whichasposed solely of independent direct
In addition, Matthew Miau’s compensation is appibg the Nominating and Corporate Governance Cotaajitvhich is also composed
solely of independent directors.

Synnex Technology International is a publicly-tra@erporation in Taiwan that currently providestdmition and fulfillment services to
various markets in Asia and Australia, and is alsopotential competitor. Neither MiTAC Internatedmor Synnex Technology Internationz
restricted from competing with us.

Others

During fiscal year 2012, we sold our 33.3% nonagltitrg ownership interest in SB Pacific, which wasorded as an equity-related
investment, back to SB Pacific. In fiscal year 204 gain of $1.3 million was recognized in Otherxdme (expense), net on this transaction
representing the difference between the sale pdscaed the carrying value of the investment. Weswet the primary beneficiary in SB
Pacific. The controlling shareholder of SB Pacifias Robert Huang, who is our founder and formeriGten. We regarded SB Pacific to be a
variable interest entity.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a summary of recent accounting pronouncemerttshee anticipated effects on our consolidatedniofe statements see Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to foreign currency risk in theradi course of business. We manage cash flow erp®$or our major countries using
a combination of forward contracts. Principal conies hedged are British Pound, Canadian Dollain€se Renminbi, Euro, Indian Rupee,
Japanese Yen, Mexican Peso, and Philippine PesseTihstruments are generally short-term in natwith, typical maturities of less than one
year. We do not hold or issue derivative finangiatruments for trading purpose

The following table presents the hypothetical cleanig fair values of our outstanding derivativarimsients as of November 30, 2013
and 2012 , arising from an instantaneous strengtgesr weakening of the U.S. dollar by 5%, 10% a88&6 (in thousands).

Loss on Derivative Instruments Given a Gain (Loss) Gain on Derivative Instruments Given a
Weakening of U.S. dollar by X Percent Aéshumlng_No Strengthening of U.S. dollar by X Percent
ange in
15% 10% 5% Exchange Rate 5% 10% 15%
Forward contracts at
November 30, 2013 $ (17,067 $ (9,96) $ (3,609 $ 2,11 $ 7,28: % 11,98¢ $ 16,28(
Forward contracts at
November 30, 2012 $ (17,487) $ (10,52¢ $ (4,290 $ 1,31 $ 6,397 $ 11,00¢ $ 15,22%

We do not apply hedge accounting to our forwardremts, our foreign exchange contracts are mar@adérket and any material gains
and losses on our hedge contracts resulting frogpathetical, instantaneous change in the streoigtte U.S. dollar would be significantly
offset by mark-to-market gains and losses on theesponding assets and liabilities being hedged.

Interest Rate Risk

The interest obligations of certain debt obligasitvave floated relative to major interest rate bemarks. While we have not used
derivative financial instruments to alter the ietgrrate characteristics of our investment holdorggebt instruments in the past, we may do sc
in the future.

42




Table of Contents

The following tables present the hypothetical iagtexpense related to our outstanding borrowiritiswariable interest rates for the
years ended November 2013 and 2012 , arising from hypothetical paralhéfts in the respective countries’ yield curvefsplos or minus
5%, 10% and 15% (in thousands).

Interest Expense Given an Interest Actual Interest Interest Expense Given an Interest
Rate Decrease by X Percent Expense Assuming Rate Increase by X Percent
No Change in
15% 10% 5% Interest Rate 5% 10% 15%
SYNNEX US $ 3,02 $ 3,03 % 3,04¢ % 3,065 $ 3,077 % 3,091 % 3,10¢
SYNNEX Canada — — — — — — —
Infotec Japan 3,18: 3,24% 3,25¢ 3,22¢ 3,291 3,30¢ 3,32¢
Total for the year ended
November 30, 2013 $ 6,202 % 6,277 $ 6,30 $ 6,281 $ 6,36¢ $ 6,39¢ % 6,43(
Interest Expense Given an Interest Actual Interest Interest Expense Given an Interest
Rate Decrease by X Percent Expense Assuming Rate Increase by X Percent
No Change in
15% 10% 5% Interest Rate 5% 10% 15%
SYNNEX US $ — 3 — 3 — 3 —  $ — % — 3 —
SYNNEX Canada — — — — — — —
Infotec Japan 2,60 2,75€ 2,90¢ 3,06: 3,191 3,32( 3,44¢
Total for the year ended
November 30, 2012 $ 260 % 2,75¢ $ 2,90¢ $ 3,062 % 3,191 % 3,32 &% 3,44¢

As of November 30, 2013, there were no borrowingtstanding with variable interest rate in CanadaofANovember 30, 2012, there
were no borrowings outstanding with variable ins¢rates in the United States and Canada.

Equity Price Risk

The equity price risk associated with our marketaajuity securities as of November 30, 2013 an@ 20hot material in relation to our
consolidated financial position, results of opemasi or cash flow. Marketable equity securitiesudel shares of common stock. The investn
are classified as either trading or available-fmlesecurities. Securities classified as tradiegrecorded at fair market value, based on quoted
market prices and unrealized gains and lossesalgdied in results of operations. Securities cfesbas available-for-sale are recorded at fair
market value, based on quoted market prices arehlined gains and losses are included in other peimepsive income. Realized gains and
losses, which are calculated based on the spéadfittification method, are recorded in operatioméaurred.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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the Consolidated Financial Statements or in theeblttereto.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahaaorting, as such term is defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Our internal cohtwver financial reporting is designed to providasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaecet of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Our internal control overdfincial reporting includes those policies and pdaces that (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and disposition®of assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituresios are being made only in accordance with authtams of management and directors of us;
and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regardiaggmtion or timely detection of unauthorized acitjois, use, or disposition of our assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegmts.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemtiess of our internal control over financial repgrtased on the framework in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework (1992 framework) issbg the Committee of Sponsoring Organization$effreadway Commission. Based
on this assessment, our management concludesshaft November 30, 2013, our internal control direancial reporting was effective based
on those criteria.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fio@l reporting as of November 30, 2013 has beeélitediby KPMG LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tased in its report which appears in Iltem 8 of thisiual Report on Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders

SYNNEX Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of SYNNEX Corporation and subsidiariee Gompany) as of November
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statsnoé operations, comprehensive income, stockisléguity, and cash flows for the ye
ended November 30, 2013 and 2012. In connection et audits of the consolidated financial stateisiene also have audited the finan
statement schedule of valuation and qualifying aot® as listed in the accompanying index. We abseehaudited the Comparsyinterna
control over financial reporting as of November 3013, based on criteria establishedhiernal Control - Integrated Framework (1998suet
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of Theadway Commission (COSO). The Companyianagement is responsible for t
consolidated financial statements and financidestant schedule, for maintaining effective intercahtrol over financial reporting, and for
assessment of the effectiveness of internal comivel financial reporting, included in the acconying Managemeng Report on Intern
Control over Financial Reporting appearing undeml9A. Our responsibility is to express an opirgonthese consolidated financial statem
and financial statement schedule, and an opiniath@iCompany’s internal control over financial repm based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to inbtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal contreér financial reporting was maintained in all eral respects. Our audits of
consolidated financial statements included examginion a test basis, evidence supporting the amaoamds disclosures in the financ
statements, assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates made by management,esatliating the overall financ
statement presentation. Our audit of internal adndwver financial reporting included obtaining anderstanding of internal control o
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a nelteveakness exists, and testing and evaluatiegdidsign and operating effectivenes
internal control based on the assessed risk. Oditsaalso included performing such other procedwssve considered necessary in
circumstances. We believe that our audits proviteaaonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranagiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial stateisidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdidose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseottimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoasizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanaslsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttemisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of SYNNEX
Corporation and subsidiaries as of November 303201 2012, and the results of their operationstlagid cash flows for the years ended
November 30, 2013 and 2012, in conformity with Ly8nerally accepted accounting principles. Alsounopinion, the related financi
statement schedule, when considered in relatidihetdasic consolidated financial statements takem@hole, presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein. Also@ur opinion, SYNNEX Corporation maintained, ihrahterial respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of November 3013, based on criteria establishedhiernal Control - Integrated Framework (1998suel
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Santa Clara, California

January 27, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of SYNNEorporation:

In our opinion, the consolidated statements of afi@ns, comprehensive income, stockholders equidycash flows for the year ended
November 30, 2011 present fairly, in all materedpects, the results of operations and cash floM@& NNEX Corporation and its subsidiari
for the year ended November 30, 2011, in conformitir accounting principles generally acceptechim Wnited States of America. In additi
in our opinion, the financial statement schedulelfie year ended November 30, 2011 presents fairgl] material respects, the information
set forth therein when read in conjunction with tblated consolidated financial statements. Thiesa€ial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company'sagament. Our responsibility is to express an opioin these financial statements and
financial statement schedule based on our auditcd¥eucted our audit of these statements in acnoedaith the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Statéhpse standards require that we plan and perfoenatdit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatise® of material misstatement. An audit incluekeamining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the iahstatements, assessing the accounting prirscyled and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financé&éstent presentation. We believe that our auditiges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California

January 27, 2012
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SYNNEX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(currency and share amounts in thousands, exceptrfpar value)

November 30, November 30,
2013 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 151,62: $ 163,69¢
Short-term investments 15,13« 15,93
Accounts receivable, net 1,593,19. 1,401,08
Receivable from affiliates 14€ 28t
Inventories 1,095,10 923,34(
Current deferred tax assets 22,03 23,39(
Other current assets 54,50: 52,72
Total current assets 2,931,73 2,580,46.
Property and equipment, net 133,24¢ 122,92
Goodwill 188,53! 189,08
Intangible assets, net 23,77: 29,04¢
Deferred tax assets 7,867 61¢
Other assets 40,73 41,12;
Total assets $ 3,325,88° % 2,963,26:
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Borrowings under securitization, term loans anddiof credit $ 252,52 % 52,69¢
Convertible debt — 141,43t
Accounts payable 1,350,041 1,110,60
Payable to affiliates 3,861 1,22¢
Accrued liabilities 181,32! 181,27(
Income taxes payable 1,62¢ 7,47(
Total current liabilities 1,789,37 1,494,70
Long-term borrowings 65,40t 81,15:
Long-term liabilities 56,41¢ 58,78:
Deferred tax liabilities 3,04 9,26¢
Total liabilities 1,914,24; 1,643,90
Commitments and contingencies (Note 19)
SYNNEX Corporation stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,000 sharémeréd, no shares issued or outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000 sharesangil, 38,052 and 37,348 shares issue
of November 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively 38 37
Additional paid-in capital 286,32¢ 324,29:
Treasury stock, 842 and 720 shares as of Noventhe&03.3 and 2012, respectively (27,450 (21,617
Accumulated other comprehensive income 19,16¢ 35,40¢
Retained earnings 1,133,13 980,90(
Total SYNNEX Corporation stockholders’ equity 1,411,22; 1,319,02.
Noncontrolling interest 41¢ 332
Total equity 1,411,64. 1,319,35!
Total liabilities and equity $ 3,325,88! $ 2,963,26:

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oetlémnsolidated Financial Statements.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(currency and share amounts in thousands, exceptifper share amounts)

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011

Revenue $ 10,845,16 $ 10,28550 $ 10,409,84
Cost of revenue (10,190,19) (9,628,771 (9,779,34)
Gross profit 654,97( 656,73 630,49!
Selling, general and administrative expenses (414,14) (401,72Y (374,27()
Income before non-operating items, income taxesnamdontrolling interest 240,82¢ 255,01: 256,22¢
Interest expense and finance charges, net (17,119 (22,930) (25,505
Other income (expense), net 14,33¢ 4,471 (1,00%)
Income before income taxes and noncontrolling eger 238,05: 236,55: 229,71¢
Provision for income taxes (85,730) (84,050 (79,16%)
Net income 152,32. 152,50: 150,55!
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest (85) (1,127%) (222)
Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation $ 152,23 $ 151,37¢  $ 150,33:
Earnings per share attributable to SYNNEX Corporati

Basic $ 4.1 % 414 % 4.2C

Diluted $ 3.06 $ 3.9¢ $ 4.0¢
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:

Basic 36,88¢ 36,58 35,83(

Diluted 37,80( 37,90¢ 36,83

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oetl@émnsolidated Financial Statements.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(currency in thousands)

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

Net income $
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities,af $0 tax for the fiscal year
ended November 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011
Change in unrecognized pension and post-retiretremdfit costs, net of $0 tax for
the fiscal year ended November 30, 2013, 2012 aid 2
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net ofdb%875, $374 and $115 for the
fiscal years ended November 30, 2013, 2012 and,2@%fectively

Total other comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income:
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontroliirigrest

Comprehensive income attributable to SYNNEX Corpiore $

2013 2012 2011

152,32, $ 15250 $ 150,55
384 57 17¢
(271) 69 (214
(16,369 4,62¢ 2,707
(16,25)) 4,75¢ 2,667
136,07 157,25 153,21
(71) (518) (894
136,000 $  156,73¢ $ 152,32

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oetl@nsolidated Financial Statements.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(currency and share amounts in thousands)

SYNNEX Corporation Shareholders

Accumulated

Common stock  aAdditional Treasury Stock other
paid-in comprehensive Retained  Noncontrolling Total
Shares Amount capital Shares Amount income (loss)  earnings interest equity
Balances, November 30, 2010 3576( $ 3€ $ 290,51 19 $ (5,100 $ 28,03t $ 679,19 $ 157 $ 992,82
Share-based compensation — — 7.99: — — — — 7,99:
Tax benefits from exercise of non-qualified stock
options — — 4,40¢ — — — — 4,40¢
Issuance of common stock on exercise of options,
for employee stock purchase plan and vesting of . . . _ _ _
restricted stock, net of shares withheld for emeéy 811 1 7,408 15¢ (4,742 2,66+
taxes
Repurchase of Common Stock — _ — 62 (1,676) — — — (1,676)
Changes in ownership of noncontrolling interests _ — — — — 9,02¢ 9,02¢
Other comprehensive income — _ — — 1,991 — 672 2,66:
Net income — — — — — 150,33: 222 150,55!
Balances, November 30, 2011 36,57 37 310,31 407 (11,529 30,02¢ 829,52 10,07¢  1,168,45
Share-based compensation _ _ 8,43¢ _ — — 7 8,44F
Tax benefits from exercise of non-qualified stock
options — — 3,628 — — — — 3,627
Issuance of common stock on exercise of options,
for employee stock purchase plan and vesting of
restricted stock, net of shares withheld for emeéy
taxes 771 — 9,53¢ 69 (2,30 — — 9€ 7,33(
Repurchase of Common Stock — — 244 (7,782) — — — (7,782)
Changes in ownership of noncontrolling interests ~ _ — (7,629 — 16 — (10,36¢) (17,979
Other comprehensive income _ _ _ _ 5,36° — (609) 4,75¢
Net income — — — — — 151,37t 1,125 152,50:
Balances, November 30, 2012 37,34¢ 37 324,29; 72 (21,61) 35,40¢ 980,90( 33z 1,319,35
Share-based compensation _ _ 9,17¢ — — — — 9,17«
Tax benefits from exercise of non-qualified stock
options — — 5,35¢ — — — — 5,35¢
Issuance of common stock on exercise of options,
for employee stock purchase plan and vesting of
restricted stock, net of shares withheld for empéoy
taxes 704 1 8,58¢ 67 (3,959 — — 4,63(
Repurchase of Common Stock — — 55 (1,887) — — — (1,887)
Conversion premium of convertible debt (75,120 (75,120
Deferred tax adjustment for settlement of
convertible debt 14,03: 14,03:
Changes in ownership of noncontrolling interests _ 9 — — — 1€ 25
Other comprehensive income _ _ — — (16,23) — (14) (16,25))
Net income — — — — — 152,23 85 152,32:
Balances, November 30, 2013 3805: $ 3¢ $ 286,32 84z $(27,450) $ 19,16¢ $1,133,13 $ 41¢  $1,411,64

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oetl@ensolidated Financial Statements.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(currency in thousands)

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 152,32 % 152,50 $ 150,55!
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation expense 16,50¢ 16,34 17,08¢
Amortization of intangible assets 7,95: 8,28¢ 7,58¢
Accretion of convertible notes discount 2,31¢ 5,27: 4,87
Share-based compensation 9,17¢ 8,44t 7,992
Provision for (benefit from) doubtful accounts 2,95: (1,68%) 8,50¢
Tax benefits from employee stock plans 5,35¢ 3,62: 4,40¢
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation (5,445 (3,149 (4,389
(Gains) losses on investments (1,05¢) (2,89 1,33¢
(Gains) losses on disposal of assets and businesses — (1,290 15¢
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqaisitif businesses:
Accounts receivable (187,489 (112,96% 29,47¢
Inventories (155,22)) 49,49 28,24(
Other assets (5,579 3,59: (4,009
Accounts payable 186,18 108,28: (49,40
Receivable from affiliates 13¢ 1,05¢ 2,70
Payable to affiliates 2,63¢ (1,34¢) (2,955
Accrued liabilities 10,42( (73€) 3,00¢
Deferred liabilities (5,469) 9,95¢ 12,977
Net cash provided by operating activities 35,70" 242, 79: 219,15:
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of trading investments (539) (4,047 (1,545
Proceeds from sale of trading investments 3,65( 6,281 3,161
Investment in held-to-maturity term deposits, net (262) (26¢€) (6,789
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (27,129 (1,592) (60,355
Purchase of property and equipment (28,96%) (14,485 (40,157
Loans and deposits to third parties, net of paymesteived 1,867 (1,099 (2,919
Proceeds from sale of (investment in) businesses (1,709 — 1,03:
Proceeds from sale of (investment in) equity-metinvdstee 4,157 3,48( (4,782)
Changes in restricted cash 5,14: 2,152 (14,049
Net cash used in investing activities (43,789 (9,560 (126,389
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from securitization and revolving linesreflit 1,210,31! 1,430,39 4,224,559
Payment of securitization and revolving lines afdit (1,055,59) (1,533,92) (4,330,32)
Proceeds from long-term bank loans — — 87,30¢
Payment of long-term bank loans, capital leaseso#imer borrowings (1,479) (2,949) (121,42
Payment of Convertible Senior Notes (218,870 — —
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation 5,44F 3,14 4,38¢
Increase (decrease) in book overdraft 60,46 (26,504 13,60¢
Payment of acquisition related contingent consittamna — (1,054 _
Cash paid for repurchase of treasury stock (1,887 (7,789 (1,676)
Proceeds of issuance of common stock, net of taadesfor settlement of equity awards 4,63( 7,23¢ 2,66¢
Payment for purchase of shares of subsidiary froncantrolling interest (11,400 (6,050) —
Capital contribution by noncontrolling interest — — 6,411

Net cash used in financing activities (8,366 (137,49) (114,44




Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiatnts
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiwalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oketi@mnsolidated Financial Statements.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except pshare amounts)

NOTE 1—ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

SYNNEX Corporation (together with its subsidiariberein referred to as “SYNNEX” or the “Companys)a business process services
company offering a comprehensive range of sentwessellers, retailers, and original equipment ufiacturers (“OEMs”) worldwide.
SYNNEX’s business process services include distislbuand business process outsourcing (“BPO”) sestiSYNNEX is headquartered in
Fremont, California and has operations in North Aoz Central America, Asia and Europe.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith generally accepted accounting principléSAAP”) in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assas it affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finarstialements and the reported amounts of revenuexgethse during the reporting period. The
Company evaluates these estimates on a regular dradibases them on historical experience and rwugeassumptions that the Company
believes are reasonable. Actual results could rdiften the estimates.

Principles of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include toeunts of the Company and its wholly-owned sulbsies and majority-owned
subsidiaries in which no substantive participatights are held by minority stockholders. All intempany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include 1608e assets and liabilities of majorityvned subsidiaries and the ownership inte
of minority investors is recorded as noncontrollingerest. Investments in 20% through 50% owneiliafd companies are accounted under
the equity method where the Company exercisesfignt influence over operating and financial aaif the investee and is not the primary
beneficiary. Investments in less than 20% ownedpaoies are recorded under the cost method.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are based on components oftin@ahy that engage in business activity that eawenue and incurs expenses an
(a) whose operating results are regularly revielsethe Company's chief operating decision make©OQ®™") to make decisions about
resource allocation and performance and (b) fockwhliscrete financial information is available. T®empany focuses on providing a full
range of distribution and Global Business Serv{t€&8S") offerings to its customers and operatesvio segments.

The distribution services segment distributes enipls, information technology ("IT") systems, umtihg data center server and storage
solutions, system components, software, networkogpment, including consumer electronics (“CE#d complementary products to a var
of customers, including value-added resellers esyshtegrators and retailers. The Company alsoigeswdesign and integration services.

The GBS segment provides a range of BPO serviegsrttlude direct sales, technical support, custasaee, lead management, renev
management, back office processing and informagohnology outsourcing on a global platform. Thevises are delivered via voice, chat,
web, email and digital print.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid debt instants purchased with an original maturity or renmagjmimaturity at date of purchase
three months or less to be cash equivalents. Gashatents consist principally of money market d@paccounts that are stated at cost, whick
approximates fair value. The Company is exposeaxiddit risk in the event of default by financiasiitutions to the extent that cash balances
with financial institutions are in excess of amauthtat are insured.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(conti nued)
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except pshare amounts)

Restricted cash

Restricted cash balances relate to temporary ecéstrs caused by the timing of lockbox collectiomgler the Company’s borrowing
arrangements, future payments to contractors #tahg-term projects at the Company’s Mexico openaand deposits.

The following table summarizes the restricted daeslances as of November 30, 2013 and 2012 andt¢hédn where these amounts are
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

As of November 30,

2013 2012
Related to borrowing arrangements and others:
Other current assets $ 22,34¢ % 23,24
Related to long-term projects:
Other assets 1,86t 6,10:
Total restricted cash $ 2421 $ 29,35(
Investments

The Company classifies its investments in marketabturities as trading and available-for-sale Kel@ble securities related to its
deferred compensation plan are classified as tgaalil are recorded at fair value, based on quotellenprices, and unrealized gains and
losses are included in “Other income (expense}),inéghe Company’s financial statements. All otsecurities are classified as available-for-
sale and are recorded at fair market value, basepioted market prices, and unrealized gains aswk®are included in “Accumulated other
comprehensive income,” a component of stockholdsgeity. Realized gains and losses on availablesdite securities, which are calculated
based on the specific identification method, anglides in value judged to be other-than-temporéugny, are recorded in “Other income
(expense), net” as incurred.

To determine whether a decline in value is othanttemporary, the Company evaluates several factmisiding the current economic
environment, market conditions, operational andritial performance of the investee, and other Spéattors relating to the business
underlying the investment, including business aklof the investee, future trends in the investeedsistry and the Company'’s intent to carry
the investment for a sufficient period of time &y recovery in fair value. If a decline in valsedeemed as other-than-temporary, the
Company records reductions in carrying values tionaged fair values, which are determined basedumted market prices if available or on
one or more of the valuation methods such as grigindels using historical and projected finanai&imation, liquidation values, and values
of other comparable public companies.

The Company classifies its term deposits with faiahinstitutions, with maturities from the datemfrchase greater than three months
and less than one year , as held-to-maturity imvests. These term deposits are held until the rtvatleite and are not traded.

The Company has investments in equity instrumeinpsivately-held companies and investments for Wwhieere are not readily
determinable fair values. The investments thatrarleded in “Short-term investments” are accourftgdunder the cost method of accounting.
The long-term investments, which the Company hastiility and intent to hold for more than twelvenths, are included in “Other assets”
and are accounted for under the cost method oluaticg. The Company monitors its cost-method inwesits for impairment by considering
current factors, including the economic environmemdrket conditions, operational performance ahérmspecific factors relating to the
business underlying the investment, and recordsctamhs in carrying values when necessary.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is an estin@igover the losses resulting from the inabilit)caftomers to make payments for
outstanding balances. In estimating the requirkvaince, the Company takes into consideration teeadl quality and aging of the accounts
receivable, credit evaluations of customers’ finahcondition and existence of credit insurancee Tompany also evaluates the collectability
of accounts receivable based on specific customarmstances, current economic trends, historigpégence with collections and any value
and adequacy of collateral received from customers.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or maiRost is computed based on the weighted-avenagigod. Inventories consist of
finished goods purchased from various manufactdegrdistribution resale and components used fiagration services. The Company adjust
the inventory carrying value for cost in excessnafrket value and product obsolescence.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, lessradated depreciation and amortization. Depreaiagiod amortization are computed
using the straight-line method based upon the shofithe estimated useful lives of the assetth@iease term of the respective assets, if
applicable. Maintenance and repairs are chargedfgense as incurred, and improvements are capitli¥hen assets are retired or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciatidramortization are removed from the accountsaagdesulting gain or loss is reflected in
operations in the period realized. The ranges tihesed useful lives for property and equipmenggaties are as follows:

Equipment and Furniture 3-10 year:
Software 3-7 years
Leasehold Improvements 2-15 year:
Buildings and Building Improvements 1040 year:

Goodwill and intangible assets

The values assigned to goodwill and intangible tassee based on estimates and judgment regardpeg&tions for the success and life
cycle of products and technologies acquired insin@ss combination. Purchased intangible assetnaoetized over the useful lives based on
the estimate of the use of economic benefit ofdset or on the straight-line amortization method.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually in tloeifth quarter. For the purpose of its goodwill gsed, the Company has two reporting
units, the distribution services reporting unit dhe GBS reporting unit. Goodwill is tested for iampent at the reporting unit level by first
performing a qualitative assessment to determinetivgn it is more likely than not that the fair valof the reporting unit is less than its carn
value. The factors that were considered in theittize analysis included the macroeconomic coadgj industry and market considerations,
cost factors such as increases in product cogir,lab other costs that would have a negative effiaearnings and cash flows; and other
relevant entity-specific events and information.

If the reporting unit does not pass the qualitatiseessment, then the reporting unit's carryingevial compared to its fair value. The fair
values of the reporting units are estimated usiagkat and discounted cash flow approaches. ThergBns used in the market approach are
based on the value of a business through an asalf/siultiples of guideline companies, recent safesfferings of a comparable entity. The
assumptions used in the discounted cash flow apprae based on historical and forecasted revepegating costs, future economic
conditions, and other relevant factors. Goodwittasisidered impaired if the carrying value of thparting unit exceeds its fair value. The
annual goodwill impairment analysis did not resulan impairment charge for fiscal years 2013 ,28dd 2011 .

Intangible assets primarily consist of vendor latsl customer lists. Intangible assets are amdrasefollows:

Customer Lists 4-10 year:
Vendor Lists 4-10 year:
Other Intangible Assets 1-10 year:

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews the recoverability of its |dived assets, such as intangible assets, propediequipment and certain other ass
when events or changes in circumstances occuirttiiaate the carrying value of the asset or asseiggmay not be recoverable. The
assessment of possible impairment is based ondhg@ny’s ability to recover the carrying value lod tasset or asset group from the expecte
future pre-tax cash flows, undiscounted and withoigrest charges, of the related
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operations. If these cash flows are less thandlmyiog value of such assets, an impairment lossdsgnized for the difference between
estimated fair value and carrying value.

Software costs

The Company develops software platforms for inteasa and for resale. The Company capitalizes dostsred to develop software for
resale subsequent to the software product reatbagological feasibility. Capitalized costs areoatimed over the economic life of the
product using the greater of the straight-line dimation or using the ratio of current revenueutufe expected revenue.

The Company capitalizes the costs incurred to dgvebftware for internal use when new softwareeigetbped, the life of existing
software is extended or significant enhancemertgidded to the features of existing software. Epitalized development costs mainly
include payroll costs.

Concentration of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@npany to significant concentration of credit rigkisist principally of cash and cash
equivalents and accounts receivable. The Compaagl and cash equivalents are maintained withduiglity institutions, the compositions
and maturities of which are regularly monitorednbgnagement. Through November 30, 2018 Company had not experienced any losst
such deposits.

Accounts receivable include amounts due from custsrand vendors primarily in the technology industihe Company performs
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ finahcondition and limits the amount of credit exded when deemed necessary, but generally
requires no collateral. The Company also maintallesvances for potential credit losses. In estintathe required allowances, the Company
takes into consideration the overall quality anth@@f the receivable portfolio, the existence difidted amount of credit insurance and
specifically identified customer and vendor riskarough November 30, 2013, such losses have b#bimwnanagement’s expectations.

In fiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2011 no customeswated for 10% or more of the Company's reventmdRts purchased from the
Company’s largest OEM supplier, Hewlett-Packard @any (“HP”), accounted for approximately 31% , 36#@ 35% of the total revenue for
fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

As of November 30, 2013, no customer accounted 6 or more of the total consolidated accountsivable balance. As of
November 302012 , one customer accounted for 10% of the tmmsolidated accounts receivable balance.

Revenue recognition

The Company generally recognizes revenue on tleeo$ddardware and software products when theyldpped and on services when
they are performed, if a purchase order existss#es price is fixed or determinable, collectibmesulting accounts receivable is reasonably
assured, risk of loss and title have transferretimonduct returns are reasonably estimable. Pangsfor sales returns and allowances are
estimated based on historical data and are recaaeclirrently with the recognition of revenue. Tépsovisions are reviewed and adjusted
periodically by the Company. Revenue is reducecéoty payment discounts and volume incentive e=baffered to customers. The Comp
recognizes revenue on a net basis on certain atsitiacluding service contracts, pastatract software support services and extendethwiy
contracts, where it is not the primary obligor,rbgognizing the margins earned in revenue withssoeiated cost of revenue.

The Company provides services such as call ceneteewals management, maintenance and contract exaeag services to its
customers under contracts that typically consist ofaster services agreement or statement of wiikh contains the terms and conditions of
each program and service offerings. Typically thet@cts are time-based or transactions or voluased Revenue is generally recognized
over the term of the contract or when service lenbrendered, the sales price is fixed or detefsiérend collection of the resulting accounts
receivable is reasonably assured.

Revenue derived from the Company's operation inidbeixcludes projects with the Mexican governmant ather local agencies that
are long-term in nature. Under the agreementsCtimapany sells computers and equipment to contrsathat provide services to the Mexican
government. The Company also sells computer equipare services directly to the Mexican governm&hge payments are due on a monthly
basis and contingent upon the satisfactory perfoomaf certain services, fulfillment of certain ighltions and meeting certain conditions. The
Company recognizes revenue and cost of revenuestraight-line basis over the term of the conteecthe contingencies are satisfied and
payments become due.
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Shipping and handling costs
Costs related to shipping and handling are inclidé@ost of revenue.”
OEM supplier programs

Funds received from OEM suppliers for volume prdoroprograms, price protection and product rebatesecorded as adjustments to
cost of revenue and the carrying value of inveegras appropriate. Where there is a binding aggegrie Company tracks vendor
promotional programs for volume discounts on a @pgby-program basis and records them as a reductioost of revenue based on a
systematic and rational allocation. The Companyitosthe balances of vendor receivables on a grgitbasis and adjusts the balances due
for differences between expected and actual salesne. Vendor receivables are generally colledtedugh reductions authorized by the
vendor, to accounts payable. Funds received farifspenarketing and infrastructure reimbursementd, of direct costs, are recorded as
adjustments to “Selling, general and administragixpenses,” and any excess reimbursement amorgddsded as an adjustment to cost of
revenue.

Royalties

The Company's software product purchases includéygts licensed from OEM vendors, which are subsetdydistributed to resellers.
Royalties to OEM vendors are accrued and recondedst of revenue when software products are stippd revenue is recognized.

Warranties

The Company’s OEM suppliers generally warrant ttelpcts distributed by the Company and allow retwhdefective products. The
Company generally does not independently warranptbducts it distributes; however, the Companysdearrant the following: (1) products
that it builds to order from components purchasethfother sources; and (2) its services with reg@amroducts that it assembles for its
customers. To date neither warranty expense, moadhrual for warranty costs has been materiddeédCiompany’s Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Advertising

Costs related to advertising and product promagiquenditures are charged to “Selling, general amdiristrative expenses” as incurred
and are primarily offset by OEM marketing reimbumssts. To date, net costs related to advertisidgoaomotion expenditures have not been
material.

Income taxes

The asset and liability method is used in accogrfiim income taxes. Under this method, deferrecatsets and liabilities are recognized
for the expected tax consequences of temporargrdiftes between the tax bases of assets andikabéind their reported amounts in the
financial statements using enacted tax rates amgl tlaat will be in effect when the difference ipegted to reverse. Valuation allowances are
provided against deferred tax assets that arakedy ito be realized.

Foreign currency translations

The financial statements of the Company's foreighsgliaries whose functional currencies are thalloarrencies are translated into L
dollars for consolidation as follows: assets aadilities at the exchange rate as of the balaneetstate, stockholders’ equity at the historical
rates of exchange, and income and expense amduhtsaverage exchange rate for the month. Traoslatjustments resulting from the
translation of the subsidiaries’ accounts are idetlin “Accumulated other comprehensive income.ih&and losses resulting from foreign
currency transactions are included within “Othexoime (expense), net.” Such amounts are not signifi® any of the periods presented.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is defined as the changeuiityeaf a business enterprise during a period ftansactions and other events and
circumstances from non-owner sources. The primamyponents of comprehensive income for the Compaciyde net income, foreign
currency translation adjustments arising from thesolidation of the Company’s foreign subsidiarig®ealized gains and losses on the
Company’s available-for-sale securities and thangba in unrecognized pension and post retiremarefite.
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Share-based compensation

Share-based compensation is estimated at the dmsbased on the fair value of the awards expectedst and recognized as expense
ratably over the requisite service period of the@vThe Company uses the Black-Scholes valuatimeeirto estimate fair value of share-
based option awards, which requires various assangincluding estimating stock price volatilitychaxpected life.

Pension and post-retirement benefits

Defined benefit pension costs are estimated usanigws actuarial assumptions including discourgsag¢xpected return on plan assets,
inflation, mortality rates and compensation incesag he assumptions used are reviewed on an apasial The Company records pension
expense related to multi-employer defined benddimg based on the amount of contributions thatanéractually owed during the period.

Earnings per common share

Earnings per common shabesic is computed by dividing the net income attidble to SYNNEX Corporation for the period by theesic
weighted-average number of outstanding common share

Earnings per common share-diluted is computed biyngdhe dilutive effect of in-the-money employéeck options, restricted stock
awards, restricted stock units and similar equistruments granted by the Company to the basichiedgaverage number of outstanding
common shares. The Company uses the treasury miettiod, under which, the amount the employee masfqr exercising stock options, t
amount of compensation cost for future servicestttmCompany has not yet recognized and the amafuak benefits that would be recorded
in “Additional paid-in capital” when the award beses deductible are assumed to be used to repurshases.

It was the Company’s intent to settle the princgoalount of the 4% Convertible Senior Notes due 88" Convertible Senior Notes")
in cash; accordingly, the principal amount was edet from the determination of diluted earningsgiare. In April 2013, the Company
decided to settle the payment of the conversiompne in cash as discussed in Note 12 — Converbtabt. Through April 2013, the
Company accounted for the conversion premium usiadgreasury stock method by adjusting the dilutedyhted-average common shares if
the effect was dilutive. From April 2013, the nuater for the computation of earnings per commonmesidduted was adjusted for the changes
in the estimated value of the conversion premiuti tire final settlement date.

The calculation of earnings per common share ataitile to SYNNEX Corporation is presented in Nd@e 1
Treasury Stock

Repurchases of shares of common stock are accofamtaticost, which includes brokerage fees, aedrariuded as a component of
stockholders' equity in the Consolidated BalanceeBh

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to peaod amounts in the Consolidated Balance Sheet€ansolidated Statements of
Cash Flows to conform to current period presemat®uch reclassifications have no effect on tha mirrent assets, total assets, cash flow
from operating, investing and financing activitespreviously reported.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standddard ("FASB") issued an accounting update, whitfuires companies to prov
information about the amounts reclassified outaguanulated other comprehensive income by compoheatldition, an entity is required to
present significant amounts reclassified out ofianalated other comprehensive income but only ifatm®unt reclassified is required under
U.S. GAAP to be reclassified to net income in itdirety in the same reporting period. The amendmare effective prospectively for report
periods beginning after December 15, 2012 withyeadlbption permitted. The accounting update wilbpelicable to the Company in the first
quarter of fiscal year 2014.

In March 2013, the FASB issued an accounting uptheteclarifies the applicable guidance for theask of the cumulative translation
adjustment when an entity ceases to have a cangdihancial interest in a subsidiary or a grodimssets that is a business within a foreign
entity. The guidance clarifies that the accounforghe release of cumulative
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translation adjustment into net income for salesansfers of a controlling financial interest viiitta foreign entity is the same irrespective of
whether the sale or transfer is of a subsidiarg group of assets that is a business. The accgumpidate is applicable for fiscal years and
interim reporting periods within those years begigrafter December 15, 2013 with early adoptiompted. The accounting update will be
applicable for the Company in the second quartéisoél year 2014.

In July 2013, the FASB issued a new accountingdstaththat will require the presentation of certaimecognized tax benefits as
reductions to deferred tax assets rather tharahtiiities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets wheet@perating loss carryforward, a similar
loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists. The m@eounting update will be applicable to the Comparthe first quarter of fiscal 2015;
however, early adoption and retrospective applicatire permitted. The Company is currently evahggtine impact of this new standard on its
Consolidated Financial Statements.

During fiscal year 2013, the following accountingtandards were adopted:

In June 2011, the FASB issued an accounting ugbateamends the presentation of “Comprehensivenietin the financial statemen
The new guidance is effective for fiscal years, mmerim periods within those years, beginningraldecember 15, 2011, with early adoption
permitted. The Company adopted the accounting epdahe first quarter of fiscal year 2013 and updats presentation of comprehensive
income in the financial statements.

NOTE 3—ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES:
IBM customer care business acquisition

On September 10, 2013, the Company announced #ateired into a Master Asset Purchase Agreemeéhtlaternational Business
Machines Corporation, a New York corporation (“IBMpursuant to which the Company will acquire IBMistomer care business ("the
Assets") for an aggregate purchase price of $505,80bject to post-closing adjustments. A portbthe purchase price will be paid in shares
of the Company's common stock up to the lesse?5faR0 or 5% of the outstanding shares of the Caylpommon stock and the remainder
will be paid in cash.

Completion of the acquisition is subject to custon@osing conditions, including regulatory apprtsva
Fiscal year 2013 acquisitions

In April 2013, the Company acquired substantiallyofthe assets of Supercom Canada Limited ("SegrarCanada™), a distributor of
information technology ("IT") and consumer eleciosnproducts and services in Canada. The purchiasewas approximately CAD37,593 ,
or US$36,665 , in cash, including CAD4,450 , or US40 , in deferred payments, subject to certasi-pwsing conditions, payable within 18
months. Subsequent to the acquisition, the Compepaid debt and working capital lines in the amafidS$53,721 . Based on the
preliminary purchase price allocation, the Compaoorded net tangible assets of US$26,912 , gobdfWi)S$5,384 and intangible assets of
US$4,369 in relation to this acquisition. This asifion did not meet the conditions of a materiasiness combination and was not subject to
the disclosure requirements of accounting guiddoicbusiness combinations utilizing the purchas¢hme of accounting. The acquisition is
integrated into the distribution services segmeautia expected to expand the Company's existindymtcand service offerings in Canada.

Fiscal year 2012 acquisitions and divestitures

In fiscal year 2012, the Company purchased shdriés subsidiary SYNNEX Infotec Corporation (“Infat Japan”), which were held by
the noncontrolling interest SB Pacific Corporatiomited ("SB Pacific") for $17,450 , of which $1D@ was paid during the fiscal year ended
November 30, 201. The transaction increased the Company's ownenstagest in Infotec Japan from 70.0% to 99.8%fidoal year 2012,
the Company also sold its 33.3% noncontrollingrieééin SB Pacific, its equity-method investeehat time, back to SB Pacific. During the
fiscal year ended November 30, 2013 , the Compegcgived the final payment of $4,153 of the saleepri

In fiscal year 2012, the Company acquired a busiirethe GBS segment for a purchase price of $6200$1,200 payable upon the
completion of certain post-closing procedures ah@®0 contingent consideration payable upon théeegement of certain target earnings. The
Company recorded goodwill of $6,150 in relatioriite above acquisition. This acquisition did not titke conditions of a material business
combination and was not subject to the disclosegeirements of accounting guidance for businessauations utilizing the purchase method
of accounting.
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NOTE 4—STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
2013 Stock Incentive Plan

The Company’s 2013 Stock Incentive Plan was adopyeits Board of Directors and approved by its ktmdders in 2013. The plan
provides for the direct award or sale of sharesoofimon stock, restricted stock awards, and resttistock units, the grant of options to
purchase shares of common stock and the awardak appreciation rights to employees and non-enga@ajirectors and consultants.

The 2013 Stock Incentive Plan is administered leyGompany’s Compensation Committee. The Compems@bonmittee determines
which eligible individuals are to receive awardslenthe plan, the number of shares subject toweds, the vesting schedule applicable tc
awards and other terms of the award, subject téirthies of the plan. The Compensation Committee melegate its administrative authority,
subject to certain limitations, with respect toiinduals who are not officers.

The Board of Directors may amend or modify the 281&ck Incentive Plan at any time, subject to aguired stockholder approval. 1
plan will terminate no later than March 19, 202BeThumber of shares granted, issued, retainablested under an award may be subject to
the attainment of individual, divisional or Companide performance goals.

The number of authorized shares under the 201Xk $teentive Plan will not exceed the sum of 1,6B6res of common stock, plus any
shares under the Amended and Restated 2003 Stoehtive Plan (the “2003 Stock Incentive Plan”) thia subject to outstanding awards
granted to the extent those awards expire, termimasire canceled for any reason prior to exewig®ut the issuance or delivery of such
shares, any shares subject to vesting restrictimisare subsequently forfeited, and any reserkiatks not issued or subject to outstanding
awards, up to a maximum of 2,750 shares. No ppaitiin the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan may recept@a grants or stock appreciation
rights, restricted shares or restricted stock uoitsnore than 1,500 shares per calendar yearpoe than 2,500 shares in the participant’s first
calendar year of service.

Under the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan, qualified eayipés are eligible for the grant of incentive stopkions to purchase shares of
common stock. Qualified employees and outside tire@nd consultants are eligible for the gramafistatutory stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock grants amsttided stock units. The outstanding stock optiamg restricted stock awards granted to
qualified employees generally vest over a five-ymiod and the stock options have a contractual tf ten years.

Every outside director who first joins the Boarddifectors will receive an option to purchase 1@rsk and restricted shares equal to $9
based on the fair value of the shares on the dageant. Each outside director will also qualifyrereive an annual grant of restricted shares
equal to $90 based on the fair value of the shamabe date of grant. The stock options vest améothird of the stock underlying the stock
options on the first anniversary date of the geartt the remaining vest monthly over a two-yearquestarting one month after the first
anniversary of the date of grant. The restrictedlsgjrants vest as to one quarter of the restrigtieck on each fiscal quarter following the date
of the grant over a one-year period.

The Compensation Committee determines the exepcise of options and the purchase price of restictock grants; however, the
option price for incentive stock options will na kess than 100% of the fair market value of tbheksbn the date of grant.

Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan

The Company’s 2003 Stock Incentive Plan was addpyets Board of Directors and approved by its khmtders in 2003 and amended
and approved by its stockholders again in 2008.pl&e provides for the direct award or sale of ehaf common stock, restricted stock
awards and restricted stock units, the grant abaptto purchase shares of common stock and thedaxfatock appreciation rights to
employees and non-employee directors, advisorsansultants.

The 2003 Stock Incentive Plan was administerechbyQompany’s Compensation Committee. The Compams@bmmittee determined
which eligible individuals were to receive awardslar the plan, the number of shares subject tawregds, the vesting schedule applicable to
the awards and other terms of the award, subjetittimits of the plan. The Compensation Committesy delegate its administrative
authority, subject to certain limitations, with pest to individuals who are not officerdhe number of shares granted, issued, retainable or
vested under an award could be subject to thehaitewt of individual, divisional or Company-wide flemance goals.

The plan terminated in March 2013. The number tienized shares under the 2003 Stock Incentive &afd not exceed 14,120 shares
of common stock. No participant in the 2003 Staudehtive Plan could receive option grants or stock
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appreciation rights, restricted shares or resttisteck units for more than 1,500 shares per caleyehr, or more than 2,500 shares in the
participant’s first calendar year of service.

Prior to January 4, 2007, qualified non-employeedaors who first joined the Board of Directorseafthe plan was effective received an
initial option grant of 25 shares, and all non-emyek directors were eligible for annual option gsasf 5shares for each year they continue
serve. The exercise price of these option granssegaal to 100% of the fair market value of thds#ras on the date of the grant.

Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, amd after January 4, 2007

After January 4, 2007, qualified non-employee doexwho first joined the Board of Directors aftke plan was effective received an
initial option grant of 10 shares and 2 sharessfricted stock. All non-employee directors weigikle for annual grants of 2 shares of
restricted stock for each year they continued teeséThe exercise price of these option grantsewasl to 100% of the fair market value of
those shares on the date of the grant. In additioa third of the restricted stock grants vestedach anniversary date of the grant over a
period of three years. One third of the stock aptivested on the first anniversary date of thetgrad the remaining vested monthly ovdwa
-year period starting one month after the firstia@rsary of the date of grant. The annual grantestricted stock vested in full upon the
director’s retirement with the consent of the Boafdirectors.

Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, aftNovember 21, 2008

After November 21, 2008, the vesting schedule talifjied non-employee directors’ annual grants shares of restricted stock was
amended for newly issued grants. One quarter ofg$ieicted shares shall vest on the last day df &acal quarter thereafter following the d
of the grant over a period of one year

Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, aftJanuary 4, 2011

After January 4, 2011, the 2003 Stock Incentivenmas amended and restated to state that evengeulisector who first joins the
Board of Directors will receive an option to purskal0 shares and restricted shares equal tb&881 on the fair value of the shares on the
of grant. Each outside director will also qualifyreceive an annual grant of restricted sharesl¢égq$0 based on the fair value of the shares
on the date of grant.

2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company’s 2003 Employee Stock Purchase PIa®RME) permits eligible employees to purchase comstock through payroll
deductions. The ESPP was approved by the Boardretiors and the Company’s stockholders in 2003c&nthin amendments were approvec
by the Board of Directors in March 2005, Septen#t@8 and September 2013. In addition, in 2009 ,ra@r@ment to the ESPP was approved
by the Board of Directors and the Company's stolcldre to increase the number of shares availablis$oance by 250 shares, from Sb@re
to 750 shares. As such, a total of 750 sharesrofraan stock have been reserved for issuance une&@3RP. The participant purchase price
discount is 5% . In a calendar year, there are dffiering periods of three months each. The maxinmumber of shares a participant may
purchase is 1.25 during a single accumulation gesidject to a maximum purchase limit of $10 péerdar year. Employees at associate vic
president level and above are not eligible to pidite in the plan.

The weighted-average fair value of ESPP purchaggish was computed using the Black-Scholes valaatiodel, during fiscal years
2013 and 2012 was $1.74 and $2.23 , respectively.

Share Repurchase Program

In June 2011, the Board of Directors authorizeldrad -year $65,000 share repurchase program. Diisitey year 2011, the Company
purchased 62 shares at a weighted-average prig26d89 per share. During fiscal year 2012, the Gompurchased 244 shares at a weightec
average price of $31.84 per share. During fiscal §913, the Company purchased 55 shares at atedigherage price of $34.28 per share.

The share purchases were made on the open martk#teashares repurchased by the Company are hekhisury for general corporate
purposes.
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NOTE 5—SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION:

The Company recognizes share-based compensatiengxfor all share-based awards made to employeedirctors, including
employee stock options, restricted stock awardsricted stock units and employee stock purchdmsesed on estimated fair values.

The Company recorded share-based compensationsxpettelling, general and administrative expehfediscal years 2013, 2012
and 2011 as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Total share-based compensation $ 9,17¢ $ 8,44 % 7,99:¢
Tax effect on share-based compensation (3,309 (3,007 (2,755
Net effect on net income $ 587C $ 544  $ 5,23¢

Valuation Assumptions

The Company estimates the fair value of share-bpagthent awards on the date of grant using an mymtiiting model. The value of the
portion of the award that is ultimately expecteddst is recognized as expense over the requesitéce period in the Company’s financial
statements.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation ntodedtimate fair value of stock options. The Bl&mtoles option-pricing model
was developed for use in estimating the fair valughort-lived exchange traded options that haveasting restrictions and are fully
transferable. In addition, option-pricing modelguige the input of highly subjective assumptionguding the option’s expected life and the
price volatility of the underlying stock. The expat stock price volatility assumption was deterrdinsing historical volatility of the
Company’s common stock.

The following assumptions were used in the Blackdbes valuation model in fiscal years 2013 , 20d@ 2011 :

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Stock option plan:
Expected life (years) 5.€ 5.€ 5.¢
Risk free interest rate 1.61% 0.7(% 1.11%
Expected volatility 38.71% 39.7"% 41.10%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Employee stock purchase plan:
Expected life (years) 0.3 0.3 0.3
Risk free interest rate 0.02% 0.0%% 0.02%
Expected volatility 27.9% 26.51% 33.15%
Dividend yield 0.00(% 0.00(% 0.00(%
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A summary of the activities under the Company’slstoption plan is set forth below:

Options Outstanding
Weighted-Average

Shares Available Number of Exercise Price
for Grant Shares Per Share
Balances, November 30, 2012 1,12¢ 1,34 $ 21.8¢
Restricted stock awards granted (131 — —
Restricted stock units granted (10€) — —
Restricted stock canceled/forfeited 25 — —
Options granted (55) 55 $ 61.8:
Options exercised — (43¢ $ 16.37
Options canceled/forfeited/expired 26 (26) $ 19.4¢
Balances, November 30, 2013 887 934 g 26.8¢

Employee Stock Options

The weighted-average grant-date fair values obtbek options granted during fiscal years 20131228nd 2011 were $23.62 , $12.75,
and $10.68 , respectivelyAs of November 30, 2013, 936 options were outstandnd expected to vest with a weighted averdg®fi5.56
years, a weighted average exercise price of $26.88 pgomand an aggregate pre-tax intrinsic value3#, %50 . As of November 30, 2013,
688 options were vested and exercisable with alteijaverage life of 4.56 years , a weighted aveexgrcise price of $23.19 per share and
aggregate pre-tax intrinsic value of $29,579 .

The cash received from the exercise of optionsthedntrinsic values of options exercised durirsgdil years 2013 , 2012 and 20gdre
as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Intrinsic value of options exercised $ 10,74¢ % 9,65 $ 9,37t
Cash received from exercise of options 7,162 8,16¢ 6,29(

The Company settles employee stock option exergigbsnewly issued common shares.

As of November 30, 2013, the unamortized sharedasmpensation expense related to unvested spiicikns under the Amended and
Restated 2003 and 2013 Stock Incentive Plan w#$3yhich will be recognized over an estimated Wwikid-average amortization period of
3.52 years .

Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units

A summary of the changes in the Company's nonvesttdcted stock awards and stock units durinditoal year 2013 is presented
below:

Weighted-average,

Number of grant-date
shares fair value per share

Nonvested as of November 30, 2012 811 $30.54
Awards Granted 131 $54.05
Units granted 106 $35.38
Awards vested (225) $27.91
Awards canceled/forfeited (25) $31.30
Nonvested as of November 30, 2013 798 $35.78
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As of November 30, 2013 , there was $19,149 of tatamortized sharbased compensation expense related to nonvestedtezsstocl
awards and stock units granted under the AmendédRastated 2003 and 2013 Stock Incentive Plan. ddsttis expected to be recognized
over an estimated weighted-average amortizatiociogherf 3.31 years .

NOTE 6—BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS:

As of November 30,

2013 2012
Inventories
Components $ 19,26: $ 15,73:
Finished Goods 1,075,84. 907,60:

$ 1,095,100 $ 923,34l

As of November 30,

2013 2012
Short-term investments
Trading securities $ 4,728 $ 5,70¢
Available-for-sale securities — 44
Held-to-maturity securities 8,75: 8,291
Cost method investments 1,65:% 1,88:
$ 15,13« % 15,93

As of November 30,

2013 2012
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable $ 1,681,917 $ 1,461,799
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (14,010 (18,229
Less: Allowance for sales returns (74,716 (42,48()

$ 159319 $ 1,401,08

Allowance for doubtful trade receivables

Balance at November 30, 2010 $ 25,88t¢
Additions / (reductions) 8,73¢
Write-offs and deductions (11,819
Balance at November 30, 2011 22,80:
Additions / (reductions) (1,685
Write-offs and deductions (2,889
Balance at November 30, 2012 18,22¢
Additions / (reductions) 2,952
Write-offs and deductions (7,177
Balance at November 30, 2013 $ 14,01(
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As of November 30,

2013 2012
Property and equipment, net
Land $ 22,66 $ 18,69¢
Equipment and computers 107,52¢ 101,99«
Furniture and fixtures 21,48( 21,37
Buildings, building improvements and leasehold iay@ments 113,77 101,84t
Construction in progress 1,621 1,80¢
Total property and equipment, gross 267,07: 245,71t
Less: Accumulated depreciation (133,82) (122,79)
$ 133,24¢ $ 122,92:
Goodwill
Fiscal Year Ended November 30, 2013 Fiscal Year Ended November 30, 2012
Distribution GBS Total Distribution GBS Total
Balance at the beginning of the period $ 10586( $ 83226 $ 189,08¢ $ 107,49¢ $ 7781« $ 185,31
Additions from acquisitions, net of adjustments 5,54¢ 122 5,671 (1,549 5,03¢ 3,49:
Foreign exchange translation (6,399) 17t (6,229 (95) 37¢ 283
Balance at the end of the period $ 10501 $ 8352t $ 188,53' $ 10586( $ 83,22t $ 189,08t

The additions to "Goodwill" during fiscal year 20d83ate primarily to the acquisition of Supercom &da in the distribution segment ¢
adjustments for the purchase price allocation foriar period acquisition in the GBS segment.

Intangible assets, net

As of November 30, 2013

As of November 30, 2012

Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Amounts Amortization Amounts Amounts Amortization Amounts
Vendor lists $ 36,81f $ (30,180 $ 6,63t $ 36,94 3 (28,689 $ 8,261
Customer lists 52,17¢ (35,379 16,80( 50,40¢ (30,360) 20,04¢
Other intangible assets 4,85 (4,520 337 4,96: (4,220 742
$ 93,85, $ (70,079 $ 2377 % 92,31 $ (63,269 $ 29,04¢

Amortization expense for fiscal years 2013 , 206@ 2011 , was $7,953 , $8,289 and $7,584 respéctizstimated future amortization

expense is as follows:

Fiscal years ending November 30,

2014 $ 6,371
2015 4,61¢
2016 3,80(
2017 3,40
2018 2,207
thereafter 3,371

$ 23,77:
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As of November 30,

2013 2012

Accrued liabilities:

Payroll related accruals $ 52,81¢ $ 49,89t
Deferred compensation liability 2,65( 2,17¢
Sales tax/value-added tax accrual 16,33’ 15,68¢
Vendor and other claims payable 14,36" 17,86¢
Accrued customer rebate 26,38 18,58¢
Warranty accruals 2,671 1,15¢
Current deferred revenue 6,86¢ 9,77¢
Payable for repurchase of Infotec Japan shares — 11,40(
Other accrued liabilities 59,23: 54,73(

$ 181,32 $ 181,27(

Other accrued liabilities include accrued expensestomer credit balances, various third-partyiliiggs and current deferred tax
liabilities.

Accumulated other comprehensive income

The components of accumulated other comprehensogarie, net of taxes, excluding noncontrolling iests were as follows:

As of November 30,

2013 2012
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities,af taxes $ 54z ¢ 16C
Unrecognized pension and post-retirement benefitscoet of taxes (365) (94)
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net oésax 18,99( 35,33¢
$ 19,16¢ $ 35,40¢
NOTE 7—INVESTMENTS:
The carrying amount of the Company'’s investmenghawn in the table below:
As of November 30, 2013 As of November 30, 2012
Unrealized Unrealized
(Losses)/ Carrying (Losses)/ Carrying
Cost Basis Gains Value Cost Basis Gains Value
Short-term investments:
Trading $ 3,851 $ 871 $ 4,72¢ 3 5,63t $ 73 % 5,70¢
Available-for-sale securities — — — — 44 44
Held-to-maturity investments 8,75: — 8,75: 8,29 — 8,297
Cost method securities 1,65z — 1,65¢ 1,88: — 1,88:
$ 14,26: $ 871 $ 15,13¢  $ 15,81¢ $ 117 % 15,93
Long-term investments in other assets:
Available-for-sale securities $ 90¢ $ 36€ $ 1,278 $ 1,098 $ 22 % 1,117
Cost-method investments 4,981 — 4,981 3,31: — 3,31z

Short-term trading securities generally consistaufity securities relating to the Company’s def@reempensation plan. Short-term and
long-term available-for-sale securities primarignsist of investments in other companies’ equitusiéies. Held-to-maturity investments
primarily consist of term deposits with maturitfesm the date of purchase greater than three
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months and less than one year. These term depositgeld until the maturity date and are not tra@mst-method securities primarily consist
of investments in a hedge fund and a private eduitd under the Company’s deferred compensatiom pla

Trading securities and available-for-sale secuwitiee recorded at fair value in each reportingogesind therefore the carrying value of
these securities equals their fair value. For ocosthod securities and investments, the Companyds@m impairment charge when the declin
in fair value is determined to be other-than-terapprThe fair value of the cost-method investméntsased on (i) the published fund values,
(ii) a valuation model developed internally basedtee published value of the securities held byfdimel or (iii) an internal valuation of the
investee.

The following table summarizes the total gains Esges recorded in “Other income (expense), nefiénConsolidated Statement of
Operations for changes in the fair value of the @any's trading investments during fiscal years 20312 , and 2011 :

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2013 2012 2011
Gain (loss) on trading investments $ 1866 $ 260z $ (217

NOTE 8—DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS:

In the ordinary course of business, the Compaexjp®sed to foreign currency risk, interest riskyiggrisk and credit risk. The
Company’s transactions in some of its foreign ofj@na are denominated in local currency. The Comisafioreign locations enter into
transactions, and own monetary assets and ligsilithat are denominated in currencies other tiginfunctional currency. As part of its risk
management strategy, the Company uses shortforward contracts and natural hedges in miosteoabove mentioned currencies to minin
its balance sheet exposure to foreign currency Tiekse derivatives are not designated as hedggtigiments. The forward exchange contr
are recorded at fair value in each reporting peaiod any gains or losses, resulting from the chaimgéair value, are recorded in earnings ir
period of change. Generally, the Company does s®derivative instruments to cover interest risiiity risk and credit risk. The Company’s
policy is not to allow the use of derivatives foading or speculative purposes. The fair valudhef@ompany’s forward exchange contracts is
also disclosed in Note 9.

The following table summarizes the fair value af @ompany’s foreign exchange forward contractsf &owember 30, 2013 and 2012 :

As of November 30,
2013 2012
Other current assets $ 2,38¢ $ 1,29:
Accrued liabilities (80) —

The notional amounts of the foreign exchange fodwamtracts that were outstanding as of NovembgR@03 and 2012 were $158,950
and $128,518 , respectively. The notional amouepisasent the gross amounts of foreign currencyiiiibe bought or sold at maturity. In
relation to its forward contracts, the Company rded in “Other income (expense), net” gain of $8,a6d $10 in fiscal year 2013 and 2012 ,
respectively, and loss of $1,792 in fiscal year201

NOTE 9—FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:
The Company’s fair value measurements are cladsdfiel disclosed in one of the following three categs:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markeds are accessible at the measurement dateefoticdl, unrestricted assets or
liabilities;

Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are nowvectir inputs which are observable, either directlyndirectly, for substantially the full
term of the asset or liability;

Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that regjiriputs that are both significant to the fair walneasurement and unobservable (i.e.,
supported by little or no market activity).
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The following table summarizes the valuation of @@mpany’s short-term investments and financiatimsents that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis:

As of November 30, 2013 As of November 30, 2012
Fair value measurement category Fair value measurement category

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Cash equivalents $ 28,77¢ ¢ 28,77¢ $ — 3 — $ 95,07« $ 9507: $ — $ —
Trading securities 4,72¢ 4,72¢ — — 5,70¢ 5,70¢ — —
Available-for-sale securities in short-
term investments — — — — 44 44 — —
Available-for-sale securities in other
assets 1,27¢ 1,27¢ — — 1,113 1,117 — —
Forward foreign currency exchange
contracts 2,38¢ — 2,38¢ — 1,292 — 1,292 —
Liabilities:
Forward foreign currency exchange
contracts $ 80 $ — % 80 % — 3 — 8 — 8 — % —
Acquisition-related contingent
consideration 2,99¢ — — 2,99¢ 2,611 — — 2,611

The Company's cash equivalents consist primarilyiglily liquid investments in money market fundsl &erm deposits with maturity
periods of three months or less. The carrying vafube cash equivalents approximates the fairevalace they are near their maturity.
Investments in trading and available-for-sale séiesrconsist of equity securities and are recomddir value based on quoted market prices.
The fair values of forward exchange contracts agasured based on the foreign currency spot andafdrrates quoted by the banks or foreigr
currency dealers.

The acquisition-related contingent consideratiability represents the future potential earn-oytnpents relating to the Company's
acquisitions. The fair values of the contingentsideration liabilities are based on the Companyibability assessment of the established
profitability measures and operational conditionsirly the periods ranging from one year to thremryérom the date of the acquisitions.
During fiscal year ended November 30, 2013, theviaiue of the contingent consideration liabilitaswemeasured and the resulting decrease
of $1,233, recorded as a benefit to "Selling, galrend administrative expenses" in the Consoldi&tatements of Operations. The change in
the fair value was due to updated estimates of@ggdaevenue and gross profit related to the aehnient of established earn-out targets. In
addition, the contingent consideration liabilitysvacreased in fiscal year 2013 by $1,756 for fitontingent payment obligations related to
the Company's acquisition of Supercom Canada. &fmaining change in the carrying value of the ligbik due to the translation effect of
foreign currencies.

The carrying value of held-to-maturity securitiasgounts receivable, accounts payable and stiort-debt, approximate fair value due
their short maturities and the interest rates whighvariable in nature. The carrying value of@mnpany's term loans approximate their fair
value since they bear interest rates that areainulexisting market rates. The Convertible SeNiotes had a carrying value of $141,436 as o
November 30, 2012 and a fair value$167,735 , based on the closing price of the CdillerSenior Notes traded in a limited trading nedrk
The fair value was categorized as level 2 in tlievi@ue measurement category levels. In AugusB2€ie Company repaid all of the
outstanding convertible debt.

During the fiscal year 2013, there were no trarssiietween the fair value measurement categorysevel
NOTE 10—ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE ARRANGEMENTS:

The Company primarily finances its United Statesraions with an accounts receivable securitizgti@myram (the “U.S.
Arrangement”). Until September 2013, the Compasylssidiary, which is the borrower under the U.SaAgement, could borrow up to a
maximum of $400,000 in U.S. trade accounts recéévéih).S. Receivables”). In September 2013, the fany amended the U.S Arrangement
to increase the commitment of the lenders to $3D,0n addition, the amendment also included aom@ion feature to allow requests for an
increase in the lenders' commitment by an additi®$h80,000 to a maximum commitment of $600,000e Taturity date of the U.S.
Arrangement is October 18, 2015. The effective dwimg cost under the U.S. Arrangement is a blendgslthat includes prevailing dealer
commercial paper rates and the daily London
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Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”), plus a prograne fef 0.425% per annum based on the used portitreafommitment, and a facility fee of
0.425% per annum payable on the aggregate comntiwhdme lenders. As of November 30, 2013 there $da1,000 of borrowing
outstanding under the U.S. Arrangement. As of Ndwen30, 2012 , there was no balance outstandingrihd U.S. Arrangement.

Under the terms of the U.S. Arrangement, the Comaiis, on a revolving basis, its U.S. Receivabdes wholly-owned, bankruptcy-
remote subsidiary. The borrowings are funded bygileg all of the rights, title and interest in andhe U.S. Receivables acquired by the
Company's subsidiary as security. Any borrowingsaurthe U.S. Arrangement are recorded as debteo@dimpany’'s Consolidated Balance
Sheets. As is customary in trade accounts receivadduritization arrangements, a credit rating egermowngrade of the third party issuer of
commercial paper or of a back-up liquidity provigehich provides a source of funding if the comnierpaper market cannot be accessed)
could result in an increase in the Company's cblsbrrowing or loss of the Company's financing cafyaunder these programs if the
commercial paper issuer or liquidity back-up prevics not replaced, or if the lender whose comnaépzaper issuer or liquidity back-up
provider is not replaced does not elect to offer@ompany an alternative rate. Loss of such fimancapacity could have a material adverse
effect on the Company's financial condition andiltssof operations.

The Company also has other financing agreemeiieith America with various financial institutiond~(ooring Companies”) to allow
certain customers of the Company to finance thaiclpases directly with the Flooring Companies. Uridese agreements, the Flooring
Companies pay to the Company the selling priceradlycts sold to various customers, less a disceuititin approximately 15 to 30 days from
the date of sale. The Company is contingently &dblrepurchase inventory sold under flooring age@s in the event of any default by its
customers under the agreement and such inventory bepossessed by the Flooring Companies. PlegsBHate 19— Commitments and
Contingencies for further information.

The following table summarizes the net sales fiedrthrough the flooring agreements and the flooféeg incurred:

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,
2013 2012 2011
Net sales financed $ 1,023,961 $ 831,69: & 745,65
Flooring feesV 5,87 4,73¢ 3,34¢

(1) Flooring fees are included within “Interespekrse and finance charges, net.”
As of November 30, 2013 and 2012 , accounts reblhsubject to flooring agreements were $89,589%41%J963 , respectively.

Infotec Japan has arrangements with various bamdkdimancial institutions for the sale and finameinf approved accounts receivable
and notes receivable. The amount outstanding uhdee arrangements that was sold, but not collested November 30, 2013 and 2012 was
$13,862 and $11,233, respectively.

69




Table of Contents

SYNNEX CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(conti nued)
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except pshare amounts)

NOTE 11—BORROWINGS:

Borrowings consist of the following:

As of November 30

2013 2012

Convertible debt $ — 3 141,43t
SYNNEX U.S. securitization 144,00( —
SYNNEX Canada term loan 7,41¢ 8,64¢
Infotec Japan credit facility 136,67 111,54.
Other borrowings and capital leases 29,83( 13,66(
Total borrowings 317,92¢ 275,28t
Less: Current portion (252,52) (194,139
Non-current portion $ 65,40 $ 81,15:

Convertible debt

In May 2008, the Company issued $143,750 of aggegmancipal amount of its 4.0% Convertible Seriates due 2018 (the
“Convertible Senior Notes”) in a private placeméltie carrying amount of the Convertible Senior Spteet of the unamortized debt discount,
was $141,436 as of November 30, 2012 . The comlerdiebt was repaid in August 2013. See Note 12ervErtible Debt.

SYNNEX U.S. securitization

The Company's subsidiary which is the borrower utidle U.S Arrangement can borrow up to a maximud5@f0,000 under its U.S.
Arrangement, secured by U.S. Receivables. See NsteAccounts Receivable Arrangements. The effediameowing cost under the U.S.
Arrangement is a blended rate that includes thegilireg dealer commercial paper rates and LIBORsa program fee on the used portion of
the commitment and a facility fee payable on thgregate commitment. As of November 30, 2013 , titstanding balance under the U.S.
arrangement was $144,000 . As of November 30, 2@dr2 were no borrowings outstanding under the Arfangement.

SYNNEX U.S. credit agreement

In November 2013, the Company entered into a sesaioured credit agreement (the “U.S. Credit Agredievhich is comprised of
$275,000 in a revolving credit facility and a telman in an aggregate principal amount not to ex&225,000 . The Company may request
incremental commitments to increase the principaant of revolving loans or term loans availableemthe U.S. Credit Agreement up to
$125,000 . The U.S. Credit Agreement matures ineityer 2018.

Interest on borrowings under the Credit Agreementize based on LIBOR rate or a base rate at thep@uyts option. Loans borrowed
under the U.S. Credit Agreement bear interestyénciise of LIBOR rate loans, at a per annum rataleq the applicable LIBOR rate, plus a
margin which may range from 1.75% to 2.25%ased on the Company's consolidated leveragssyais determined in accordance with the
Credit Agreement. Loans borrowed under the CredieAment that are not LIBOR rate loans, and ateadsbase rate loans, bear interest at «
per annum rate equal to (i) the greatest of (A)Rbderal Funds Rate plus a margin of 1/2 of 1.0B) the LIBOR rate plus 1.0% per annum,
and (C) the rate of interest announced, from tiongnte, by the agent, Bank of America, N.A, asiisme rate,” plus (ii) a margin which may
range from 0.75% to 1.25% , based on the Company'solidated leverage ratios as determined in decae with the U.S. Credit Agreement.

When drawn, the outstanding principal amount ofitimg-term loan will be repayable in quarterly aibhents, in an amount equal to (a)
for each of the first eight calendar quarters egdifter the term loan is made, 1.28%the initial principal amount of the term loab) for eact
calendar quarter ending thereafter, 2.560he initial principal amount of the term loandaft) on the November 2018 maturity date of then
loan, the outstanding principal amount of the téyem. The Company’s obligations under the U.S. €regreement are secured by
substantially all of the parent company’s and itsteéd States domestic subsidiaries’ assets anguam@nteed by certain of its United States
domestic subsidiaries.

There were no borrowings outstanding under thiditearangement as of November 30, 2013.
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SYNNEX U.S. senior secured revolving line of credit

The Company had a senior secured revolving lingedit arrangement (the “Revolver”) with a finardrestitution which provided a
maximum commitment of $100,000 . The line of crediss terminated in November 2013. Interest on lwamgs under this Revolver was
based on a base rate or LIBOR rate, at the Congaption. The margin on LIBOR rate borrowing watedained in accordance with the
Company's fixed charge coverage ratio and was 1/&@%nnum. The margin on the Company's base oatevbings was based on the
financial institution's prime rate. The Revolves@atontained an unused line fee of 0.30% per aniibmRevolver was secured by the
Company's inventory and other assets. There welbmmowings outstanding under the Revolver as ofévaber 30, 2012 .

SYNNEX Canada revolving line of credit

SYNNEX Canada Limited ("SYNNEX Canada") has a tew line of credit arrangement (the "Canadian &ewg Arrangement”)
with a financial institution for a maximum commitnteof CAD100,000 and includes an accordion featori@crease the maximum
commitment by an additional CAD25,000 to CAD125,0@® SYNNEX Canada's request. The Canadian Rex@lirangement also provides
a sublimit of $5,000 for the issuance of standltiets of credit. There were no letters of credistanding as of November 30, 2013 . As of
November 302012 , outstanding standby letters of credit tat&8,447 .

SYNNEX Canada has granted a security interestlistamtially all of its assets in favor of the lendader the Canadian Revolving
Arrangement. In addition, the Company pledgedtisisin SYNNEX Canada as collateral for the CanadRavolving Arrangement. The
interest rate applicable under the Canadian Rewgldrrangement is equal to (i) the Canadian batseplas a margin of 0.75% for a Base Rate
Loan in Canadian Dollars, (ii) the US base rates glunargin of 0.75% for a Base Rate Loan in U.Slabx) and (iii) the Bankers' Acceptance
rate ("BA") plus a margin of 2.00% for a BA Ratedro The Canadian base rate means the greatertbe(pjime rate determined by a major
Canadian financial institution and (b) the one rha@anadian Dealer Offered Rate ("CDOR") (the average applicable to Canadian dollar
bankers' acceptances for the applicable period) hb0% . The US base rate means the greater afrédg¢rence rate determined by a major
Canadian financial institution for US dollar loamsde to Canadian borrowers and (b) the US fedenalsf rate plus 0.50% . A fee of 0.2%p#r
annum is payable with respect to the unused podidhe commitment. The credit arrangement expiréday 2017. As of both November 30,
2013 and 2012, there were no balance outstandidgruhe Canadian Revolving Arrangement.

SYNNEX Canada term loan

SYNNEX Canada has a term loan associated withuihehpse of its logistics facility in Guelph, Canatihe interest rate for the unpaid
principal amount is a fixed rate of 5.374%r annum. The final maturity date for repaymerthefunpaid principal is April 1, 2017. The bals
outstanding on the term loan as of November 30320 2012 was $7,419 and $8,648 , respectively.

Infotec Japan credit facility

Infotec Japan has a credit agreement with a grbéfipancial institutions for a maximum commitmeritl®Y 14,000,000 . The credit
agreement is comprised of a JPY6,000,000 long-team and a JPY 8,000,000 short-term revolving crieditity. The credit agreement was
refinanced in December 2012, to increase the gbort-revolving credit facility to JPY8,000,000 fraiRrY4,000,000 . The interest rate for the
long-term and short-term loans is based on the d diterbank Offered Rate (“TIBOR") plus a marginldd0%per annum. The unused line
on the revolving credit facility was 0.50% per ammuAs of November 30, 2013 and 2012, the balantgtanding under the credit facility was
$136,679 and $111,542 , respectively. The long-fean can be repaid at any time prior to expiratiate without penalty. The Company has
issued a guarantee to cover up to 110% of theamdstg principal amount obligations of Infotec Japathe lenders.

In December 2013, the Company amended the credieagent to extend the expiration date from Decer@®&b to December 2016 and
to change the interest rate margins to 1.40% pauran The unused line fee was reduced to 0.10%rprira.

Other borrowings and capital leases

In September 2013, Infotec Japan established &&rar revolving credit facility of JPY2,000,000tWwia financial institution. The
interest rate for the credit facility is based dBOR plus a margin of 0.50% per annum. In additibeeye is a
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facility fee of 0.425% per annum. The credit fagiltan be renewed annually. As of November 30, 2€6H8balances outstanding under this
credit facility was $19,526 .

Infotec Japan has a short-term revolving creditifaof JPY1,000,00Qvith a financial institution. The credit facilityag renewed for ot
year in March 2013 and bears an interest ratéshzised on TIBOR plus a margin1.60% per annum. As of November 30, 2013 and 2012
the balances outstanding under these lines we®%$@&nd $12,124 , respectively.

In addition, as of November 30, 2012, Infotec Japath a term loan with a financial institution watbalance of $424 , which was repaid
in December 2012 and bore a fixed interest rate50% .

As of November 30, 2013 and 2012 , the Companylasb$541 and $1,112 , respectively, in outstandagital lease obligations and
obligations for the sale and financing of approaedounts receivable and notes receivable with rseqourovisions to Infotec Japan.

Future principal payments

Future principal payments under the above loanscapial leases as of November 30, 2013 are asafsil

Fiscal Years Ending November 30,

2014 $ 252,52:
2015 86¢
2016 814
2017 59,41¢
2018 88¢
Thereafter 3,41¢

$ 317,92¢

Interest expense and finance charges

For fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 , the toterést expense and finance charges for the Corgaoyowings were $20,436 ,
$27,617 and $28,809 , respectively, including nashcinterest expenses of $2,314 , $5,273 , and$4¢Bpectively, for the convertible debt.
The variable interest rates ranged between 0.63%4 &8% , between 0.67% and 4.24% and between 0a82P6.17% in fiscal years 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively.

Covenants compliance

In relation to the U.S. Arrangement, the U.S. Qrédireement, the Canadian Revolving Arrangementthadnfotec Japan credit facili
the Company has a number of covenants and restricthat, among other things, require the Compampmply with certain financial and
other covenants. These covenants require the Conpanaintain specified financial ratios and sagtisértain financial condition tests,
including leverage and fixed charge coverage rafibgy also limit the Company’s ability to incurditiional debt, make intercompany loans,
pay dividends and make other types of distributiomake certain acquisitions, repurchase the Conipatyck, create liens, enter into
agreements with affiliates, modify the nature & @ompany’s business, enter into sale-leasebacgactions, make certain investments, entel
into certain types of burdensome contracts, traresfd sell assets and merge or consolidate.

Guarantees

The Company has issued guarantees to certain \v@addrlenders of its subsidiaries for trade cr@dits and loans, and to a certain
customer's lessor. In addition, the Company, aslitiraate parent, guaranteed the obligations of S¥EX Investment Holdings Corporation
to $35,035 in connection with the sale of Chinail@ik (Cayman), which operated in China as HiChwab Solutions, to Alibaba.com
Limited. The total guarantees issued by the Companyf November 30, 2013 and 2012 were $364,744264,162 , respectively. The
Company is obligated under these guarantees tampaynts due should its subsidiaries or customepapt/alid amounts owed to their
vendors or lenders or not comply with subsidiatgsagreements.
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NOTE 12—CONVERTIBLE DEBT:

In August 2013, the Company settled its Convert@#aior Notes with an aggregate principal amouidldf3,750 which were issued in
May 2008 in a private placement. The Convertiblei@eNotes bore a cash coupon interest rate of 48f@nnum and the initial conversion
rate was 33.9945 shares of common stock per $tipahamount, equivalent to an initial conversioitg of $29.42 per share of common
stock. The Convertible Senior Notes were callethinsecond quarter of fiscal year 2013. No interest accrued subsequent to May 2013 in
accordance with the Indenture. The final settlenaembunt of $218,870 was paid in cash and compo§&d43,750 in principal payments and
$75,120 in payment of conversion premium. The cesiga premium, which represents the total settléraerount less the principal, was
recorded as a reduction of "Additional paid-in ¢algi The final settlement amount was calculateddnordance with the Indenture based on
the volume weighted-average trading price of thenffany's common stock over the 60 consecutive tgaday period beginning on and
including the third trading day after the relatesheersion.

Based on a cash coupon interest rate of 4.0%GCdnepany recorded contractual interest expense ,60831uring the fiscal year ended
November 30, 201, and $6,495 for both fiscal year ended Novembe2802 and 2011 . Based on an effective rate @¢68.the Company
recorded non-cash interest expenses of $2,31273%%nd $4,874 during the fiscal year ended Nover8be2013 , 2012 , and 2011 ,
respectively. As of November 30, 2012 , the cagwalue of the Convertible Senior Notes, net ofrnodized debt discount of $2,314 , was
$141,436 . As of November 30, 2012, the carryingeaf the equity component of the Convertible 8eiotes, net of allocated issuance
costs, was $22,836 .

NOTE 13—EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:

The following table sets forth the computation abic and diluted net income per common share #p#riods indicated:

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Numerator:
Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporation $ 152,23 $ 151,37¢ $ 150,33:
Less: impact of conversion premium of convertildédu (36,409 — —
Net income for diluted earnings per share calonfati $ 115,82t $ 151,37¢ $ 150,33:
Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares - basic 36,88¢ 36,58¢ 35,83(
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options, restricted stock awards and resttistock units 561 584 73t
Conversion premium of convertible debt 351 74C 26¢
Weighted-average common shares - diluted 37,80( 37,90¢ 36,83
Earnings per share attributable to SYNNEX Corporati
Basic $ 4.1 % 414 % 4.2C
Diluted $ 3.06 $ 39¢ % 4.0¢

It was the Company’s intent to settle the princgoalount of the Convertible Senior Notes in cashpatingly, the principal amount was
excluded from the determination of diluted earnipgsshare. In April 2013, the Company decidecettiesthe payment of the conversion
premium in cash as discussed in Note 12—Converbielat. Through April 2013, the Company accountadtie conversion premium using
the treasury stock method by adjusting the dilutedyhted-average common shares if the effect wias\wdi. For the fiscal year ended
November 30, 201, the numerator for the computation of earningsgoenmon share-diluted was adjusted for any dilutivanges in the
estimated value of the conversion premium
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from April 2013 through the final settlement deer the fiscal year ended November 30, 2013 , djigstment to the numerator had the effect
of reducing the diluted earnings per share by $0.97

Options to purchase 10, 12 and 47 shares of constock as of November 30, 2013 , 2012 and 2014peectively, have not been
included in the computation of diluted net inconee phare as their effect would have been antiiddut

NOTE 14—SEGMENT INFORMATION:
Operating segments

Operating segments are based on components obtin@ahy that engage in business activity that earanue and incur expenses and
(a) whose operating results are regularly revielsethe chief operating decision maker to make deassabout resource allocation and
performance and (b) for which discrete financiéimation is available.

The distribution services segment distributes enipls, IT systems including data center serverstmgge solutions, system
components, software, networking equipment, cons@teetronics ("CE") and complementary productse distribution services segment a
provides design and integration services.

The GBS segment offers a range of BPO servicegstomers that include direct sales, technical suppostomer care, lead
management, renewals management, back office miogesnd information technology outsourcing, or IMany of these services are
delivered and supported on the proprietary softytatforms that the Company has developed to peoaittlitional value to its customers.

Summarized financial information related to the @amy’s reportable business segments for fiscalsy2@t3 , 2012 , and 2011 is shown
below:

Inter-Segment

Distribution GBS Elimination Consolidated
Fiscal Year ended November 30, 2011
Revenue $ 10,275,229 % 163,37t $ (28,83) $ 10,409,84
Income before non-operating items, income taxesnamdontrolling
interest 237,32. 18,90¢ — 256,22¢
Depreciation and amortization expense 16,12( 8,55: — 24,67:
Total assets 2,737,601 295,60( (199,909 2,833,29!
Fiscal Year ended November 30, 2012:
Revenue $ 10,121,27 $ 197,39 $ (33,159 $ 10,285,50
Income before non-operating items, income taxesnamdontrolling
interest 241,81° 13,48 (28¢) 255,01:
Depreciation and amortization expense 14,16( 10,47( — 24,63(
Total assets 2,848,68! 316,99: (202,42() 2,963,26.
Fiscal Year ended November 30, 2013:
Revenue $ 10,655,45 % 223,60( $ (33,889 $ 10,845,16
Income before non-operating items, income taxeshamdontrolling
interest 233,04: 7,96( (A75) 240,82¢
Depreciation and amortization expense 14,11 10,71: (361) 24,46
Total assets 3,203,55! 332,08: (209,74, 3,325,88!

The inter-segment elimination relates to the isegment, back office support services providechbyGBS segment to the distribution
services segment, elimination of inter-segmentiprioter-segment investments and inter-segmergivables.

Segment by geography

The Company primarily operates in North Americae Tnited States and Canada are included in thethiN¥merica”operations. Ching
India, Japan and the Philippines are included isidAPacific” operations and Costa Rica, Hungaryxiete
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Nicaragua and the United Kingdom ("UK") are incldde “Other” operations. The revenues attributable tontdes are based on the
geography of entities from where the products &tilduted or services are provided.

Shown below is summarized financial informatioratet! to the geographic areas in which the Compgaeyated during fiscal years
2013, 2012 and 2011:

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011

Revenue

North America $ 9,519,65 $ 8,972,641 $ 9,029,57.

Asia-Pacific 1,188,58 1,237,23 1,283,60!

Other 136,92: 75,62¢ 96,65
$ 10,845,16 $ 10,285,500 $ 10,409,84

As of November 30,

2013 2012
Property and equipment, net
North America $ 95,34: % 87,68¢
Asia-Pacific 19,85! 22,78:
Other 18,05: 12,45;
$ 133,24¢ $ 122,92:

Revenue in the United States was approximately @#8tal revenue for both fiscal years 2013 and22@hd 73% of total revenue for
fiscal year 2011 . Revenue in Canada was approzlgna#i% for fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 .dRere in Japan was approximately 10%
11% , and 12% of the total revenue for fiscal y&i¥$3 , 2012 , and 2011 , respectively.

Net property and equipment in the United Statesapgsoximately 59% and 57% of the total as of Noven80, 2013 and 2012 ,
respectively. Net property and equipment in Canaas approximately 13% and 14% of the total as ofévaber 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. As of both November 30, 2013 and 2042 other country represented more than 10%seofdtal net property and equipment.

NOTE 15—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Company had a business relationship with MiTiA€rnational Corporation (“MiTAC International'y, publicly-traded company in
Taiwan, which began in 1992 when MiTAC Internatiblbecame the Company's primary investor throughffiates. In September 2013,
MITAC Holdings Corporation ("MiTAC Holdings") wasstablished through a stock swap from MIiTAC Inteiorzdl and became a publicly
traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. MiTét€rnational is now a wholly owned subsidiary offMC Holdings. As of
November 30, 201and 2012 , MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates bewrélly owned approximately 26% and 27% of the Conmypgcommon
stock. Matthew Miau, the Company’s Chairman Emeratithe Board of Directors and a director, is@mirman of MiTAC Holdings and a
director or officer of MiTAC Holdings’ affiliates.
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Beneficial ownership of the Company’s common stocky MiTAC Holdings

As noted above, MiTAC Holdings and its affiliatesthe aggregate beneficially owned approximateBb 26 the Company’s common
stock as of November 30, 2013 . These shares aredby the following entities:

As of November 30, 2013

MIiTAC Holdings @ 5,55:
Synnex Technology International Coff. 4,28:
Total 9,83t

(1) Shares are held via Silver Star Developmetds & wholly-owned subsidiary of MiTAC Holdingsx&udes 594 shares (of which 534 shares are dirkettl and 60
shares are subject to exercisable options) heMdithew Miau.

(2) Synnex Technology International Corp. ("Syniiechnology International”) is a separate entioyrfthe Company and is a publicly-traded corporaitiohaiwan.
Shares are held via Peer Development Ltd., a whmsliyed subsidiary of Synnex Technology Internatiol&l AC Holdings owns a noncontrolling interest&f7% in
MITAC Incorporated, a privately-held Taiwanese camy which in turn holds a noncontrolling interef1.3.6% in Synnex Technology International. NeithBTAC
Holdings nor Mr. Miau is affiliated with any pergsi, entity, or entities that hold a majority irgst in MiTAC Incorporated.

MITAC Holdings generally has significant influenoeer the Company and over the outcome of all maebmitted to stockholders for
consideration, including any merger or acquisittéthe Company. Among other things, this could hidneceffect of delaying, deterring or
preventing a change of control over the Company.

The Company purchased inventories from MiTAC HalginMiTAC International and their affiliates totadi $31,424 , $15,298 , and
$12,263 during the fiscal year ended November 8032 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Comparglesso MiTAC Holdings, MITAC
International and their affiliates during the fisgaar ended November 30, 2013, 2012 , and 20taleth$4,431 , $2,651 and $4,195 ,
respectively. In addition, the Company receivedhimirsements of rent and overhead costs for fasliised by MiTAC Holdings and MiTAC
International amounting to $3,083 , $3,667 and %6 @uring the fiscal year ended November 30, 2Q04®BL2 and 2011 , respectively.

The Company’s business relationship with MiTAC Hol and its affiliates has been informal and isgaverned by long-term
commitments or arrangements with respect to priténas, revenue or capacity commitments. The Cosnpagotiates manufacturing, pricing
and other material terms on a case-by-case batigiT AC Holdings and its design and integratiorstmmers for a given project. While
MITAC Holdings is a related party and a controllistgckholder, the Company believes that the sicguifi terms under its arrangements with
MITAC Holdings, including pricing, will not materily differ from the terms it could have negotiatgidh unaffiliated third parties, and it has
adopted a policy requiring that material transagtiovith MiTAC Holdings or its related parties bepapved by its Audit Committee, which is
composed solely of independent directors. In aoldjtMatthew Miaus compensation is approved by the Nominating anp@ate Governan:
Committee, which is also composed solely of indejean directors.

Others

During fiscal year 2012, the Company sold its 33r8%controlling ownership interest in SB Pacifidjigh was recorded as an equity-
related investment, back to SB Pacific. In fisoahy2012, a gain of $1,342 was recognized in "Oti@me (expense), net" on this transactior
representing the difference between the sale pdscaed the carrying value of the investment. Then@any was not the primary beneficiary in
SB Pacific. The controlling shareholder of SB Facifas Robert Huang, who is the Company’s founderfarmer Chairman. The Company
regarded SB Pacific to be a variable interestentit

NOTE 16—PENSION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS:

The employees of Infotec Japan are covered byinatédined benefit pension plans, including a meitiployer pension plan. Full-time
employees are eligible to participate in the plamghe first day of February following their datiehire and are not required to contribute to the
plans.

76




Table of Contents

SYNNEX CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(conti nued)
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except pshare amounts)

The following table provides a reconciliation oétbhanges in the plan's single employer benefiatibns as of November 30, 2013 and
2012 :

Fiscal Year Ended November 30,

2013 2012

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 8,25 $ 8,43¢
Service cost 54C 61€
Interest cost 12C 15¢
Benefits paid (164) (357)
Actuarial gain or (loss) 31C (92
Foreign exchange rate changes (1,65¢) (50¢)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 7,40C  $ 8,252

The change in the fair value of plan assets faafigear 2013 and 2012 was as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended November 30,

2013 2012
Fair value at the beginning of year $ 4,16z $ 3,97
Contribution paid by employer 65& 752
Actual return on plan assets 85 41
Benefits paid (164) (357)
Foreign exchange rate changes (847) (257)
Fair value at the end of year $ 3891 § 4,162

The Company's benefit obligation and the fair valtis pension assets are presented, on a net lagsa component of “Long-term
liabilities”, on the Company's Consolidated BalaGteets.

As of November 30, 2013 and 2012 , the plan wagdudded by $3,509 and $4,090 , respectively, bachtcumulated pension benefit
obligation was $5,785 and $6,377 , respectively.

The benefits to be paid to participants over the fiee fiscal years and in the aggregate for ilie fiscal years thereafter are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ending November 30, Benefits to be pait
2014 $ 16C
2015 11¢
2016 12Z
2017 13¢
2018 162
2019 - 2023 $ 1,47:

The contribution to be made by the Company towheddefined benefit plan in the fiscal year endiray&mber 30, 2014 is expected tc
$718 .
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The components of net periodic pension costs ®fitital year 2013 , 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Service cost $ 54C $ 61€ $ 57C
Interest cost 12C 15& 14¢
Expected return on plan assets (59) (63 (89)
Net periodic pension costs $ 60z § 708§ 62¢

During fiscal year 2013, 2012 and 2011 changgsdan assets and benefit obligations of $271 , $6@) $214 , respectively, were
recognized in “Accumulated other comprehensivenned

The Company used the following weighted-averagarapsions to determine the net periodic pension tieoigligations during fiscal
year2013, 2012 , and 2011:

Fiscal Year Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Discount rate 1.4% 1.7% 1.9%
Average increase in compensation levels 2.8% 3.0% 3.0%

The Company used the following weighted-averagarapsions to determine the net periodic pension filec@sts during fiscal year
2013, 2012, and 2011:

Fiscal Year Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Discount rate 1.7% 1.9% 2.0%
Average increase in compensation levels 2.8% 3.0% 3.0%
Expected return on plan assets 1.5% 1.5% 2.5%

The discount rate is set on yields available ogjgality corporate bonds with maturities consisteith the duration of the benefit
obligation as of the valuation date.

The plan assets were invested in life insurancepemy general accounts, pooled institutional investis comprising of listed stock, debt
securities and other investments and cash equigal€he life insurance company general accountesept a financial instrument which
guarantees the principal and a return based ontsactual interest rate. The expected return on psets, above, is based primarily on currel
guaranteed net returns offered by the life insueazmmpany's general account. The fair value oftlimegestments is based on the market
approach using observable inputs other than quutettet prices. The pooled institutional investmeaxasprise of commingled funds invested
in debt, equity and other securities. The fair eadfithese funds is measured by allocating thevidire of the total assets in the investments in
proportion to the Company's ownership percentagsh@quivalents represent the amounts not yetféraed from the master custodian of the
funds as of the measurement date.

The fair value of the assets as of November 30320 2012 is presented in the table below usiadain value hierarchy discussed in
Note “—Fair Value Measurements:

As of November 30, 2013 As of November 30, 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash equivalents $ 35 % — $ — 3 34 % — 3 =
Equity and debt securities — 224 — — 18¢€ —
Life insurance company general accounts — 3,632 — — 3,94: —
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In addition to the single employer plan, employfednfotec Japan are also covered by a nartiployer, defined benefit plan. Employ
contribute to the plan. The Company's contributimnthe plan during fiscal years 2013 , 2012 antil2@ere $1,115, $1,190 and $1,117 ,
respectively.

The Company has defined benefit pension and regineplans in other geographical locations. Howélwese pension programs are not
material to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company has a 401(k) Plan (the “Plan”) unddackviligible employees may contribute up to the imaxn amount as provided by
law. Employees become eligible to participate mftan on the first day of the month after theipiyment date. The Company may make
discretionary contributions under the Plan. Dufisgal years 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , the Compantriboted $1,365 , $1,252 and $1,145,
respectively.

NOTE 17—DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN:

The Company has a deferred compensation plan ftaicealirectors and officers. The plan is desigteedermit eligible officers and
directors to accumulate additional income througloa-qualified deferred compensation plan that Ezathe officer or director to make
elective deferrals of compensation to which heherwill become entitled in the future.

An account is maintained for each participant far purpose of recording the current value of hisesrelective contributions, including
earnings credited thereto. The participant maygiede one or more investments as the measure edtment return on the participant’s
account. On January 4, 2012, the Compensation Ctbean@pproved an amendment to the deferred comip@mgdan to prospectively limit
designated investments as the measure of investetenh to actively traded securities reportedesognized exchanges, bank deposits, and
other investments with readily verifiable valuasoihe participant’s account is adjusted monthlseftect earnings and losses on the
participant’s designated investments. The Compaysg nterest on the uninvested portion of defecatpensation.

The amount credited to the participant’s accoutitlvei distributed as soon as practicable afteretirdier of the participant’s termination
of employment or attainment of age sixty-five . Tdigtribution of benefits to the participant wikk Imade in accordance with the election mads
by the participant in a lump sum or in equal montil annual installments over a period not to eddé&en years The distribution of accou
balances subject to Section 409A of the Tax Codm uprmination of employment of an officer is subj® a six -month delayln the event
the participant requests an early distribution othan a hardship distribution, a 1@thdrawal penalty will be levied. Such distributiavill be
in the form of a lump sum cash payment. Such aislyibution elections are available only with respto vested account balances as of
December 31, 2004.

As of November 30, 2013 and 2012 , the deferredpearsation liability balances were $13,013 and $A@B,8&espectively. Of the above
deferred balances, $6,381 and $7,58%pectively, have been invested in equity séearihnedge funds and private equity funds. The @om
has recorded a gain of $1,868 , a gain of $2,585%dpss of $1,101 for the fiscal years ended Ndam30, 2013 , 2012 and 2011,
respectively.
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NOTE 18—INCOME TAXES:

The sources of income before the provision for medaxes and non-controlling interest are as fatow

United States
Foreign

The provisions for income taxes consist of theofwlhg:

Current tax provision:
Federal

State

Foreign

Deferred tax provision (benefit):
Federal

State

Foreign

Total tax provision

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
$ 201,38t $ 188,80( $ 184,76¢
36,66¢ 47,75 44,95(
$ 238,05. $ 236,55 $ 229,71¢

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
$ 78,82¢ $ 56,60 $ 49,93%
12,22¢ 11,69¢ 11,14(
6,70¢ 9,61¢ 9,54:
$ 97,76: $ 77,91¢ $ 70,62(
$ (11,650 $ 594( $ 9,73t
(77€) 29t (1,186
39t (107) @
$ (12,03) $ 6,13 $ 8,54t
$ 85,73( $ 84,05( $ 79,16

The following presents the breakdown between ctiaad non-current net deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax assets - current
Deferred tax assets - non-current
Deferred tax liabilities - current
Deferred tax liabilities - non-current
Total net deferred tax assets

As of November 30,

2013 2012
$ 22,03. $ 23,39(
7,867 61¢
(879 (811)
(3,047 (9,265)

$ 25,97¢ % 13,93
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Net deferred tax assets and liabilities consisheffollowing:

As of November 30,

2013 2012
Assets:
Inventory reserves $ 4,07 % 4,31t
Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales retuserees 7,192 7,392
Other reserves and accruals 8,81( 7,86¢
State tax credits 1,98¢ 2,39¢
Deferred compensation 5,27¢ 5,70z
Net operating losses 15,301 17,96
Deferred revenue 83¢€ 51z
Foreign tax credit 152 1,744
Share-based compensation expense 4,17 3,60¢
Unrealized losses on investments 60 554
Capital loss carryforward 44 30C
Other — 58€
Gross deferred tax assets 47,90¢ 52,94
Valuation allowance (7,340 (6,427)
Total deferred tax assets $ 40,56¢ $ 46,52:
Liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization $ (6,656¢) $ (7,939
Convertible debt interest — (14,49
Intangible assets (6,587 (9,730
Unrealized gains on forward contracts (680) —
Other (674) (429
Total deferred tax liabilities $ (14,59) $ (32,589
Net deferred tax assets $ 25,97¢ $ 13,93

The valuation allowance relates primarily to statedits and certain foreign net operating lossyctmmward. The Company's assessme
that it is not more likely than not that these defd tax assets will be realized.

A reconciliation of the statutory United Statesdead income tax rate to the Company’s effectiveme tax rate is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

2013 2012 2011
Federal statutory income tax rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
State taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 3.1 3.C 2.€
Foreign taxes (3.0 3.0 (2.9
Other 0.c 0.€ 0.9
Effective income tax rate 36.C% 35.5% 34.5%

The Company's U.S. business has sufficient caghdlod liquidity to fund its operating requiremeatsl the Company expects and
intends that profits earned outside the UnitedeStaiill be fully utilized and reinvested to fundémational expansion. Accordingly, the
Company has not provisioned U.S. taxes and fonightholding taxes on non-U.S. subsidiaries for wahiigce earnings are permanently
reinvested. The Company estimates that its totdistnibuted earnings upon which it has not provideterred tax is approximately $262,%00
of November 30, 2013 . It is not currently pradtitaestimate the amount of income tax that mighphyable if any earnings were to be
distributed by individual foreign subsidiaries.
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As of November 30, 2013 , the Company had net ¢ipgréoss carry forward of approximately $21,10@ &12,100 for federal and state
purposes, respectively. The federal net operating tarry forward will start expiring in fiscal yeending November 30, 2021 if not used and
the state net operating loss carry forward wilitstapiring in fiscal year ending November 30, 20l6ot used. The Company also htil,30C
of foreign net operating loss carry forward, mostym Infotec Japan that will also start expirimgfiscal year ending November 30, 2014 if
used. In addition, the Company has $1,400 of varfederal and state income tax credit carry forviaad if not used, will begin expiring in
fiscal year ending November 30, 2018.

The Company enjoys tax holidays in certain juridits including China, Costa Rica, Nicaragua, ahiigpines. The tax holidays
provide for lower or zero rates of taxation anduiegjvarious thresholds of investment and busiaessities in those jurisdictions. These tax
holidays are in effect currently and scheduledxjuire starting 2014 if not extended. The estimaitedje of tax benefits from the above tax
holidays on diluted earnings per share for fisearg 2013 , 2012 , and 2011 were approximatelyd$.$0.05 , $0.02 to $0.03 and $0.03 to
$0.04 respectively.

The aggregate changes in the balances of grossagmieed tax benefits, excluding accrued interedtf@enalties, during fiscal years
2013, 2012, and 2011 were as follows:

Balance as of November 30, 2010 $ 10,51«
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear 2,11:
Additions for tax positions of prior years 8,04:
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (397)
Lapse of statute of limitations (1,279
Balance as of November 30, 2011 19,00(
Additions based on tax positions related to theendryear 1,88¢
Additions for tax positions of prior years 621
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (369
Lapse of statute of limitations (1,226
Changes due to translation of foreign currencies 7€
Balance as of November 30, 2012 19,99t
Additions based on tax positions related to theendryear 2,57¢
Additions for tax positions of prior years 343
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (307)
Lapse of statute of limitations (787)
Changes due to translation of foreign currencies 27
Balance as of November 30, 2013 $ 21,85

The Company conducts business globally and filesrire tax returns in various U.S. and foreign taisglictions. The Company is
subject to continuous examination and audits biouartax authorities. In the United States, the Gany is subject to examination and audits
by tax authorities for tax years after fiscal yeaded 2008. The Company is not aware of any taisaindother jurisdictions. The Company is
currently under examination by the IRS for its Fatlencome tax returns for fiscal years ended Ndyen2009 and 2010. As of November 30,
2013, the Company is unable to estimate the rahgay possible adjustments due to uncertainthéntiming of the resolution of the audit.
Although timing of the resolution of audits is higluncertain, the Company does not believe it &somably possible that the total amount of
unrecognized tax benefits as of November 30, 20l 3naterially change in the next twelve months.

As of November 30, 2013 , the total uncertain tagifon is $21,857 , of which $20,946 of the unigruaed tax benefits, net of federal
benefit would affect the effective tax rate if ieatl. The Company's policy is to include interest penalties related to income taxes, includin
unrecognized tax benefits, within the provisionifarome taxes. As of November 30, 2013 and 20h2 (ompany had accrued $2,535 and
$1,730, respectively, in income taxes payableedlto accrued interest.
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NOTE 19—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

The Company leases certain of its facilities uraperating lease agreements, which expire in vapeu®ds through 2024. Future
minimum rental obligations under non-cancellablsteagreements as of November 30, 2013 were aw$oll

Fiscal Years Ending November 30,

2014 $ 23,82¢
2015 21,10¢
2016 15,25¢
2017 11,90¢
2018 6,917
thereafter 12,19¢
Total minimum lease payments $ 91,21(

Rent expense for the years ended November 30, 2208 and 2011 amounted to $22,596 , $22,906 2B@®80 , respectively.

The Company was contingently liable as of Noven88r2013 under agreements to repurchase repossasgsatbry acquired by
Flooring Companies as a result of default on figlan financing arrangements by the Company's custenthese arrangements are describec
in Note 10— Accounts Receivable Arrangements. Losses, if amyldvbe the difference between the repossessidrandsthe resale value of
the inventory. There have been no repurchasesghrNovember 30, 2013 under these agreements ar@gbtihpany is not aware of any
pending customer defaults or repossession obliggtierom time to time, the Company receives nofiies third parties, including customers
and suppliers, seeking indemnification, paymenmnohey or other actions in connection with claimsimagainst them. Also, the Company is
involved in various bankruptcy preference actiommewme the Company was a supplier to the companiwsmbankruptcy. In addition, the
Company is subject to various other claims, boieded and unasserted, that arise in the ordirmamse of business. The Company is not
currently involved in any material proceedings.

In December 2009, the Company sold China Civili@&y¥man), which operated in China as HiChina, td&ha.com Limited. In
conjunction with this sale, the Company has reab@aeontingent indemnification liability of $4,122

The Company does not believe that the above conmenisrand contingencies will have a material adveffeet on the Company's resi
of operations, financial position or cash flows.
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The following table presents selected unauditedalitiated financial results for each of the eiglirters in the two-year period ended
November 302013 . In the Company’s opinion, this unauditeainfation has been prepared on the same basis asdfied information and
includes all adjustments (consisting of only normeglurring adjustments) necessary for a fair staterof the financial information for the
periods presented.

Fiscal Year 2013 Fiscal Year 2012

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
Statements of Operations Data: (currency and
share amounts in thousands except per share Feb. 29, May 31, Aug. 31, Nov. 30, Feb. 29, May 31, Aug. 31, Nov. 30,
amounts) 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012
Revenue $2,460,83' $2,591,36. $2,733,91° $3,059,05. $2,460,69 $2,482,79° $2,576,94 $2,765,06!
Cost of revenue (2,304,75) (2,436,57) (2,569,63) (2,879,23) (2,291,42) (2,326,36) (2,425,01) (2,585,96)
Gross profit 156,08 154,79( 164,28( 179,81: 169,27: 156,43t 151,92¢ 179,10(
Selling, general and administrative expenses (100,14 (102,82f) (100,78) (110,389 (105,28) (97,119 (94,879 (104,449
Income before non-operating items, income te
and noncontrolling interest 55,94( 51,96 63,49¢ 69,42¢ 63,98¢ 59,32: 57,05 74,65:
Interest expense and finance charges, net (5,499 (4,867) (2,989 (3,77¢) (6,03%) (5,519 (5,809 (5,56%)
Other income (expense), net 1,261 52¢ 12,15¢ 391 2,09¢ (382) 89( 1,86¢
Income before income taxes and noncontrolling
interest 51,70¢ 47,62¢ 72,67t 66,04( 60,05: 53,42( 52,13: 70,94¢
Provision for income taxes (18,31 (16,837) (26,047) (24,53 (20,89¢) (18,59() (17,30¢) (27,25¢)
Net income 33,39: 30,79: 46,63 41,50¢ 39,15« 34,83( 34,82¢ 43,69¢
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrollin
interest (22) (29) (22 (18) (931) (45€) 31: (59

Net income attributable to SYNNEX Corporatién 33,36¢ $ 30,76¢ $ 46,61 $ 4148t $ 38220 $ 3437¢ $ 3513¢ § 43,64
Net income per share attributable to SYNNEX

Corporation:
Basic $ 091 $ 084 % 12¢ $ 11z % 108§ 094 % 09 $ 1.1¢
Diluted $ 08¢ $ 081 $ 0.1¢ % 1.1¢ % 1.0z $ 09C $ 09 § 1.1€
Weighted-average common shares outstanding -
basic 36,661 36,78: 36,96¢ 37,13¢ 36,30¢ 36,607 36,70( 36,72¢
Weighted-average common shares outstandir )
diluted 38,03( 37,86¢ 37,55¢ 37,74: 37,63: 38,34¢ 37,91; 37,73:

Earnings per share (“EPS”) for each quarter arepeed using the weighteslterage number of shares outstanding during theateyy while
EPS for the fiscal year is computed using the weidtaverage of shares outstanding during the fiseal. The sum of EPS for each of the foul
guarters may not equal the EPS for the fiscal eaaddition, for the three months ended August2®1,3 the numerator for the computation of
EPS was adjusted for dilutive changes in the es¢ichaalue of the conversion premium of the Compaoghvertible debt from May 31, 2013
through the final settlement dates. The adjustrteetite numerator had the effect of reducing the gamy's EPS by $1.05 for the three months
ended August 31, 2013.
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For the Fiscal Years Ended November 30, 2013, 20&48d 2011
(in thousands)

Additions

Balances at Charged to Additions Reclassifications,

Beginning of Revenue and from Write-offs and Balances at

Fiscal Year Expense Acquisitions Deductions End of Fiscal Year
Fiscal Year Ended November 30, 2011
Allowance for sales returns-gross $ 32,52 % 10,41C % — 3 (7,460 $ 35,47¢
Allowance for deferred tax assets 3,862 48t 3,64% — 7,98¢
Fiscal Year Ended November 30, 2012
Allowance for sales returns-gross $ 35,47 % 6,39 $ — 3 611 $ 42,48(
Allowance for deferred tax assets 7,98¢ (1,049 — (529 6,422
Fiscal Year Ended November 30, 2013
Allowance for sales returns-gross $ 42,48 % 33,26¢ % — 3 (1,030 $ 74,71¢
Allowance for deferred tax assets 6,422 (2,032 — 1,94¢ 7,34(

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain “disclosure controls and procedures Sach term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) undeStheurities Exchange Act of 1934
(the “Exchange Act”), that are designed to enshia¢ information required to be disclosed by usejmorts that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizeldsegoorted within the time periods specified in8des and Exchange Commission rules
and forms, and that such information is accumulateticommunicated to our management, includingatuef Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timelgcisions regarding required disclosure. In desigaind evaluating our disclosure controls
procedures, management recognized that disclosmteots and procedures, no matter how well conckavel operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the nfeiedf the disclosure controls and proceduresraie Our disclosure controls and procedures
have been designed to meet reasonable assurandarsis Additionally, in designing disclosure cofgrand procedures, our management
necessarily was required to apply its judgmentialating the cost-benefit relationship of possitikelosure controls and procedures. The
design of any disclosure controls and procedurssialbased in part upon certain assumptions dhedikelihood of future events, and there
can be no assurance that any design will succeadhieving its stated goals under all potentialif@tconditions.

Based on their evaluation as of the end of theopesovered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, Ghief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that, as of suatedour disclosure controls and procedures wéeetefe at the reasonable assurance level.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting
Management’s Report on Internal Control over FimgrReporting on pagé5is incorporated herein by reference.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in our internal control ovgairicial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)emithie Exchange Act) identified in
connection with management’s evaluation duringlasirfiscal year that has materially affected,sareasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers of the Registrant afZbrporate Governance

The information required by this item (with resperDirectors) is incorporated by reference from ithiformation under the caption
“Election of Directors” contained in our Proxy Statent to be filed with the Securities and Excha@gmmission in connection with the
solicitation of proxies for our 2014 Annual MeetiofyStockholders to be held o n March 25, 2014 (tRroxy Statement”). Certain
information required by this item concerning ex@aubfficers is set forth in Part | of this Repartder the caption “Executive Officers of the
Registrant.”

Item 405 of Regulation 8-calls for disclosure of any known late filing f@ilure by an insider to file a report required ®gction 16(a) ¢
the Exchange Act. This information is containedhia section called “Section 16(a) Beneficial OwhgrReporting Compliance” in the Proxy
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

We have adopted a code of ethics that applied tf alr employees, including our principal exegatbfficer, our principal financial
officer, our controller and persons performing $amfunctions. This code of ethics, called a CofiEthics and Business Conduct for
Employees, Officers and Directors, is available foé charge on our public website (www.synnex.comjhe investor relations webpage.
Future amendments or waivers relating to the cdaghics will be disclosed on the webpage referdnoédhis paragraph within five
(5) business days following the date of such amedror waiver.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorpaaby reference from the information under theicagt“Election of Directors—
Directors’ Compensation,” “Executive Compensaticemt “Election of Directors—Compensation Commitieterlocks and Insider
Participation” contained in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aianagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item with respecsecurity ownership of certain beneficial ownangl management is incorporated by
reference from the information under the captioaci®ity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahanagement” contained in the Proxy
Statement.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certain informatimgarding our equity compensation plans as of Nder30, 2013 :

Weighted- Number of securities remaining
Number of securities average available for future issuance
to be issued upon exercise price of under equity compensation
exercise of outstanding plans (excluding securities
outstanding options options reflected in column (a)
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plan approved by security hslde 934,000 @ $ 26.8¢ 2,627,99. @G

(1) Includes the number of shares to be issuedrumat Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incenteave (P2003 Stock Incentive Plan”) and the 2013 Stodentive Plan.
Please see Note 4 - Stockholders' Equity of thedtnt the Consolidated Financial Statements fonduiinformation regarding the 2003 Stock IncenfNa&n and the
2013 Stock Incentive Plan.

(2) Includes the number of shares reserved faaisse under our 2013 Stock Incentive Plan. The mumbshares authorized for issuance under our 38d& Incentive
Plan will not exceed the sum of (1) 1,696,409 shafeeommon stock plus (2) any shares under th8 3dfck Incentive Plan that are subject to outstenawards to
the extent those awards expire, terminate or areedad for any reason prior to exercise withoutis$gaance or delivery of such shares, any shatgsduo vesting
restrictions that are subsequently forfeited, amdraserved shares not issued or subject to odisgawards, up to a maximum of 2,750,000 shalessE see Note 4 -
Stockholders' Equity of the Notes to the Consoéiddtinancial Statements for further informationareling the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan.

(3) Includes 47,829 shares available-for-saleyamsto our 2003 Employee Stock Purchase PlaneShdicommon stock will be purchased at a pricelepuo5% of the
fair market value per share of common stock oreeithe first trading day of the offering periodaor the last trading day of the accumulation penauchever is less.
Please see Note 4-Stockholders' Equity of the Notéee Consolidated Financial Statements for &rthformation regarding the 2003 Employee StocicRase Plan.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, adaector Independence

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference from the information contained urtlde caption “Certain
Relationships and Related Party Transactions” &felction of Directors-Directors and Nominees” caméa in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference from the information contained urtlde caption “Ratification of the
Appointment of Independent Registered Public Actants” contained in the Proxy Statement.

PART IV

ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statemer
See Index under Item 8.

(2) Financial Statements Schec
See Index under Item 8.

(3) Exhibits

See Item 15(b) below. Each compensatory plan requo be filed has been identified.

(b) Exhibits.
Exhibit
Number Description of Document
2.01 Master Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of Seetelfip2013, by and between the Company and Intenazh Business
Machines Corporation, a New York corporation (inmmated by reference to Exhibit 2.01 to the Compm@yrrent Report
on Form 8-K filed on September 10, 2013).
3(i).1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 3(i).3 to Amendment Ndothe Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 338543)).
3(ii).2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by referéo Exhibit 3(ii).1 to the Company’s Current Remn Form 8-K
filed on April 2, 2008).
4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated bference to the exhibit of the same number to Amreard No. 2 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Rde333-108543)).
4.2 Indenture related to the 4.0% Convertible SenioteSalue 2018, dated as of May 12, 2008, betweenNEXNCorporation
and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustediafing form of 4.0% Convertible Senior Note due &p(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Curreep®&t on Form 8-K filed on May 16, 2008).
10.1# Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plarficantdof agreements thereunder (incorporated byeefe to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 1fQhe quarter ended August 31, 2008).
10.2# Amended and Restated 2003 Employee Stock PurcliasdiRcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2ie Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter enflegust 31, 2008).
10.3# Amendment to Amended and Restated 2003 Employexk Sarchase Plan (incorporated by reference toldixh0.2 to the

Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for therteraended August 31, 2008).
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document
10.4 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Comypand its officers and directors (incorporatedéfgrence to
Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Registration StatetmenForm S-1 (File No. 333-108543)).
10.5# Form of Change of Control Severance Plan (incomedray reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Amendment Nto the
Company'’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Rde333-108543)).
10.6 Joint Sales and Marketing Agreement, dated May822between the Company and MIiTAC InternationajpGration
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Adment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Stateroarfform S-1
(File No. 333-108543)).
10.7 Credit Agreement, dated as of November 27, 201&ngyamong the Company, the subsidiaries of thegaasnnamed
therein, the lenders signatories thereto from tionéme, and Bank of America, N.A. (incorporatedriference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Current Report in Form 8i&diion November 27, 2013).
10.8 Third Amended and Restated Receivables Sale amitBer Agreement, dated as of January 23, 2009 ngntioe
Originator, the Servicer and SIT Funding Corporaijimcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 t® @ompanys Annual
Report in Form 10-K for the year ended November280_8).
10.9 Fourth Amended and Restated Receivables Fundingdmihnistration Agreement, dated as November 1202@mong
SIT Funding Corporation, the lenders party theestd The Bank of Nova Scotia (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.3
to the Company'’s Current Report in Form 8-K filedNovember 18, 2010).
10.10# Offer Letter, dated as of March 23, 2007, betwekaritas C. Alsborg and the Company (incorporatecefgrence to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report filmdForm 8-K on March 28, 2007).
10.11# Amendment to SYNNEX Corporation Change of Contel&ance Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibhi21 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgadr ended November 30, 2007).
10.12# SYNNEX Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan,rasraded and restated effective January 1, 2005rfiocated by
reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s Anrie@port on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Nolen80, 2007).
10.13# Offer Letter, dated as of March 27, 2008, by anmvben the Company and Kevin Murai (incorporateddfgrence to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onfk&-K filed on April 2, 2008).
10.14# Offer Letter between the Company and Marshall \atied April 1, 2013 (incorporated by reference xbigit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Af;il2013).
10.15# Amendment to the Amended and Restated 2003 Staektive Plan, dated November 21, 2008 (incorporayeakference
to Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Annual Reportramm 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2008).
10.16# Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant (incorporatadreference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s QerdytReport on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2009).
10.17# Amendment to Amended and Restated 2003 Employexk $torchase Plan (incorporated by reference tolixt0.3 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fordbarter ended May 31, 2009).
10.18# 2009 Executive Profit Sharing Plan (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s QuértReport on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2009).
10.19# Form of Restricted Stock Award (Directors) (incargted by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Compa@usirterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2009).
10.20# Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Award (Rerance Vesting) (incorporated by reference to EkHi0.1 to the

Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Nobem4, 2010).
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24#

10.25#

10.26#

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31#

10.32#

10.33#

10.34

10.35#

10.36#

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of NovemberO1D, By and among the Registrant, SB Pacific Carjjmr Limited, a
Hong Kong corporation and Marubeni Corporationapahese corporation (incorporated by referenceihibi 10.26 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaadledl November 30, 2010).

Fourth Omnibus Amendment, dated as of January@1lQ @ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1h® €ompany’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 15,001

Fifth Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Redtéés Sale and Servicing Agreement, dated asnofaig 23, 2009,
among the Originator, the Servicer and SIT Fundogporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibi2lto the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 181@0

Amendment to Amended and Restated 2003 Stock liweeRtan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 20t@the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeatesl November 30, 2011).

Amendment to SYNNEX Corporation Deferred Compeiaseklan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1a®the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeatesl November 30, 2011).

Amendment to SYNNEX Corporation 2009 Executive Ri®haring Plan (incorporated by reference to EixHiB.26 to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeatesl November 30, 2011).

Master HP Partner Agreement dated March 1, 201 anbybetween the Company and Hewlett-Packard Coynpan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlmmpany's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Mar¢i2011).

Sixth Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Rabés Sales and Servicing Agreement (incorporayeeference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report om8¢K filed on October 24, 2012).

Third Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Rest&eszkivables Funding and Administration Agreemenrtdiporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's CurReyport on Form 8-K filed on October 24, 2012.

Omnibus amendment to Fourth Amended and RestateeiRéles Funding and Administration Agreement @hiild
Amended and Restated Receivables Sales and Sgrfigieement, dated as of September 25, 2013, byeuuthg SIT
Funding Corporation, the Company, the lenders gheyeto and the Bank of Nova Scotia (incorpordtgdeference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report omk8¢K filed on September 25, 2013).

Offer Letter between the Company and Thomas Alsldatgd November 8, 2012 (incorporated by referémé&sxhibit 10.1 tc
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed a@vémber 13, 2012).

Amendment to the Notice of Stock Option Grant atwtl Option Agreement dated November 8, 2012 batwiee Company
and Thomas Alsborg (incorporated by reference toitkitx10.32 to the Company’s Annual Report on FA@AK for the year
ended November 30, 2012).

Amendment to the Notice of Restricted Stock Award Restricted Stock Agreement dated November & between the
Company and Thomas Alsborg.(incorporated by refar¢a Exhibit 10.33 to the Company’s Annual Report-orm 10-K
for the year ended November 30, 2012).

Facility Agreement dated as of December 7, 2013ryamong SYNNEX Infotec Corporation, the lengemy thereto, Th
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC as Agent and DB Trusth@any Limited Japan as Security Agent (incorporaedeference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report omi8¢K filed on December 18, 2012).

SYNNEX Corporation 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (iqmmated by reference to the Company’s 2013 ProageStent on
Schedule 14A (File No. 001-31892) filed on Febru22y2013).

Amendment to Amended and Restated 2003 Employexx Starchase Plan (incorporated by reference tolixhd.1 to the
Company'’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thertpraeended August 31, 2013).
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document
10.37 Omnibus amendment to Fourth Amended and Restategi\Réles Funding and Administration Agreement ahild
Amended and Restated Receivables Sales and Sgrfigirement, dated as of September 25, 2013, byisuwthg SIT
Funding Corporation, the Company, the lenders pgheyeto and the Bank of Nova Scotia (incorporétgdeference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report omk8¢K filed on September 25, 2013).
10.38 Second Omnibus amendment to Fourth Amended an@tRddReceivables Funding and Administration Agregraad Third
Amended and Restated Receivables Sales and Sgnfigieement, dated as of November 27, 2013, byaamohg SIT
Funding Corporation, the Company, the lenders gheyeto and the Bank of Nova Scotia (incorpordtgdeference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report omi-8¢K filed on November 27, 2013).
10.39 Amendment Agreement dated as of December 12, 2318nd among SYNNEX Infotec Corporation, the Comypand The
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC as Agent.
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company
23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Puldicounting Firm.
23.2 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, IndeperiRegistered Public Accounting Firm.
24.1 Power of Attorney (see pa@ of this Form 10-K).
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive O
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Off.
32.1* Statement of the Chief Executive Officer and Chiiefancial Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbabekey Act of 2002
(18 U.S.C. Section 1350).
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenm

# Indicates management contract or compensptarnyor arrangement.

* In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regtiten S-K and SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-4#J86| Rule: Management’s
Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Repgréamd Certification of Disclosure in Exchange AetiBdic Reports, the
certifications furnished in Exhibit 32.1 hereto deemed to accompany this Form 10-K and will notiéemed “filed” for purpose of
Section 18 of the Exchange Act. Such certificatisiisnot be deemed to be incorporated by referéntteany filing under the
Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to titerg that the registrant specifically incorporétdsy reference.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules.

See Index under Item 8.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiaht has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigrit thereunto duly authorized.

Date: January 27, 2014
SYNNEX C ORPORATION
By: /sl Kevin M. Murai

Kevin M. Murai
President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each personost signature appears below constitutes and aggéavwin Murai and
Marshall Witt, and each of them, his true and ldwftorneys-in-fact, each with full power of sulhstion, for him or her in any and all
capacities, to sign any amendments to this reppRaym 10-K and to file the same, with exhibitsréie and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comimis$ereby ratifying and confirming all that eaaftsaid attorneys-in-fact or their
substitute or substitutes may do or cause to be tgrvirtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Examge Act of 1934, this report has been signed beldwy the following persons ol
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities andn the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ Kevin M. Murai President and Chief Executive Officer (PrincipakEntive Officer) and Director January 27, 201
Kevin M. Murai

/sl Marshall W. Witt Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial andriipal Accounting Officer) January 27, 201
Marshall W. Witt

/s/ Dwight A. Steffensen Chairman of the Board January 27, 201
Dwight A. Steffensen

/sl Matthew F.C. Miau Chairman Emeritus of the Board January 27, 201
Matthew F.C. Miau

/sl Fred A. Breidenbach Director January 27, 201
Fred A. Breidenbach

/sl Hau Lee Director January 27, 201
Hau Lee
/s/ Dennis Polk Director January 27, 201
Dennis Polk
/sl Gregory L. Quesnel Director January 27, 201

Gregory L. Quesnel

/sl Thomas S. Wurster Director January 27, 201

Thomas S. Wurster

/s/ Duane E. Zitzner Director January 27, 201
Duane E. Zitzner

/s/ Andrea M. Zulberti Director January 27, 201
Andrea M. Zulberti
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Exhibit
Number

2.01

3(i).1

3(ii).2

4.1

4.2

10.1#

10.2#

10.3#

10.4

10.5#

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10#

10.11#

10.12#

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Document

Master Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of Septet@ip2013, by and between the Company and Iriterah
Business Machines Corporation, a New York corporaincorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.01 te @ompany’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 10,3).

Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporadbgdeference to Exhibit 3(i).3 to Amendment Ndothe Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 338513)).

Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by referéo Exhibit 3(ii).1 to the Company’s Current Remn Form 8-K
filed on April 2, 2008).

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated éference to the exhibit of the same number to Amesrd No. 2 to
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form Silé [fo. 333-108543)).

Indenture related to the 4.0% Convertible SenioteSlalue 2018, dated as of May 12, 2008, betweenNEXN
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Associationtrastee (including form of 4.0% Convertible Seritote due 2018)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to therpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2608).

Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plarficantdof agreements thereunder (incorporated byreafse to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 1f»Qhe quarter ended August 31, 2008).

Amended and Restated 2003 Employee Stock Purcliasdifcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2he €ompany’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter enélegust 31, 2008).

Amendment to Amended and Restated 2003 Employeaxk $tarchase Plan (incorporated by reference tolixt0.2 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fordbarter ended August 31, 2008).

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Comypand its officers and directors (incorporatedéfgrence to
Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Registration StatetmenForm S-1 (File No. 333-108543)).

Form of Change of Control Severance Plan (incotedrhy reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Amendment Nto the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Rde333-108543)).

Joint Sales and Marketing Agreement, dated May822between the Company and MiTAC InternationaipGmation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Adent No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Stateroarfform S-1
(File No. 333-108543)).

Credit Agreement, dated as of November 27, 201&ngyamong the Company, the subsidiaries of thegaasnnamed
therein, the lenders signatories thereto from tionéme, and Bank of America, N.A. (incorporatedriference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Current Report in Form 81&dfion November 27, 2013).

Third Amended and Restated Receivables Sale amitBer Agreement, dated as of January 23, 2009 ngntioe
Originator, the Servicer and SIT Funding Corporaijimcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 t® @ompanys Annual
Report in Form 10-K for the year ended November2BD_8).

Fourth Amended and Restated Receivables Fundingdmihnistration Agreement, dated as November 1202@mong
SIT Funding Corporation, the lenders party theestd The Bank of Nova Scotia (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.3
to the Company’s Current Report in Form 8-K filedNovember 18, 2010).

Offer Letter, dated as of March 23, 2007, betwekariias C. Alsborg and the Company (incorporatecefgrence to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report filmdForm 8-K on March 28, 2007).

Amendment to SYNNEX Corporation Change of Cont@&ance Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibhi21 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgadr ended November 30, 2007).

SYNNEX Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan,rasraded and restated effective January 1, 2005rfiocated by
reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Compo’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal vear ended November 30. 20I



10.13# Offer Letter, dated as of March 27, 2008, by anmvben the Company and Kevin Murai (incorporateddfgrence to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onfk&-K filed on April 2, 2008).
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Exhibit

Number

10.14#

10.15#

10.16#

10.17#

10.18#

10.19#

10.20#

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24#

10.25#

10.26#

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

Description of Document

Offer Letter between the Company and Marshall \détied April 1, 2013 (incorporated by reference xbiBit 10.1 to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on A&;il2013).

Amendment to the Amended and Restated 2003 Staeltive Plan, dated November 21, 2008 (incorporbjectference to
Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Annual Report onrkdi0-K for the year ended November 30, 2008).

Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant (incorporatadreference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s QaerdytReport on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2009).

Amendment to Amended and Restated 2003 Employexx Starchase Plan (incorporated by reference tolixh.3 to the
Company'’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thertpraended May 31, 2009).

2009 Executive Profit Sharing Plan (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quérteeport on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Award (Directors) (incorgted by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Compausrterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2009).

Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Award (Rermance Vesting) (incorporated by reference to Bikhi0.1 to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Nobem4, 2010).

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of NovemberO1D, By and among the Registrant, SB Pacific Carjjmr Limited, a
Hong Kong corporation and Marubeni Corporationapahese corporation (incorporated by referenceiibi 10.26 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaadlesl November 30, 2010).

Fourth Omnibus Amendment, dated as of JanuaryQ1lQ @ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1h® €ompany’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 15,001

Fifth Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Red®és Sale and Servicing Agreement, dated asnoiadwg 23, 2009,
among the Originator, the Servicer and SIT Fundogporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibi2lto the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 181@0

Amendment to Amended and Restated 2003 Stock liweeRtan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 0@ the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeatesl November 30, 2011).

Amendment to SYNNEX Corporation Deferred Compeiaseklan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1a®the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeatesl November 30, 2011).

Amendment to SYNNEX Corporation 2009 Executive Ri®haring Plan (incorporated by reference to EixHiB.26 to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeatesl November 30, 2011).

Master HP Partner Agreement dated March 1, 201 anblybetween the Company and Hewlett-Packard Coynpan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlmmpany's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Mar¢i2011).

Sixth Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Rabés and Sales Servicing Agreement (incorporayeeference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report omk8¢K filed on October 24, 2012).

Third Amendment to the Fourth Amended and Rest&eszkivables Funding and Administration Agreemenrtdiporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's CurReyport on Form 8-K filed on October 24, 2012.

Omnibus amendment to Fourth Amended and Restategi\Réles Funding and Administration Agreement ahild
Amended and Restated Receivables Sales and Sgr#igirement, dated as of September 25, 2013, byisnmhg SIT

FiinAdima DAavinAva timnm A D AanmanAn, thn landava whvtveta AndA Hlha DAanl, Af NlAavia CAantia finAaavinAr dedm AnfAvA~AA~



Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report omk8¢K filed on September 25, 2013).

93




Table of Contents

10.31#

10.32#

10.33#

10.34

10.35#

10.36#

10.37

10.38

10.39

211

23.1

23.2

24.1

311

31.2

32.1*

101.INS

101.SCH

101.CAL

101.DEF

Offer Letter between the Company and Thomas Alskatgd November 8, 2012 (incorporated by referémé&exhibit 10.1 tc
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed avémber 13, 2012).

Amendment to the Notice of Stock Option Grant atwtl Option Agreement dated November 8, 2012 batwiee Company
and Thomas Alsborg (incorporated by reference toilkix10.32 to the Company’s Annual Report on FA@AK for the year
ended November 30, 2012).

Amendment to the Notice of Restricted Stock Awarnd Restricted Stock Agreement dated November & between the
Company and Thomas Alsborg (incorporated by refad¢a Exhibit 10.33 to the Company’s Annual Report-orm 10-K
for the year ended November 30, 2012).

Facility Agreement dated as of December 7, 2013ryamong SYNNEX Infotec Corporation, the lengemy thereto, Th
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC as Agent and DB Trusin@any Limited Japan as Security Agent (incorpor@edeference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report omk8¢K filed on December 18, 2012).

SYNNEX Corporation 2013 Stock Incentive Plan (immmated by reference to the Company’s 2013 ProageStent on
Schedule 14A (File No. 001-31892) filed on Febru22y2013).

Amendment to Amended and Restated 2003 Employexx Starchase Plan (incorporated by reference tolixh0.1 to the
Company'’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thertpraeended August 31, 2013).

Omnibus amendment to Fourth Amended and RestateeiRéles Funding and Administration Agreement @hiild
Amended and Restated Receivables Sales and Sgrfigirement, dated as of September 25, 2013, byisuwthg SIT
Funding Corporation, the Company, the lenders gheyeto and the Bank of Nova Scotia (incorpordtgdeference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report omk8¢K filed on September 25, 2013).

Second Omnibus amendment to Fourth Amended anaéteddReceivables Funding and Administration Agregraad Third
Amended and Restated Receivables Sales and Sgr#igieement, dated as of November 27, 2013, byaamohg SIT
Funding Corporation, the Company, the lenders pgheyeto and the Bank of Nova Scotia (incorporétgdeference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report omk8¢K filed on November 27, 2013).

Amendment Agreement dated as of December 12, 2318nd among SYNNEX Infotec Corporation, the Conypand The
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC as Agent.

Subsidiaries of the Company

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pukdicounting Firm.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, IndeperiRegistered Public Accounting Firm.
Power of Attorney (see pa@t of this Form 10-K).

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive iOff.

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Off.

Statement of the Chief Executive Officer and Chiiefancial Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbabgkey Act of 2002
(18 U.S.C. Section 1350).

XBRL Instance Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docum



101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim
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# Indicates management contract or compensataryor arrangement.

* In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regtiten S-K and SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-4#J86] Rule: Management’s
Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Repagrtamd Certification of Disclosure in Exchange AetiBdic Reports, the
certifications furnished in Exhibit 32.1 hereto deemed to accompany this Form 10-K and will notleemed “filed” for purpose of
Section 18 of the Exchange Act. Such certificatisiilsnot be deemed to be incorporated by referéntteany filing under the
Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to titerg that the registrant specifically incorporétdsy reference.
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EXHIBIT 10.39

AMENDMENT AGREEMENT

dated 12 December 2013

for

SYNNEX INFOTEC CORPORATION
as Company

and
SYNNEX CORPORATION

as Guarantor

and

THE ROYAL BANK OF SCOTLAND PLC

acting as Agent

RELATING TO JPY14,000,000,000 FACILITY AGREEMENT DATED

7 December 2012
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THIS AGREEMENT is dated 12 December 2013 and made between:

1)
(@)
3)

SYNNEX INFOTEC CORPORATION (the " Company ");
SYNNEX CORPORATION (the “ Guarantor ") and

THE ROYAL BANK OF SCOTLAND PLC as agent of the other Finance Parties (the " Agent ").

IT IS AGREED as follows:

1.1

1.2
(@)

(b)

13

1.4

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

Definitions

In this Agreement:
" Amended Agreement " means the Original Facility Agreement, as amended by this Agreement.
" Effective Date " means 12 December 2013.

" Original Facility Agreement " means JPY14,000,000,000 facility agreement dated 7 December 2012 between the
Company, the Guarantor, the Agent, the Arranger named in it and the Lenders named in it (as amended from time to time

prior to the date of this Agreement).
" Party " means a party to this Agreement.

Incorporation of defined terms
Unless a contrary indication appears, terms defined in the Original Facility Agreement have the same meaning in this
Agreement.

The principles of construction set out in the Original Facility Agreement shall have effect as if set out in this Agreement.

Third Party Rights

A person who is not a Party has no right to enforce or to enjoy the benefit of any term of this Agreement.

Designation
In accordance with the Original Facility Agreement, each of the Company and the Agent designate this Agreement as a
Finance Document and a Fee Letter.

REPRESENTATIONS

Each Obligor makes the Repeating Representations, and the representations and warranties in Clause 18.5 ( Validity and
admissibility in evidence ), 18.7 ( Deduction of Tax ) and 18.8 ( No filing or stamp taxes ) of the Original Facility Agreement,
by reference to the facts and circumstances then existing:

€)) on the date of this Agreement; and
(b) on the Effective Date,

but as if references in Clause 18 ( Representations ) of the Original Facility Agreement to "the Finance Documents" include

this Agreement and, on the Effective Date, the Amended Agreement.






3.1

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

(f)

3.2

AMENDMENT

Amendment

With effect from the Effective Date the Original Facility Agreement shall be amended as follows:
The following definition shall be inserted in Clause 1.1 ( Definitions ):

" Guaranteed Amount " means 110 % of the amount equivalent to the sum of the principal amount of all of the Loans

under the Finance Documents then outstanding."

The definition of "Margin" in Clause 1.1 ( Definitions ) shall be amended as follows:

" Margin " means 1.40 per cent. per annum."

The definition of "Termination Date" in Clause 1.1 ( Definitions ) shall be amended as follows:

" Termination Date " means, in relation to each of Facility A and Facility B, the date which is 4 years after the date of this

Agreement."
Clause 11.1 ( Commitment fee ) paragraph (a) shall be amended as follows:

"The Company shall pay to the Agent (for the account of each Lender of the Facility B Loan) a fee in Japanese Yen
computed at the rate of 0.10 per cent. per annum on that Lender's Available Commitment under Facility B for the Availability
Period applicable to Facility B; and"

Clause 17.4 ( Waiver of defences ) paragraph (i) shall be amended as follows:

"any other circumstance or occurrence that might constitute a defence available to, or discharge of, a surety or guarantor,
other than the payment and performance in full of all Liabilities of the Obligors (subject to, in the case of the Guarantor,

satisfaction in full of its obligation under Clause 17.10 ( Guaranteed Amount ))."
A new Clause 17.10 ( Guaranteed Amount ) shall be inserted as follows:

" 17.10 Guaranteed Amount
The total amount which may be recovered from the Guarantor under this Agreement and the other Finance Documents shall
not exceed the then Guaranteed Amount."

Continuing obligations
The provisions of the Original Facility Agreement and the other Finance Documents (including the guarantee and indemnity

of each Guarantor) shall, save as amended by this Agreement, continue in full force and effect.

TRANSACTION EXPENSES

The Company shall reimburse the Agent for the amount of all costs and expenses (including legal fees) reasonably incurred
by the Agent in connection with the negotiation, preparation, printing and execution of this Agreement and any other

documents referred to in this Agreement pursuant to Clause 16.2 of the Original Facility Agreement.




6.1

6.2

FEES

On the Effective Date, the Company shall pay to the Agent (for the account of each Lender) a fee in Japanese Yen of 0.2
per cent of the Total Commitment.

MISCELLANEOUS

Incorporation of terms

The provisions of Clause 29 ( Notices ) and Clause 40 ( Enforcement ) of the Original Facility Agreement shall be
incorporated into this Agreement as if set out in full in this Agreement and as if references in those clauses to "this
Agreement" are references to this Agreement.

Counterparts
This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and this has the same effect as if the signatures on the

counterparts were on a single copy of this Agreement.

GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement is governed by Japanese law.

This Agreement has been entered into on the date stated at the beginning of this Agreement.




SCHEDULE 1
SIGNATURES

The Company

SYNNEX INFOTEC CORPORATION

By: /s/ Signhature in Japanese Characters




The Guarantor

SYNNEX CORPORATION

By:

/sl Simon Y. Leung

Simon Y. Leung
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and

Corporate Secretary




The Agent

THE ROYAL BANK OF SCOTLAND PLC

By: /s/ Signature in Japanese Characters



Name of the Subsidiary

Concentrix Technologies Limited

ComputerLand Corporation

Concentrix Technologies (India) Private Limited

Concentrix Corporation

Concentrix Costa Rica, S.A.

Concentrix Free Trade Zone, S.A.

Concentrix HK Limited

Concentrix Nicaragua S.A

Concentrix Services (Netherlands) B.V

License Online, Inc.

Sennex Enterprises Limited

SIT Funding Corporation

SYNNEX Canada Limited

SYNNEX GBS Limited

SYNNEX GBS, Inc.

SYNNEX Information Technologies (Beijing) Ltd.

SYNNEX Information Technologies (Chengdu) Ltd.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

As of November 30, 2013

Exhibit 21.1

State or Country in Which Organized

Englanc

California

India

New York

Costa Ric:

Costa Ric:

Hong Kong

Nicaraguz

Netherland:

California

Hong Kong

Delaware

Canad:

Bermude

Delaware

China

China



SYNNEX Information Technologies (China) Ltd.

SYNNEX Information Technologies (UK) Ltd.

SYNNEX Infotec Corporation

SYNNEX Investment Holdings Corporation

SYNNEX Logistics Corporation

SYNNEX de México, S.A. de C.V.

SYNNEX New (BVI) Corporation

SYNNEX NewHK Limited

SYNNEX Software Technologies (HK) Limited

Concentrix Services Corporation

SYNNEX-Concentrix UK Limited

Concentrix Europe Limited

Concentrix Services (Canada) Limited

China

Englanc

Japar

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

Mexico

British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands

Englanc

United Kingdonr

Canad:



EXHIBIT 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
SYNNEX Corporation:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inréggstration statements (Nos. 3331799, 333158571, and 333191442) o
Form S-8 of SYNNEX Corporation of our report dated Januaify 2014, with respect to the consolidated balastwsets ¢
SYNNEX Corporation as of November 30, 2013 and 2@I®l the related consolidated statements of apesatcomprehensi
income, stockholderstquity, and cash flows for the years ended NoverBBeP013 and 2012, and related financial state
schedule, and the effectiveness of internal comvel financial reporting as of November 30, 2048jch report appears in t
November 30, 2013 annual report on Forr-K of SYNNEX Corporation.

/sl KPMG LLP

Santa Clara, California
January 27, 2014



EXHIBIT 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referemtiee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N6eBBB/99, N0.333-158571
and No. 333-191442) of SYNNEX Corporation of oysor dated January 27, 2012 relating to the fir@rstatements and
financial statement schedule, which appears infbisn 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
January 27, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Kevin Murai, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Form 10-K of SYNNEX Corpara;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or déonfitate a material fact necessary ta
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b) designed such internal control over finanaégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conttntsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyréhis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrat’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) llas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regastt’s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the in@dmmittee of registrant’s Board of Directors fmrsons performing the equivalent
functions):

a)all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdsethe design or operation of internal contraéofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b)any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: January 27, 2014

/s/ Kevin M. Murai
Kevin M. Murai
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Marshall Witt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Form 10-K of SYNNEX Corpara;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or déonfitate a material fact necessary ta
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b) designed such internal control over finanaégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conttntsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyréhis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrat’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) llas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regastt’s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the in@dmmittee of registrant’s Board of Directors fmrsons performing the equivalent
functions):

a)all significant deficiencies and material weaknsdsethe design or operation of internal contraéofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b)any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: January 27, 2014

/s/ Marshall W. Witt
Marshall W. Witt
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINA NCIAL OFFICER
UNDER 18 U.S.C. § 1350

We, Kevin Murai, the president and chief executfficer of SYNNEX Corporation (the “Company”), aMhrshall Witt, the chief financial

officer of the Company, certify for the purposesettion 1350 of chapter 63 of title 18 of the ©diStates Code that, to the best of our
knowledge,

(i) the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10eKthe period ended November 30, 2013 (the “Repdtifly complies with
the requirements of section 13(a) of the Securifieshange Act of 1934, and

(ii) the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations
of the Company.

Dated: January 27, 2014

/s/ Kevin M. Murai
Kevin M. Murai

/s/ Marshall W. Witt
Marshall W. Witt




